
NOTICE 
DES PLAINES PUBLIC LIBRARY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES  

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
 THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 20, 2025 

5:00 p.m. in MEETING ROOM B 

AGENDA 

• Approval of Payment of Vendor Checks Report and ACH Payments. [Action Item]
• Review and approval of DPPL’s annual Illinois Public Library Annual Report (IPLAR)

submission.  [Action Item]
• Approval of policies and procedures for The Canvas makerspace. [Action Item]
• Changes to Salary Exempt/Non-Exempt policy. [Action Item]

The Des Plaines Public Library, in compliance with the Americans With Disabilities Act, requests 
that persons with disabilities who require certain accommodations to allow them to observe 
and/or participate in the meetings or have questions about the accessibility of the meetings or 
facilities contact the Library Director at 847-376-2789 to allow the Library to make reasonable 
accommodations.  

1



 
 
 
 
 
 

DES PLAINES PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 

Agenda for the Regular Meeting 
Thursday, February 20, 2025 
5:00 p.m. in Meeting Room B 

 
I. Call to Order. (5:00 p.m.) 

 
II. Roll Call. 

 
III. Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
IV. Vote to invoke the Remote Participation Policy. [Action Item] 

 
V. Consideration of the Agenda. [Action Item] 

 
VI. Public Comments and Questions. 

 
VII. Consent Agenda. [Action Item] (5:10 p.m.) 

A. Approval of the Minutes of the Management Committee Meeting, Regular Board 
Meeting, and Search Committee Meetings, January 2025. 

B. Acceptance of Financial Reports for January 2025.  
C. Acceptance of Reports. 

1. Statistics Report for January 2025. 
2. Director’s Report for January 2025. 

 
VIII. New Business. (5:15 p.m.) 

A. Approve Payment of Vendor Checks Report and ACH Payments in the amount of 
$477,525.65. [Action Item] 

B. Review of policies and procedures for The Canvas makerspace. [Action Item] 
C. Changes to Salary Exempt/Non-Exempt policy. [Action Item] 
D. Approval of DPPL’s annual IPLAR report. [Action Item] 

 
IX. Search Committee Report. (5:25 p.m.) 

A. Update on status of the Director Search.  
 

I. Executive Session. (5:35 p.m.) 
A. Executive Session for The Appointment, Employment, Compensation, Discipline, 

Performance or Dismissal of Specific Employees of the public body.  [Action Item] 
 

X. Other. (5:45 p.m.) 
 

2



XI. Announcements / Correspondence. 
 
XII. Adjournment. (5:50 p.m.) 

 
This meeting will be video recorded, and available on the Library’s website. 

3



 
 
 
 
 
 

DES PLAINES PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 

Minutes of the Regular Meeting 
Thursday, January 16, 2025 

  
 
I. Call to Order.  

 
The meeting was called to order at 7:08 p.m. 
 

II. Roll Call. 
 
Roll call indicated the following trustees were PRESENT: Dr. Gregory Sarlo, Kristen Graack, 
Denise Hudec, Lisa DuBrock (remote), Robert Flinn (remote), Christine Halblander, Nick 
Harkovich, Rachel Rice, Michelle Shimon-Hutchison (remote).  ALSO PRESENT: DPPL Staff 
Laurie Papadourakis, Heather Imhoff, Joanie Sebastian, Michelle Meyer-Edley, Lauren Wolf. 
Friends of the Library President John Leach. 

 
III. Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
IV. Vote to invoke the Remote Participation Policy.  

 
Motion by Graack, seconded by Halblander, to invoke the Remote Participation Policy. 
AYES: Graack, Halblander, Harkovich, Hudec, Rice, Sarlo. NAYS: none.  MOTION CARRIED. 
 

V. Consideration of the Agenda.  
 
Motion by Harkovich, seconded by Hudec, to accept the Agenda.  AYES: DuBrock, Flinn, 
Graack, Halblander, Harkovich, Hudec, Rice, Sarlo, Shimon-Hutchison. NAYS: none. 
MOTION CARRIED. 

 
VI. Public Comments and Questions. 

 
None 

 
VII. Consent Agenda.   

A. Approval of the Minutes of the Management Committee Meeting, Regular Board 
Meeting, and Search Committee Meetings, December 2024. 

B. Acceptance of Financial Reports for December 2024.
 Acceptance of Reports. 

1. Statistics Report for December 2024. 
2. Director’s Report for December 2024. 

 
4



Motion by Harkovich, seconded by Rice, to accept the Consent Agenda.  AYES: DuBrock, 
Flinn, Graack, Halblander, Harkovich, Hudec, Rice, Sarlo, Shimon-Hutchison. NAYS: none. 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 

VIII. New Business. 
 
A. Approve Payment of Vendor Checks Report and ACH Payments in the amount of 

$438,735.05. 
 
Motion by Hudec to Approve Payment of Vendor Checks Report and ACH Payments in the 
amount of $438,735.05 as listed on the vendor checks report of December 2024 and 
authorize Acting Interim Director Laurie Papadourakis to transfer the amount required to 
the Library’s operating account. AYES: DuBrock, Flinn, Graack, Halblander, Harkovich, 
Hudec, Rice, Sarlo, Shimon-Hutchison. NAYS: none. MOTION CARRIED. 
 

IX. Search Committee Report.  
 
A. Update on status of the Director Search.  

 
Committee chair Graack reported that the position was posted on January 13th and 
would remain active for 30 days on RAILS, and the ILA and ALA website. Hudec will 
screen all applications submitted and pass along those qualified to the search 
consultant for phone screenings.  
 

X. Other. 
 
Sarlo reported that director Jo Bonell’s official retirement date is February 14, 2025.  
 

XI. Announcements.  
 

Acting Interim Director Papadourakis reported on the newly installed carpeting in the 
lobby, and that The Canvas makerspace construction is near completion. We will be 
moving to the 2nd phase – installation of equipment and furniture – as soon as City 
inspections are complete.  

 
XII. Correspondence. 

 
None. 

 
XIII. Adjournment.   
 

Motion by Halblander, seconded by Rice, to adjourn.  AYES: DuBrock, Flinn, Graack, 
Halblander, Harkovich, Hudec, Rice, Sarlo, Shimon-Hutchison. NAYS: none.  MOTION 
CARRIED. 
 

The meeting concluded at 7:23 p.m.  

5



 
 
 
 
 
 

DES PLAINES PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 

Minutes of the Meeting of the Ad Hoc Search Committee 
Monday, January 27, 2025 

  
 
I. Call to Order.   

 
The meeting was called to order at 4:01 p.m. 
 

II. Roll Call.  
 
Roll call indicated the following trustee committee members were PRESENT: Kristen 
Graack, Denise Hudec, Rachel Rice.  ABSENT: Michelle Shimon-Hutchison.  ALSO 
PRESENT: Trustees Christine Halblander, Nick Harkovich; DPPL Staff Heather Imhoff. 

 
III. Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
IV. Vote to invoke the Remote Participation Policy.  

 
N/A 
 

V. Consideration of the Agenda.  
 
Motion by Rice, seconded by Hudec, to accept the Agenda.  AYES: Graack, Hudec, 
Rice. NAYS: none.  MOTION CARRIED. 

 
VI. Public Comments and Questions. 

 
None 

 
VII. New Business.  

 
The search process was discussed, including the reference checking process and 
phone screening questions. Hudec reported that three resumes were submitted to 
date. She is forwarding qualified candidates to the search consultant for initial phone 
screening.  

 
VIII. Executive Session.    

 
The Appointment, Employment, Compensation, Discipline, Performance or 
Dismissal of Specific Employees of the public body.   
 
Motion by Hudec, seconded by Graack, to enter executive session.  AYES: Graack, 
Hudec, Rice. NAYS: none. MOTION CARRIED. 6



 
Executive Session entered at 4:16 p.m.  
 
Motion by Hudec, seconded by Graack, to exit Executive Session.  AYES: Graack, 
Hudec, Rice. NAYS: none. MOTION CARRIED. 
 
Executive Session exited at 4:59 p.m.  
 
Nothing to report out.  

 
IX. Adjournment.   

 
Motion by Hudec, seconded by Graack, to adjourn.  AYES: Graack, Hudec, Rice. 
NAYS: none. MOTION CARRIED. 

 
The meeting concluded at 5:00 p.m.  
  

7



 
 
 
 
 
 

DES PLAINES PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 

Minutes of the Ad Hoc Search Committee 
Monday, January 13, 2025 

 
I. Call to Order.   

 
The meeting was called to order at 4:06 p.m. 
 

II. Roll Call. 
 
Roll call indicated the following trustee committee members were PRESENT: Kristen 
Graack, Denise Hudec, Rachel Rice. ALSO PRESENT: Consultant Cathy Peterson; 
Trustees Lisa DuBrock, Nick Harkovich, Michelle Shimon-Hutchison; DPPL Staff 
Heather Imhoff. 

 
III. Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
IV. Vote to invoke the Remote Participation Policy.  

N/A  
 

V. Consideration of the Agenda.  
 
Motion by Rice, seconded by Hudec, to accept the Agenda.  AYES: Graack, Hudec, 
Rice. NAYS: none.  MOTION CARRIED. 

 
VI. Public Comments and Questions. 

 
None 

 
VII. New Business.  

A. Discussion and update on the progress of the search for a new Library 
Director by the Search Committee and consultant, HR Source.  
 
The timeline for posting the position to the public was discussed and set for 
January 13th. It will stay active for one month.  
 
No action required.  

 
VIII. Adjournment.   

 
Motion by Hudec, seconded by Rice, to adjourn.  AYES: Graack, Hudec, Rice. NAYS: 
none. MOTION CARRIED. 

 
The meeting adjourned at 4:33 p.m.  8



Des Plaines Public Library

Monthly Financial Report

For the Month Ended January 31, 2025

Prepared by:

Lauterbach & Amen, LLP

668 N. River Road, Naperville, IL 60563

Phone: 630.393.1483     www.lauterbachamen.com

9



Des Plaines Public Library

Table of Contents

Page

Financial Statements

Governmental Funds - Balance Sheet.................................................................. 2-1

Governmental Funds - Income Statement............................................................ 3-1

Supplementary Information

Treasurers Report........................................................................................... 4-1

Balance Sheet................................................................................................. 5-x

Revenue Report.............................................................................................. 6-x

Expenditures Report........................................................................................ 7-x

Check Register................................................................................................ 8-x

Vendor Check Report..................................................................................... 9-x

ACH Payments............................................................................................... 10-x

Cash Flow Summary...................................................................................... 11-x

10



Financial Statements

11



Des Plaines Public Library

Governmental Funds Balance Sheet

As of January 31, 2025

General Capital

Fund Projects Fund Total

ASSETS

Cash and Investments 5,705,351.19$ 763,903.28$ 6,469,254.47$

Prepaids - 0.00 -

Receivables
Receivable - Property Taxes 6,251,585.00 - 6,251,585.00

Receivable - Grants - - -

Receivable - Miscellaneous - - -

Total Assets 11,956,936.19$ 763,903.28$ 12,720,839.47$

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 375,273.78$ 51,825.74$ 427,099.52$

Accrued Payroll 150,188.96 - 150,188.96

Due to other funds 90,421.46 - 90,421.46

Total Liabilities 615,884.20 51,825.74 667,709.94

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Property Taxes 6,251,585.00 - 6,251,585.00

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources 6,867,469.20 51,825.74 6,919,294.94

FUND BALANCE

Fund Balance - Unreserved 5,089,466.99 712,077.54 5,801,544.53

Total Fund Balance 5,089,466.99 712,077.54 5,801,544.53

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Fund Balance 11,956,936.19$ 763,903.28$ 12,720,839.47$

2-1

12



Des Plaines Public Library

Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues,

Expenditures, and Changes In Fund Balances

For the 1 Month Ended January 31, 2025

General Capital

Fund Projects Fund Total

REVENUES

Fines & Fees 2,916.97 - 2,916.97

Interest 19,907.86 2,954.84 22,862.70

Miscellaneous 1,271.55 - 1,271.55

Total Revenues 24,096.38 2,954.84 27,051.22

EXPENDITURES

Personnel 262,220.66$ -$ 262,220.66$

Operating 395,038.80 - 395,038.80

Library Materials 109,691.25 - 109,691.25

Capital Outlay 19,036.19 51,825.74 70,861.93

Other Expenditures 1,027.25 - 1,027.25

Total Expenditures 787,014.15 51,825.74 838,839.89

Net Change in Fund Balances (762,917.77) (48,870.90) (811,788.67)

FUND BALANCES

Beginning of the year 5,852,384.76 760,948.44 6,613,333.20

End of the period 5,089,466.99$ 712,077.54$ 5,801,544.53$

3-1

13



Supplementary Information

14



Cash Account               Invested

201-1101000 - Petty Cash 500.00

201-1101100 - Cash in Registers 150.00

201-1102080 - Village B&T Donation #9821 3,047.57

201-1102030 - Village B&T Donation #6718 67,223.45

201-1102040 - Village B&T Donation #9878 236,150.14

201-1102060 - Village B&T Checking #0289 277,018.31

201-1102050 - Wintrust Brokerage 3.34

201-1102079 - Illinois Funds # 2591 5,120,258.38

202-1102079 - Illinois Funds # 2591 712,077.54

5,832,335.92

201-1102070 - INB E-Pay 1,000.00

Total Invested 6,469,254.47$

Des Plaines Public Library

Treasurer's Report as of January 31, 2025

4-1

15



Beginning M.T.D. Ending

Balance Changes Balance

General Fund

Assets

1101000 - Petty Cash 500.00 0.00 500.00

1101100 - Cash in Registers 0.00 150.00 150.00

1102030 - Village B&T Donation #6718 7,031.66 60,191.79 67,223.45

1102040 - Village B&T Donation #9878 235,239.74 910.40 236,150.14

1102050 - Wintrust Brokerage 61,380.72 (61,377.38) 3.34

1102060 - Village B&T Checking #0289 698,072.79 (421,054.48) 277,018.31

1102070 - INB E-Pay 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00

1102079 - Illinois Funds # 2591 5,238,133.66 (117,875.28) 5,120,258.38

1102080 - Village B&T Donation #9821 19,944.81 (16,897.24) 3,047.57

1118000 - Receivable - Property Taxes 6,251,585.00 0.00 6,251,585.00

1119301 - Prepaid Expense 15,761.59 (15,761.59) 0.00

12,528,649.97 (571,713.78) 11,956,936.19

Liabilities and Fund Balance

Liabilities

2401000 - Accounts Payable 184,069.79 191,203.99 375,273.78

2430707 - Due to Library Comp Abs 90,421.46 0.00 90,421.46

2450040 - Accrued Payroll 50,208.96 0.00 50,208.96

2470000 - Deferred Revenue - Property Tax 6,251,585.00 0.00 6,251,585.00

2471000 - Deferred Revenue - Other 99,980.00 0.00 99,980.00

6,676,265.21 191,203.99 6,867,469.20

Fund Balance

3730000 - Fund Balance - Unreserved 5,852,384.76 0.00 5,852,384.76

5,852,384.76 0.00 5,852,384.76

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 12,528,649.97 191,203.99 12,719,853.96

Excess Revenues Over Expenses 0.00 (762,917.77) (762,917.77)

Des Plaines Public Library

Balance Sheet as of January 31, 2025

5-1

16



Beginning M.T.D. Ending

Balance Changes Balance

Capital Projects Fund

Assets

1102060 - Village B&T Checking #0289 0.00 51,825.74 51,825.74

1102079 - Illinois Funds # 2591 771,131.85 (59,054.31) 712,077.54

771,131.85 (7,228.57) 763,903.28

Liabilities and Fund Balance

Liabilities

2401000 - Accounts Payable 10,183.41 41,642.33 51,825.74

10,183.41 41,642.33 51,825.74

Fund Balance

3730000 - Fund Balance - Unreserved 760,948.44 0.00 760,948.44

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 771,131.85 41,642.33 812,774.18

Excess Revenues Over Expenses 0.00 (48,870.90) (48,870.90)

Compensated Absences Fund

Assets

1120201 - Due From Library 90,421.46 0.00 90,421.46

90,421.46 0.00 90,421.46

Liabilities and Fund Balance

Liabilities

2450035 - Accrued ST-LT Comp Absence 90,421.46 0.00 90,421.46

90,421.46 0.00 90,421.46

Fund Balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 90,421.46 0.00 90,421.46

Excess Revenues Over Expenses 0.00 0.00 0.00

Des Plaines Public Library

Balance Sheet as of January 31, 2025

5-2

17



Beginning M.T.D. Ending

Balance Changes Balance

Fixed Assets Fund

Assets

1203000 - Fixed Assets - Improvements 2,400,172.00 0.00 2,400,172.00

1204201 - Fixed Assets - Library Equipment 1,658,808.60 0.00 1,658,808.60

1204300 - Fixed Assets - Vehicles 24,954.39 0.00 24,954.39

1207000 - Fixed Assets - Construction In Progress 95,151.37 0.00 95,151.37

1209900 - Fixed Assets -  Accumulated Depreciation (1,608,862.00) 0.00 (1,608,862.00)

2,570,224.36 0.00 2,570,224.36

Liabilities and Fund Balance

Liabilities

Fund Balance

3730000 - Fund Balance - Unreserved 2,570,224.36 0.00 2,570,224.36

2,570,224.36 0.00 2,570,224.36

Total Liabilities and Net Capital Assets 2,570,224.36 0.00 2,570,224.36

Excess Revenues Over Expenses 0.00 0.00 0.00

Long Term Liability Fund

Assets

1805920 - Deferred Outflows - IMRF 2,349,815.00 0.00 2,349,815.00

2,349,815.00 0.00 2,349,815.00

Liabilities and Fund Balance

Liabilities

2812092 - OPEB Liability 1,906,984.00 0.00 1,906,984.00

2973920 - Deferred Inflows - IMRF 145,812.00 0.00 145,812.00

2,052,796.00 0.00 2,052,796.00

Fund Balance

3730000 - Fund Balance - Unreserved 297,019.00 0.00 297,019.00

297,019.00 0.00 297,019.00

Total Liabilities and Net LT Liabilities 2,349,815.00 0.00 2,349,815.00

Excess Revenues Over Expenses 0.00 0.00 0.00

Des Plaines Public Library

Balance Sheet as of January 31, 2025

5-3

18



M.T.D. Y.T.D. Budgeted Budgeted Prct.

Collected Collected Amount Remaining Collected

General Fund

Taxes

201-4810036 - Property Taxes 2024 0.00 0.00 6,100,000.00 6,100,000.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 6,100,000.00 6,100,000.00 0.00

Intergovernmental

201-4810800 - Personal Property Replacement Tax 0.00 0.00 800,000.00 800,000.00 0.00

201-4822040 - State Grant - Per Capita 0.00 0.00 90,102.00 90,102.00 0.00

201-4822090 - Grant Revenue 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

201-4822095 - State Grant - Library 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 900,102.00 900,102.00 0.00

Fines & Fees

201-4850101 - Library Fees 1,205.87 1,205.87 15,000.00 13,794.13 8.04

201-4850201 - Copying Fees 1,335.00 1,335.00 15,000.00 13,665.00 8.90

201-4850203 - Lost Materials 54.35 54.35 0.00 (54.35) 0.00

201-4850207 - Non-Res Cards 81.75 81.75 1,400.00 1,318.25 5.84

201-4850208 - Meeting Room Fees 240.00 240.00 1,500.00 1,260.00 16.00

2,916.97 2,916.97 32,900.00 29,983.03 8.87

Special Programs & Events

201-4850215 - Friends of the Library Reimbursements 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00

Interest

201-4830010 - Gain/Loss on Investments (1,074.11) (1,074.11) 0.00 1,074.11 0.00

201-4890010 - Interest Income 20,981.97 20,981.97 150,000.00 129,018.03 13.99

19,907.86 19,907.86 150,000.00 130,092.14 13.27

Other Revenue

201-4899900 - Miscellaneous Revenue 244.20 244.20 70,000.00 69,755.80 0.35

201-4899910 - Vending Machine Revenue 0.00 0.00 500.00 500.00 0.00

201-4899920 - Library Donations 0.10 0.10 125,000.00 124,999.90 0.00

201-4899940 - Friends Book Sale 1,027.25 1,027.25 14,000.00 12,972.75 7.34

1,271.55 1,271.55 209,500.00 208,228.45 0.61

Total General Fund 24,096.38 24,096.38 7,397,502.00 7,373,405.62 0.33

Des Plaines Public Library
Revenue Report

For the 1 Month Ended January 31, 2025

6-1

19



M.T.D. Y.T.D. Budgeted Budgeted Prct.

Collected Collected Amount Remaining Collected

Capital Projects Fund

Interest

202-4890010 - Interest Income 2,954.84 2,954.84 75,000.00 72,045.16 3.94

2,954.84 2,954.84 75,000.00 75,000.00 0.00

Other Financing Sources

202-4898902 - Transfer from Library Fund 0.00 0.00 500,000.00 500,000.00 0.00

0.00 0.00 500,000.00 500,000.00 0.00

Total Capital Projects Fund 2,954.84 2,954.84 575,000.00 (572,045.16) (0.51)

Total of All Funds 27,051.22 27,051.22 7,972,502.00 7,945,450.78 0.34

Des Plaines Public Library
Revenue Report

For the 1 Month Ended January 31, 2025

6-2

20



M.T.D. Y.T.D. Budgeted Budgeted Prct.

Expended Expended Amount Remaining Expend.

General Fund

Salaries

5910100 - Full-time Salaries 207,658.88 207,658.88 2,922,134.00 2,714,475.12 7.11

5910200 - Part-time Salaries 54,561.78 54,561.78 1,042,061.00 987,499.22 5.24

262,220.66 262,220.66 3,964,195.00 3,701,974.34 6.61

Benefits

5918010 - Unemployment Compensation 0.00 0.00 15,000.00 15,000.00 0.00

5918020 - Employer Contribution - FICA 19,140.81 19,140.81 287,498.00 268,357.19 6.66

5918021 - Employer Contribution - IMRF 10,017.55 10,017.55 165,761.00 155,743.45 6.04

5918040 - Life Insurance Premiums 283.48 283.48 2,000.00 1,716.52 14.17

5918050 - PPO Insurance Premiums 85,266.60 85,266.60 624,436.00 539,169.40 13.65

5918051 - HMO Insurance Premiums 28,040.30 28,040.30 230,993.00 202,952.70 12.14

5918055 - Dental Insurance Premiums 4,523.77 4,523.77 33,161.00 28,637.23 13.64

5918070 - Workers Compensation 12,214.00 12,214.00 16,000.00 3,786.00 76.34

159,486.51 159,486.51 1,374,849.00 1,215,362.49 11.60

Contractual Services

5920100 - Legal Fees 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 0.00

5920110 - Professional Services 73,991.18 73,991.18 492,775.00 418,783.82 15.02

5920120 - Communication Services 3,001.88 3,001.88 47,500.00 44,498.12 6.32

5920140 - Integrated Library System 20,901.25 20,901.25 89,000.00 68,098.75 23.48

5920202 - Conferences 517.00 517.00 20,000.00 19,483.00 2.59

5920204 - Training 1,349.00 1,349.00 8,000.00 6,651.00 16.86

5920210 - Marketing 10,956.81 10,956.81 61,900.00 50,943.19 17.70

5920220 - Membership Dues 825.00 825.00 7,500.00 6,675.00 11.00

5920230 - Publication of Notices 0.00 0.00 200.00 200.00 0.00

5920990 - Property/Liability Insurance 53,816.72 53,816.72 70,000.00 16,183.28 76.88

5930010 - R&M Equipment 6,014.96 6,014.96 63,460.00 57,445.04 9.48

5930020 - R&M Buildings & Structures 10,040.25 10,040.25 119,849.00 109,808.75 8.38

5930030 - R&M Vehicles 0.00 0.00 4,500.00 4,500.00 0.00

5930210 - Rental of Equipment 3,463.30 3,463.30 22,820.00 19,356.70 15.18

5930320 - Cleaning/Custodial Services 9,785.00 9,785.00 78,500.00 68,715.00 12.46

5930490 - Refuse Contract 684.73 684.73 8,300.00 7,615.27 8.25

5930491 - Hazard Materials Disposal 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00

5960040 - Pre-Employment Testing 0.00 0.00 3,500.00 3,500.00 0.00

5960065 - Bank Fees 121.83 121.83 300.00 178.17 40.61

5960070 - Mileage 0.00 0.00 500.00 500.00 0.00

5960210 - Special Event Programming 9,484.54 9,484.54 66,000.00 56,515.46 14.37

5960990 - Misc. Contractual Services 30,598.84 30,598.84 136,405.00 105,806.16 22.43

235,552.29 235,552.29 1,312,009.00 1,076,456.71 17.95

Des Plaines Public Library
Expense Report

For the 1 Month Ended January 31, 2025

7-1

21



M.T.D. Y.T.D. Budgeted Budgeted Prct.

Expended Expended Amount Remaining Expend.

Commodities

5970100 - Supplies 11,515.65 11,515.65 105,770.00 94,254.35 10.89

5970110 - Meals 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.00

5970170 - Janitorial 1,564.75 1,564.75 18,800.00 17,235.25 8.32

5970260 - Postage & Parcel 1,000.00 1,000.00 16,500.00 15,500.00 6.06

5970500 - Water Bill 0.00 0.00 8,400.00 8,400.00 0.00

5970600 - Ebooks/Books 19,646.75 19,646.75 304,898.00 285,251.25 6.44

5970610 - E-audio/Audio 6,221.55 6,221.55 57,800.00 51,578.45 10.76

5970620 - E-Subscriptions/Subscriptions 9,063.94 9,063.94 53,930.00 44,866.06 16.81

5970630 - Visual Materials 22,209.89 22,209.89 200,900.00 178,690.11 11.06

5970640 - Databases 36,299.92 36,299.92 160,000.00 123,700.08 22.69

5970810 - Natural Gas 2,168.80 2,168.80 28,000.00 25,831.20 7.75

5970850 - Gasoline 0.00 0.00 600.00 600.00 0.00

5970900 - Equipment < $10,000 0.00 0.00 4,800.00 4,800.00 0.00

109,691.25 109,691.25 963,398.00 853,706.75 11.39

Capital Expenditures

5980300 - Improvements 430.00 430.00 12,000.00 11,570.00 3.58

5980400 - Equipment 245.00 245.00 14,400.00 14,155.00 1.70

5980410 - Computer Hardware 3,450.00 3,450.00 16,200.00 12,750.00 21.30

5980420 - Computer Software 14,911.19 14,911.19 92,250.00 77,338.81 16.16

5980600 - Furniture & Fixtures 0.00 0.00 76,800.00 76,800.00 0.00

19,036.19 19,036.19 211,650.00 192,613.81 8.99

Other Funding Activities

5990900 - Per Capita Grant Expenditures 0.00 0.00 90,102.00 90,102.00 0.00

5990940 - Trans to Library Capital Proj. Fund 0.00 0.00 500,000.00 500,000.00 0.00

5999940 - Friends Books Sale 1,027.25 1,027.25 0.00 (1,027.25) 0.00

1,027.25 1,027.25 590,102.00 589,074.75 0.17

Total General Fund Expenditures 787,014.15 787,014.15 8,491,203.00 7,704,188.85 9.27

Capital Projects Fund

Capital Expenditures

5980300 - Improvements 0.00 0.00 310,000.00 310,000.00 0.00

5980400 - Equipment 51,825.74 51,825.74 171,000.00 171,000.00 0.00

5980410 - Computer Hardware 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

5980420 - Computer Software 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

5980430 - Makerspace Donation Expenses 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

5980600 - Furniture and Fixtures 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

51,825.74 51,825.74 481,000.00 (51,825.74) 0.00

Total Capital Projects Fund Expenditures 51,825.74 51,825.74 481,000.00 429,174.26 10.77

Total of All Funds 838,839.89 838,839.89 8,972,203.00 8,133,363.11 9.35

Des Plaines Public Library
Expense Report

For the 1 Month Ended January 31, 2025

7-2

22



Check Number Check Date Payee Amount

Vendor Checks

9008 02/20/25 ABT ELECTRONIC 2,526.00

20585 02/20/25 4imprint, Inc 7,307.20

20586 02/20/25 ABT ELECTRONIC 1,169.00

20587 02/20/25 AQUARIUM ADVENTURE 320.00

20588 02/20/25 Assential Therapies Inc 75.00

20589 02/20/25 BAKER & TAYLOR 17,928.94

20590 02/20/25 CHILDREN'S PLUS, INC. 127.58

20591 02/20/25 Cindy Lynn Crosby 285.00

20592 02/20/25 CivicPlus LLC 5,250.00

20593 02/20/25 COLLEY ELEVATOR COMPANY 2,182.50

20594 02/20/25 COOPERATIVE COMPUTER SERVICES 20,901.25

20595 02/20/25 CRYSTAL MAINTENANCE SERVICES CORP 4,892.50

20596 02/20/25 D & Z HOUSE OF BOOKS INCORPORATED 713.65

20597 02/20/25 EBSCO INFORMATION SERVICES 294.00

20598 02/20/25 Ethan Masters 50.00

20599 02/20/25 FITTLE, LLC 1,360.00

20600 02/20/25 FLOOD BROTHERS DISPOSAL & RECYCLING SERVICES 684.73

20601 02/20/25 FOX VALLEY FIRE & SAFETY 177.75

20602 02/20/25 GARVEY'S OFFICE PRODUCTS 1,564.75

20603 02/20/25 Historic Voices 637.00

20604 02/20/25 IMAGE SYSTEMS & BUSINESS SOLUTIONS, LLC. 1,656.12

20605 02/20/25 J&S PLUMBING, INC. 1,225.00

20606 02/20/25 Jackie Cooper 50.00

20607 02/20/25 Jessie Zabarsky 350.00

20608 02/20/25 JOHN G DONAHUE 180.00

20609 02/20/25 KANOPY 8,000.00

20610 02/20/25 LACONI, INC 150.00

20611 02/20/25 Larry Huffman 60.00

20612 02/20/25 Lauterbach & Amen, LLP 1,655.00

20613 02/20/25 LIBRARIESFIRST 675.00

20614 02/20/25 LIBRARY IDEAS LLC 5,000.00

20615 02/20/25 LIMRICC 131,502.14

20616 02/20/25 MANGO LANGUAGES 3,969.00

20617 02/20/25 Marlin Leasing Corp 1,864.50

20618 02/20/25 MIDWEST TAPE 7,496.03

20619 02/20/25 MIDWEST TAPE 7,459.64

20620 02/20/25 MNI 752.80

20621 02/20/25 OAKBROOK MECHANICAL SERVICES 3,230.00

20622 02/20/25 OCLC, INC. 1,331.34

20623 02/20/25 OUTSOURCE SOLUTIONS GROUP, INC. 85,634.48

20624 02/20/25 Playaway Products LLC 2,585.55

20625 02/20/25 RAILS 12,514.00

20626 02/20/25 Rani Dance Co. 550.00

20627 02/20/25 Remedy Alternative Care Clinic LLC 250.00

20628 02/20/25 Sam Barone 100.00

20629 02/20/25 SCHOLASTIC LIBRARY PUBLISHING 6,151.00

20630 02/20/25 Senior Tech Support 250.00

20631 02/20/25 Sentrum Marketing, LLC 56.90

20632 02/20/25 THOMAS KLISE/CRIMSON MULTIMEDIA 460.74

20633 02/20/25 THOMSON REUTERS-WEST 27.80

20634 02/20/25 UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE 9,999.00

20635 02/20/25 WP Company LLC 2,029.65

20636 02/21/25 COLLEY ELEVATOR COMPANY 430.00

20637 02/21/25 EDWARDS ENGINEERING SERVICE 50,282.50

20638 02/21/25 Elara Energy Services 794.74

20639 02/21/25 FACILITY GATEWAY CORPORATION 3,298.00

20640 02/21/25 FOX VALLEY FIRE & SAFETY 729.00

Des Plaines Public Library

Check List
All Bank Accounts

January 18, 2025 - February 21, 2025

8-1 23



Check Number Check Date Payee Amount

20641 02/21/25 NETBASE SYSTEMS SOLUTIONS PLLC 748.50

20642 02/21/25 PARTITION PROS 385.00

20643 02/21/25 Siemens Industry, Inc. 1,413.00

20644 02/21/25 TODAY'S BUSINESS SOLUTIONS INC 391.84

50181 01/31/25 BANKCARD SERVICES 21,372.04

50182 01/31/25 NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOLUTIONS 150.00

50183 01/31/25 ADP 1,016.47

50184 01/31/25 IMRF 23,654.09

50185 01/31/25 NICOR GAS 2,168.80

50186 01/31/25 VERIZON WIRELESS 863.42

50187 01/31/25 COMCAST CABLE 725.46

50188 01/31/25 COMCAST CABLE 1,376.53

50189 01/31/25 COMCAST CABLE 36.47

50190 01/31/25 NEOFUNDS BY NEOPOST 1,000.00

50191 01/31/25 FRIENDS OF THE DES PLAINES PUBLIC LIBRARY 1,027.25

Vendor Check Total 477,525.65

Check List Total 477,525.65

Check count = 72

Des Plaines Public Library

Check List
All Bank Accounts

January 18, 2025 - February 21, 2025

8-2 24



Payee/Account # Account Description Description Amount
Check

Number Check Date
Check

Amount

Vendor Checks

ABT ELECTRONIC 9008 02/20/25 2,526.00

201-5980410 Computer Hardware INV 0128501BWXF 2,526.00

4imprint, Inc 20585 02/20/25 7,307.20

201-5970100 Supplies 4imprint, Inc 7,307.20

ABT ELECTRONIC 20586 02/20/25 1,169.00

201-5980400 Equipment INV 0116501WNUC 245.00

201-5980410 Computer Hardware INV 0123501ZQQY 924.00

AQUARIUM ADVENTURE 20587 02/20/25 320.00

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 17816 160.00

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 17690 160.00

Assential Therapies Inc 20588 02/20/25 75.00

201-5960210 Special Event Programming Assential Therapies Inc 75.00

BAKER & TAYLOR 20589 02/20/25 17,928.94

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038856062 76.44

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038856062 409.46

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038854973 1,091.08

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038854974 156.85

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038837221 11.75

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038837221 155.52

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038855020 16.45

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038855020 110.06

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038847846 119.33

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038847846 486.42

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038852348 98.65

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038847692 107.56

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038847692 479.18

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038835507 17.25

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038835507 69.75

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038846707 38.40

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038846707 214.82

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038817370 5.04

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038817370 16.78

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038829521 39.87

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038829521 48.48

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038817537 5.05

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038817537 10.32

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038804529 14.86

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038804529 32.74

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038810059 19.92

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038810059 77.09

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038800916 16.26

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038800916 78.05

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038816952 14.94

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038816952 38.42

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038817529 10.88

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038817529 29.38

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038842930 92.62

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038842930 354.86

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038847719 143.34

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038847719 311.76

Des Plaines Public Library

Vendor Checks Report
All Bank Accounts

January 2025

9-1 25



Payee/Account # Account Description Description Amount
Check

Number Check Date
Check

Amount

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038841578 41.00

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038841578 129.11

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038840374 44.82

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038840374 103.10

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038840251 67.57

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038840251 272.22

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038847108 461.82

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038847109 77.40

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038841328 594.51

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038806073 13.29

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038806073 15.16

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038817481 5.39

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038817481 12.13

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038841329 94.90

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038800936 16.47

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038800936 105.15

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038826129 79.42

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038826129 388.69

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038782152 80.03

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038782152 368.11

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038781537 4.15

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038781537 16.14

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038765518 5.05

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038765518 4.85

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038765512 2.69

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038765512 5.34

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038781382 13.11

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038781382 65.85

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038777316 20.19

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038777316 103.12

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038798033 56.84

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038798033 257.83

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038777904 18.80

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038777904 192.80

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038751408 533.42

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038797605 54.95

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038797604 370.99

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038784980 78.79

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038784979 624.60

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038770031 13.91

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038770031 43.78

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038778704 2.69

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038778704 6.06

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038793398 30.06

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038793398 65.54

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038801092 22.10

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038801092 83.57

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038813067 21.46

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038813067 179.08

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038814735 163.24

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038784879 4.43

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038784879 10.31

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038810046 32.15

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038810046 138.94

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038806053 187.59

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038806052 1,152.43

Des Plaines Public Library

Vendor Checks Report
All Bank Accounts

January 2025

9-2 26



Payee/Account # Account Description Description Amount
Check

Number Check Date
Check

Amount

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038813686 57.75

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038813685 408.23

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038826153 796.15

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038833634 38.15

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038833633 338.44

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038815747 31.01

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038815747 40.46

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038801056 2.69

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038801056 12.99

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038793390 6.09

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038793390 16.42

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038793454 2.35

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038793454 8.40

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038793433 4.15

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038793433 17.28

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038815405 102.45

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038815404 691.64

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038826154 130.15

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038806085 31.01

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038806085 39.98

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038821894 103.80

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038821894 381.40

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038811747 22.15

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038811747 27.27

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038824595 123.27

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038824595 726.37

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038831995 115.26

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038831995 555.47

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 2038832374 97.32

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 2038832374 424.07

CHILDREN'S PLUS, INC. 20590 02/20/25 127.58

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 255734 37.94

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 255494 19.58

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 255238 15.99

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 255030 33.53

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 254749 20.54

Cindy Lynn Crosby 20591 02/20/25 285.00

201-5960210 Special Event Programming Cindy Lynn Crosby 285.00

CivicPlus LLC 20592 02/20/25 5,250.00

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 323008 5,250.00

COLLEY ELEVATOR COMPANY 20593 02/20/25 2,182.50

201-5930020 R&M Buildings & Structures INV 274195 480.00

201-5930020 R&M Buildings & Structures INV 274473 698.00

201-5930020 R&M Buildings & Structures INV 273973 1,004.50

COOPERATIVE COMPUTER SERVICES 20594 02/20/25 20,901.25

201-5920140 Integrated Library System INV 2365 20,901.25

CRYSTAL MAINTENANCE SERVICES CORP 20595 02/20/25 4,892.50

201-5930320 Cleaning/Custodial Services INV 32518 4,892.50

D & Z HOUSE OF BOOKS INCORPORATED 20596 02/20/25 713.65

Des Plaines Public Library

Vendor Checks Report
All Bank Accounts

January 2025

9-3 27



Payee/Account # Account Description Description Amount
Check

Number Check Date
Check

Amount

201-5970620 E-Subscriptions/Subscriptions INV 2025/ I000989 713.65

EBSCO INFORMATION SERVICES 20597 02/20/25 294.00

201-5970620 E-Subscriptions/Subscriptions INV 2501463 294.00

Ethan Masters 20598 02/20/25 50.00

201-5960210 Special Event Programming Ethan Masters 50.00

FITTLE, LLC 20599 02/20/25 1,360.00

201-5930210 Rental of Equipment INV 6756406 1,360.00

FLOOD BROTHERS DISPOSAL & RECYCLING SERVICES 20600 02/20/25 684.73

201-5930490 Refuse Contract INV 7949616 684.73

FOX VALLEY FIRE & SAFETY 20601 02/20/25 177.75

201-5930020 R&M Buildings & Structures INV IN00742595 177.75

GARVEY'S OFFICE PRODUCTS 20602 02/20/25 1,564.75

201-5970170 Janitorial INV WO-608484-1 1,067.25

201-5970170 Janitorial INV WO-620190-1 497.50

Historic Voices 20603 02/20/25 637.00

201-5960210 Special Event Programming Historic Voices 637.00

IMAGE SYSTEMS & BUSINESS SOLUTIONS, LLC. 20604 02/20/25 1,656.12

201-5930010 R&M Equipment INV 412956 389.40

201-5930010 R&M Equipment INV 412955 1,266.72

J&S PLUMBING, INC. 20605 02/20/25 1,225.00

201-5930020 R&M Buildings & Structures INV 239208 1,225.00

Jackie Cooper 20606 02/20/25 50.00

201-5960210 Special Event Programming Jackie Cooper 50.00

Jessie Zabarsky 20607 02/20/25 350.00

201-5960210 Special Event Programming Jessie Zabarsky 350.00

JOHN G DONAHUE 20608 02/20/25 180.00

201-5960210 Special Event Programming JOHN G DONAHUE 180.00

KANOPY 20609 02/20/25 8,000.00

201-5970630 Visual Materials INV KDEP-23582 8,000.00

LACONI, INC 20610 02/20/25 150.00

201-5920220 Membership Dues LACONI, INC 150.00

Larry Huffman 20611 02/20/25 60.00

201-5960210 Special Event Programming Larry Huffman 60.00

Lauterbach & Amen, LLP 20612 02/20/25 1,655.00

201-5920110 Professional Services INV 100157 1,655.00

LIBRARIESFIRST 20613 02/20/25 675.00

201-5920220 Membership Dues INV 8895 675.00

LIBRARY IDEAS LLC 20614 02/20/25 5,000.00

Des Plaines Public Library

Vendor Checks Report
All Bank Accounts

January 2025

9-4 28



Payee/Account # Account Description Description Amount
Check

Number Check Date
Check

Amount

201-5970610 E-audio/Audio INV 116871 5,000.00

LIMRICC 20615 02/20/25 131,502.14

201-2401002 Payroll Liabilities LIMRICC 65,295.17

201-2401002 Payroll Liabilities LIMRICC 66,206.97

MANGO LANGUAGES 20616 02/20/25 3,969.00

201-5970640 Databases MANGO LANGUAGES 3,969.00

Marlin Leasing Corp 20617 02/20/25 1,864.50

201-5930210 Rental of Equipment INV 40111374 1,864.50

MIDWEST TAPE 20618 02/20/25 7,496.03

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 506675910 295.08

201-5970630 Visual Materials INV 506675910 1,013.45

201-5970630 Visual Materials INV 506672680 59.99

201-5970630 Visual Materials INV 506672077 88.39

201-5970630 Visual Materials INV 506672079 19.99

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 506675913 129.15

201-5970630 Visual Materials INV 506675913 706.42

201-5970610 E-audio/Audio INV 506702981 67.99

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 506675914 4.52

201-5970610 E-audio/Audio INV 506675914 112.98

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 506675911 4.13

201-5970610 E-audio/Audio INV 506675911 14.39

201-5970630 Visual Materials INV 506702983 238.52

201-5970630 Visual Materials INV 506402982 364.30

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 506644028 253.57

201-5970630 Visual Materials INV 506644028 1,166.37

201-5970630 Visual Materials INV 506624696 197.94

201-5970630 Visual Materials INV 506624698 11.99

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 506644024 16.52

201-5970610 E-audio/Audio INV 506644024 64.76

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 506644026 6.78

201-5970610 E-audio/Audio INV 506644026 102.97

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 506644027 298.52

201-5970630 Visual Materials INV 506644027 1,274.41

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 506560387 9.60

201-5970630 Visual Materials INV 506560387 12.73

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 506560386 29.38

201-5970610 E-audio/Audio INV 506560386 559.87

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 506560384 16.52

201-5970610 E-audio/Audio INV 506560384 53.06

201-5970610 E-audio/Audio INV 506560257 67.99

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 506582824 4.52

201-5970610 E-audio/Audio INV 506582824 89.98

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 506613409 8.26

201-5970610 E-audio/Audio INV 506613409 21.58

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 506613831 2.26

201-5970610 E-audio/Audio INV 506613831 45.99

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 506613832 19.20

201-5970630 Visual Materials INV 506613832 41.96

MIDWEST TAPE 20619 02/20/25 7,459.64

201-5970630 Visual Materials INV 506691007 7,459.64

Des Plaines Public Library

Vendor Checks Report
All Bank Accounts

January 2025

9-5 29



Payee/Account # Account Description Description Amount
Check

Number Check Date
Check

Amount

MNI 20620 02/20/25 752.80

201-5970640 Databases INV 527552-00 423.90

201-5970640 Databases INV 851737-00 328.90

OAKBROOK MECHANICAL SERVICES 20621 02/20/25 3,230.00

201-5930020 R&M Buildings & Structures INV 41835 3,230.00

OCLC, INC. 20622 02/20/25 1,331.34

201-5980420 Computer Software INV 1000417858 1,331.34

OUTSOURCE SOLUTIONS GROUP, INC. 20623 02/20/25 85,634.48

201-5920110 Professional Services INV 82506 35,455.59

201-5980420 Computer Software INV 82507 653.40

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 82508 2,318.00

201-5980420 Computer Software INV 82508 4,435.20

201-5960990 Misc. Contractual Services INV 82126 2,318.00

201-5980420 Computer Software INV 82126 4,345.30

201-5980420 Computer Software INV 82127 653.40

201-5920110 Professional Services INV 82125 35,455.59

Playaway Products LLC 20624 02/20/25 2,585.55

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 489587 1,117.81

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 489541 1,467.74

RAILS 20625 02/20/25 12,514.00

201-5970640 Databases INV 13809 3,929.00

201-5970640 Databases INV 13598 7,500.00

201-5970640 Databases INV 13560 1,085.00

Rani Dance Co. 20626 02/20/25 550.00

201-5960210 Special Event Programming Rani Dance Co. 550.00

Remedy Alternative Care Clinic LLC 20627 02/20/25 250.00

201-5960210 Special Event Programming
Remedy Alternative Care Clinic
LLC

250.00

Sam Barone 20628 02/20/25 100.00

201-5960210 Special Event Programming Sam Barone 100.00

SCHOLASTIC LIBRARY PUBLISHING 20629 02/20/25 6,151.00

201-5970640 Databases INV 67492094 6,151.00

Senior Tech Support 20630 02/20/25 250.00

201-5960210 Special Event Programming Senior Tech Support 250.00

Sentrum Marketing, LLC 20631 02/20/25 56.90

201-5970600 Ebooks/Books INV 8231224B0659R-2 56.90

THOMAS KLISE/CRIMSON MULTIMEDIA 20632 02/20/25 460.74

201-5970630 Visual Materials INV 018899 135.32

201-5970630 Visual Materials INV 018731 325.42

THOMSON REUTERS-WEST 20633 02/20/25 27.80

201-5970640 Databases INV 851353592 27.80

UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE 20634 02/20/25 9,999.00

Des Plaines Public Library

Vendor Checks Report
All Bank Accounts

January 2025

9-6 30



Payee/Account # Account Description Description Amount
Check

Number Check Date
Check

Amount

201-5920210 Marketing
UNITED STATES POSTAL
SERVICE

9,999.00

WP Company LLC 20635 02/20/25 2,029.65

201-5970640 Databases INV 4223 2,029.65

COLLEY ELEVATOR COMPANY 20636 02/21/25 430.00

201-5980300 Improvements INV 274176 430.00

EDWARDS ENGINEERING SERVICE 20637 02/21/25 50,282.50

202-5980400 Equipment
EDWARDS ENGINEERING
SERVICE

50,282.50

Elara Energy Services 20638 02/21/25 794.74

202-5980400 Equipment INV 21447-8 530.00

202-5980400 Equipment INV 21447-9 264.74

FACILITY GATEWAY CORPORATION 20639 02/21/25 3,298.00

201-5930010 R&M Equipment INV 239521 3,298.00

FOX VALLEY FIRE & SAFETY 20640 02/21/25 729.00

201-5930020 R&M Buildings & Structures INV IN00732981 729.00

NETBASE SYSTEMS SOLUTIONS PLLC 20641 02/21/25 748.50

202-5980400 Equipment INV 012124 748.50

PARTITION PROS 20642 02/21/25 385.00

201-5930020 R&M Buildings & Structures INV 4001 385.00

Siemens Industry, Inc. 20643 02/21/25 1,413.00

201-5930020 R&M Buildings & Structures INV 5331752283 1,413.00

TODAY'S BUSINESS SOLUTIONS INC 20644 02/21/25 391.84

201-5930010 R&M Equipment INV 01212565 391.84

Check List Total 424,135.12

Des Plaines Public Library

Vendor Checks Report
All Bank Accounts

January 2025

9-7 31



ACH Number ACH Date Payee Amount

Vendor Checks

50181 01/31/25 BANKCARD SERVICES 21,372.04

50182 01/31/25 NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOLUTIONS 150.00

50183 01/31/25 ADP 1,016.47

50184 01/31/25 IMRF 23,654.09

50185 01/31/25 NICOR GAS 2,168.80

50186 01/31/25 VERIZON WIRELESS 863.42

50187 01/31/25 COMCAST CABLE 725.46

50188 01/31/25 COMCAST CABLE 1,376.53

50189 01/31/25 COMCAST CABLE 36.47

50190 01/31/25 NEOFUNDS BY NEOPOST 1,000.00

50191 01/31/25 FRIENDS OF THE DES PLAINES PUBLIC LIBRARY 1,027.25

Vendor Check Total 53,390.53

Check List Total 53,390.53

Check count = 11

Des Plaines Public Library

ACH Register
All Bank Accounts

January 1, 2025 - January 31, 2025

10-1 32



Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch
Ap

ril
M

ay
Ju

ne
Ju

ly
Au

gu
st

Se
pt

em
be

r
O

ct
ob

er
N

ov
em

be
r

D
ec

em
be

r
B

a
la

n
c

e
 S

h
e

e
t

C
as

h 
& 

In
ve

st
m

en
ts

$
7,

03
2,

43
5

R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 (

M
-T

-D
)

Pr
op

er
ty

 T
ax

es
-  

 
30

,7
70

30
,7

70
-  

 
-  

 
-  

 
-  

 
-  

 
-  

 
-  

 
-  

 
-  

 
-  

 
-  

 

E
x

p
e

n
s

e
s

 (
M

-T
-D

)

Pa
yr

ol
l &

 B
en

ef
its

26
0,

38
0

O
th

er
 E

xp
en

se
34

1,
12

1
C

ha
ng

e 
in

 A
/P

 &
 A

JE
's

(1
,7

32
,8

67
)

(1
,1

31
,3

66
)

-  
 

-  
 

-  
 

-  
 

-  
 

-  
 

-  
 

-  
 

-  
 

-  
 

-  
 

N
et

 In
cr

ea
se

/(D
ec

re
as

e)
1,

16
2,

13
6

-  
 

-  
 

-  
 

-  
 

-  
 

-  
 

-  
 

-  
 

-  
 

-  
 

-  
 

D
E

S
 P

L
A

IN
E

S
 P

U
B

L
IC

 L
IB

R
A

R
Y

C
A

S
H

 F
L

O
W

 S
U

M
M

A
R

Y

F
o

r 
th

e
 Y

e
a

r 
E

n
d

e
d

 D
e
c

e
m

b
e
r 

3
1
, 

2
0
2

5

O
th

er
 R

ev
en

ue

1
1-

1

33



Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch
Ap

ril
M

ay
Ju

ne
Ju

ly
Au

gu
st

Se
pt

em
be

r
O

ct
ob

er
N

ov
em

be
r

D
ec

em
be

r
B

a
la

n
c

e
 S

h
e

e
t

C
as

h 
& 

In
ve

st
m

en
ts

$
5,

40
7,

21
3

5,
75

3,
29

8
7,

73
0,

71
4

7,
20

5,
56

1
6,

72
3,

97
3

6,
66

7,
00

6
7,

57
1,

88
5

8,
66

8,
37

5
7,

87
5,

96
9

8,
00

7,
40

5
7,

61
2,

25
4

7,
03

2,
43

5

R
e
v
e
n

u
e

 (
M

-T
-D

)

Pr
op

er
ty

 T
ax

es
-

79
2,

11
0

2,
52

1,
44

9
(2

2,
98

4)
10

,0
54

1,
21

1,
64

5
1,

41
5,

06
1

85
4,

84
3

- 
- 

12
1,

32
2

23
,7

64
89

,4
66

26
,8

00
10

2,
12

0
52

9,
00

2
13

7,
67

1
33

8,
26

5
38

,8
78

38
,3

59
23

1,
43

1
30

,7
70

12
1,

32
2

81
5,

87
4

2,
61

0,
91

5
26

,8
00

79
,1

36
53

9,
05

7
1,

34
9,

31
6

1,
75

3,
32

7
38

,8
78

89
3,

20
2

23
1,

43
1

30
,7

70

E
x
p

e
n

s
e
s
 (

M
-T

-D
)

Pa
yr

ol
l &

 B
en

ef
its

34
2,

60
7

40
3,

25
3

26
2,

94
3

34
0,

86
3

52
0,

40
0

34
0,

97
6

27
2,

92
6

40
5,

05
0

27
2,

08
3

27
7,

58
7

50
8,

25
8

35
4,

02
0

O
th

er
 E

xp
en

se
47

7,
94

7
24

7,
20

4
26

0,
93

5
23

6,
78

3
18

7,
80

5
11

4,
01

6
26

0,
70

1
45

2,
27

8
37

1,
19

9
45

2,
15

0
23

6,
02

4
24

7,
48

1
C

ha
ng

e 
in

 A
/P

 &
 A

JE
's

(2
36

,1
46

)
(1

80
,6

68
)

10
9,

62
1

(2
5,

69
3)

(1
47

,4
81

)
14

1,
03

2
(8

9,
19

0)
(2

00
,4

91
)

18
8,

00
2

32
,0

29
(1

17
,6

99
)

9,
08

7
58

4,
40

8
46

9,
79

0
63

3,
49

9
55

1,
95

3
56

0,
72

4
59

6,
02

4
44

4,
43

7
65

6,
83

7
83

1,
28

4
76

1,
76

6
62

6,
58

3
61

0,
58

8

N
et

 In
cr

ea
se

/(D
ec

re
as

e)
(4

63
,0

86
)

34
6,

08
4

1,
97

7,
41

6
(5

25
,1

53
)

(4
81

,5
88

)
(5

6,
96

7)
90

4,
88

0
1,

09
6,

49
0

(7
92

,4
06

)
13

1,
43

6
(3

95
,1

52
)

(5
79

,8
18

)

D
E

S
 P

L
A

IN
E

S
 P

U
B

L
IC

 L
IB

R
A

R
Y

C
A

S
H

 F
L

O
W

 S
U

M
M

A
R

Y

F
o

r 
th

e
 Y

e
a
r 

E
n

d
e

d
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e

r 
3
1
, 

2
0
2
4

O
th

er
 R

ev
en

ue

1
1-

1

34



2025 2024

Collection Usage YTD

50k

75k

100k

125k

Patron Assistance YTDCollection Usage YTD 

122,063

Attendance YTD 

2025 2024

Patron Assistance YTD
5k

7.5k

10k

12.5k

15k

14,224
14,694

 
 
 

On January 2025

Bookings YTD

123,097

1%

NOTE: "Passive" social media stats have been removed from these counts beginning January 2025.  We expanded our reporting 
during the pandemic to account for the majority of activity occurring online, as requested on IPLAR.  This is non longer necessary. 
These stats DO still include attendance and bookings of Zoom based virtual programs. 

Bookings IN PERSON

In Person Events, Programs & Classes

0

100

272%

Attendance IN PERSON

In Person Events, Programs & Classes

0

1k

2k

Bookings ALL
2025 2024

All Events, Programs & Classes

0

500

Attendance ALL
2025 2024

ALL Events, Programs, Outreach & Classes

0

20k

40k

3%

50%
627

942

175

47

41%

41,774

24,574

1,405

2,534

80%

2025 2024

New Library Cards Issued YTD

0

100

200

New Library Cards Issued YTD

13%

Computer Usage YTD
 

2025 2024

Public

Wireless

0 1k 2k 3k 4k 5k

3,332

4,787

2,518

44%

12%2,823

2025 2024

Physical

Virtual

100k 200k 300k 400k

Traffic YTD

25,115

29,049

440,017

436,270 1%

16%

277

240

35



2025 2024

Collection Usage YTD

50k

75k

100k

125k

Patron Assistance YTDCollection Usage YTD 

122,063

Attendance YTD 

2025 2024

Patron Assistance YTD
5k

7.5k

10k

12.5k

15k

14,224
14,694

 
 
 

On January 2025

Bookings YTD

123,097

1%

NOTE: "Passive" social media stats have been removed from these counts beginning January 2025.  We expanded our reporting 
during the pandemic to account for the majority of activity occurring online, as requested on IPLAR.  This is non longer necessary. 
These stats DO still include attendance and bookings of Zoom based virtual programs. 

Bookings IN PERSON

In Person Events, Programs & Classes

0

100

272%

Attendance IN PERSON

In Person Events, Programs & Classes

0

1k

2k

Bookings ALL
2025 2024

All Events, Programs & Classes

0

500

Attendance ALL
2025 2024

ALL Events, Programs, Outreach & Classes

0

20k

40k

3%

50%
627

942

175

47

41%

41,774

24,574

1,405

2,534

80%

2025 2024

New Library Cards Issued YTD

0

100

200

New Library Cards Issued YTD

13%

Computer Usage YTD
 

2025 2024

Public

Wireless

0 1k 2k 3k 4k 5k

3,332

4,787

2,518

44%

12%2,823

2025 2024

Physical

Virtual

100k 200k 300k 400k

Traffic YTD

25,115

29,049

440,017

436,270 1%

16%

277

240

36



2025 Year to Date Statistics 
January 2025

Year to Date 2025 123,097                                      
Year to Date 2024 122,063                                      
% Change 1%

PATRON ASSISTANCE
Year to Date 2025 14,224                                         
Year to Date 2024 14,694                                         
% Change -3%

EVENTS, PROGRAMS, AND CLASSES- BOOKINGS
Year to Date 2025 942                                               
Year to Date 2024 627                                               
% Change 50%

EVENTS, PROGRAMS, OUTREACH, AND CLASSES-ATTENDANCE
Year to Date 2025 24,574                                         
Year to Date 2024 41,774                                         
% Change -41%

IN PERSON EVENTS
Bookings
Year to Date 2025 175
Year to Date 2024 47
% Change 272%

Attendance
Year to Date 2025 2,534
Year to Date 2024 1,405
% Change 80%

TRAFFIC
Physical Visits (gate count)
Year to Date 2025 29,049
Year to Date 2024 25,115
% Change 16%

Virtual Visits (catalog, website, mobile app)
Year to Date 2025 436,270
Year to Date 2024 440,017
% Change -1%

LIBRARY CARDS ISSUED
Year to Date new library cards 2025 240
Year to Date new library cards 2024 277
% Change -13%

COMPUTER USAGE
Public Computers
Year to Date 2025 4,787                                           
Year to Date 2024 3,332                                           
% Change 44%

Wireless
Year to Date 2025 2,823                                           
Year to Date 2024 2,518                                           
% Change 12%

COLLECTION USAGE

37



2
0

2
5

 S
TA

TI
ST

IC
S 

R
EP

O
R

T 
JA

N
FE

B
M

A
R

CH
A

PR
IL

M
A

Y
JU

N
E

JU
LY

A
U

G
U

ST
SE

PT
EM

BE
R

O
CT

O
BE

R
N

O
V

EM
BE

R
D

EC
EM

BE
R

Y
TD

CO
LL

EC
TI

O
N

 U
SA

G
E

Ph
ys

ica
l m

at
er

ia
ls 

54
,1

10
54

,1
10

E-
m

at
er

ia
ls 

18
,0

48
18

,0
48

ILL
 

60
5

60
5

D
at

ab
as

es
 

50
,3

34
50

,3
34

2
0

2
5

To
ta

l
1

2
3

,0
9

7
1

2
3

,0
9

7
Ph

ys
ica

l m
at

er
ia

ls
54

,0
66

54
,0

66
E-

m
at

er
ia

ls
17

,5
25

17
,5

25
ILL

77
5

77
5

D
at

ab
as

es
49

,6
97

49
,6

97
2

0
2

4
To

ta
l

1
2

2
,0

6
3

1
2

2
,0

6
3

PA
TR

O
N

 A
SS

IS
TA

N
CE

Yo
ut

h 
Se

rv
ice

s  
1,

93
4

1,
93

4
A

du
lt 

Se
rv

ice
s

6,
16

0
6,

16
0

Pa
tro

n 
A

cc
ou

nt
s

6,
04

2
6,

04
2

Se
cu

rit
y

88
88

2
0

2
5

To
ta

l
1

4
,2

2
4

1
4

,2
2

4
Yo

ut
h 

Se
rv

ice
s

2,
13

2
2,

13
2

A
du

lt 
Se

rv
ice

s
6,

29
9

6,
29

9
Pa

tro
n 

A
cc

ou
nt

s
6,

26
3

6,
26

3
Se

cu
rit

y
13

6
13

6
2

0
2

4
To

ta
l

1
4

,8
3

0
1

4
,6

9
4

EV
EN

TS
, P

R
O

G
R

A
M

S 
A

N
D

 C
LA

SS
ES

-B
O

O
K

IN
G

S
Yo

ut
h 

Se
rv

ice
s I

n 
Pe

rs
on

92
92

Yo
ut

h 
Se

rv
ice

s V
irt

ua
l

1
1

A
du

lt 
Se

rv
ice

s I
n 

Pe
rs

on
83

83
A

du
lt 

Se
rv

ice
s V

irt
ua

l 
6

6
O

ut
sid

e 
gr

ou
ps

16
16

Pu
bl

ic 
stu

dy
 ro

om
s 

74
4

74
4

2
0

2
5

To
ta

l
9

4
2

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
9

4
2

Yo
ut

h 
Se

rv
ice

s I
n 

Pe
rs

on
4

4
Yo

ut
h 

Se
rv

ice
s V

irt
ua

l
9

9
A

du
lt 

Se
rv

ice
s I

n 
Pe

rs
on

43
43

A
du

lt 
Se

rv
ice

s V
irt

ua
l 

2
2

O
ut

sid
e 

gr
ou

ps
0

0
Pu

bl
ic 

stu
dy

 ro
om

s 
56

9
56

9
2

0
2

4
To

ta
l

6
2

7
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

6
2

7

Yo
ut

h 
Se

rv
ice

s I
n 

Pe
rs

on
90

5
90

5
Yo

ut
h 

Se
rv

ice
s V

irt
ua

l
4,

17
1

4,
17

1
A

du
lt 

Se
rv

ice
s I

n 
Pe

rs
on

1,
62

9
1,

62
9

A
du

lt 
Se

rv
ice

s V
irt

ua
l 

15
,3

88
15

,3
88

O
ut

sid
e 

gr
ou

ps
 

26
0

26
0

Pu
bl

ic 
stu

dy
 ro

om
s 

1,
20

1
1,

20
1

O
ut

re
ac

h-
Yo

ut
h 

Se
rv

ice
s 

90
7

90
7

O
ut

re
ac

h-
A

du
lt 

Se
rv

ice
s 

11
3

11
3

2
0

2
5

To
ta

l
2

4
,5

7
4

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
2

4
,5

7
4

Yo
ut

h 
Se

rv
ice

s I
n 

Pe
rs

on
32

0
32

0
Yo

ut
h 

Se
rv

ice
s V

irt
ua

l
11

,6
24

11
,6

24
A

du
lt 

Se
rv

ice
s I

n 
Pe

rs
on

1,
08

5
1,

08
5

A
du

lt 
Se

rv
ice

s V
irt

ua
l 

26
,1

40
26

,1
40

O
ut

sid
e 

gr
ou

ps
 

23
7

23
7

Pu
bl

ic 
stu

dy
 ro

om
s 

1,
26

5
1,

26
5

O
ut

re
ac

h-
Yo

ut
h 

Se
rv

ice
s 

94
1

94
1

O
ut

re
ac

h-
A

du
lt 

Se
rv

ice
s 

16
2

16
2

2
0

2
4

To
ta

l
4

1
,7

7
4

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
4

1
,7

7
4

EV
EN

TS
, P

R
O

G
R

A
M

S,
 O

U
TR

EA
CH

 &
 C

LA
SS

ES
-A

TT
EN

D
A

N
CE

38



TR
A

FF
IC

2
0

2
5

Ph
ys

ica
l V

isi
ts 

(g
at

e 
co

un
t)

29
,0

49
2

9
,0

4
9

2
0

2
4

Ph
ys

ica
l V

isi
ts 

(g
at

e 
co

un
t)

25
,1

15
2

5
,1

1
5

2
0

2
5

Vi
rtu

al
 v

isi
ts 

(c
at

al
og

, w
eb

sit
e,

 m
ob

ile
 a

pp
) 

43
6,

27
0

4
3

6
,2

7
0

2
0

2
4

Vi
rtu

al
 v

isi
ts 

(c
at

al
og

, w
eb

sit
e,

 m
ob

ile
 a

pp
)

44
0,

01
7

4
4

0
,0

1
7

LI
BR

A
R

Y
 C

A
R

D
S 

IS
SU

ED
2

0
2

5
N

um
be

r o
f n

ew
 lib

ra
ry

 c
ar

ds
 

24
0

2
4

0
2

0
2

4
N

um
be

r o
f n

ew
 lib

ra
ry

 c
ar

ds
 

27
7

2
7

7

CO
M

PU
TE

R
 U

SA
G

E
Pu

bl
ic 

co
m

pu
te

rs
-Y

ou
th

 S
er

vic
es

1,
31

1
1,

31
1

Pu
bl

ic 
co

m
pu

te
rs

-A
du

lt
3,

47
6

3,
47

6
2

0
2

5
To

ta
l

4
,7

8
7

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
4

,7
8

7
Pu

bl
ic 

co
m

pu
te

rs
-Y

ou
th

 S
er

vic
es

78
7

78
7

Pu
bl

ic 
co

m
pu

te
rs

-A
du

lt
2,

54
5

2,
54

5
2

0
2

4
To

ta
l

3
,3

3
2

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
3

,3
3

2
W

ire
le

ss
 

2,
82

3
2,

82
3

2
0

2
5

To
ta

l
2

,8
2

3
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

2
,8

2
3

W
ire

le
ss

2,
51

8
2,

51
8

2
0

2
4

To
ta

l
2

,5
1

8
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

2
,5

1
8

39



On January 2025

COMINGS & GOINGS
GOING
David Whittingham - Readers' Services Manager

AROUND THE LIBRARYDPPL CELEBRATES

SNAPSHOT
MarCom's 
creative 
services 

department 
was pretty busy 
Iin the new year 

making new 
posters, fliers, 
signage, social 
media posts, 
videos and 
much more! 

Construction 
on The 

Canvas is 
COMPLETE! 

40



 JANUARY PROGRAM HIGHLIGHTS
YOUTHTEENADULT

41



IL
LI

N
O

IS
 P

U
B
LI

C
 L

IB
R
A
R
Y 

A
N

N
U

A
L 

R
EP

O
RT

 (
IP

LA
R
) 

  
 2

02
5

D
ES

 P
LA

IN
ES

 P
U

B
LI

C
 L

IB
R

A
R

Y

IP
LA

R

ID
E

N
TI

FI
C

A
TI

O
N

 (
1

.1
 -

 1
.3

1
)

Th
is

 s
ec

ti
o

n
 is

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

e 
ad

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
en

ti
ty

. 
"A

d
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

En
ti

ty
" 

is
 d

ef
in

ed
 a

s 
th

e 
ag

en
cy

 t
h

at
 i

s 
le

g
al

ly
 e

st
ab

lis
h

ed
u

n
d

er
 lo

ca
l o

r 
st

at
e 

la
w

 t
o 

p
ro

vi
d

e 
p

u
b

li
c 

lib
ra

ry
 s

er
vi

ce
 t

o
 t

h
e 

p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a 
lo

ca
l j

u
ri

sd
ic

ti
o

n
. 

Th
e 

ad
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

en
ti

ty
 m

ay
 h

av
e 

a
si

n
g

le
 o

u
tl

et
 o

r 
it

 m
ay

 h
av

e 
m

o
re

 t
h

an
 o

n
e 

o
u

tl
et

 (
an

 o
u

tl
et

 i
s 

a 
lo

ca
ti

o
n

, 
w

h
et

h
er

 a
 c

en
tr

al
 l

ib
ra

ry
, 

b
ra

n
ch

 o
r 

b
o

ok
m

o
b

ile
).

 T
h

e 
m

aj
o

ri
ty

of
 t

h
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 in
 t

h
is

 s
ec

ti
o

n
 i

s 
p

re
-f

ill
ed

. 
If

 i
n

fo
rm

at
io

n
 n

ee
d

s 
to

 b
e 

u
p

d
at

ed
, 

en
te

r 
th

e 
co

rr
ec

te
d

 i
n

fo
rm

at
io

n
 in

 t
h

e 
b

ox
 p

ro
vi

d
ed

on
 t

h
e 

n
ex

t 
lin

e 
o

f 
th

e 
su

rv
ey

.

1
.1

 I
S

L 
C

on
tr

ol
 #

 [
P

LS
 1

5
1

, 
P

LS
 7

0
1

]
3

0
2

2
6

1
.2

 I
S

L 
B

ra
n

ch
 #

 [
P

LS
 1

5
1

, 
P

LS
 7

0
1

]
0

0
1

.3
a

 F
S

C
S

 I
D

 [
P

LS
 1

5
0

, 
P

LS
 7

0
0

]
IL

0
1

3
8

1
.3

b
 F

S
C

S
_

S
EQ

 [
P

LS
 7

0
0

]
0

0
2

1
.4

a
 L

eg
al

 N
am

e 
of

 L
ib

ra
ry

 [
P

LS
 1

5
2

]
D

es
 P

la
in

es
 P

u
b

lic
 L

ib
ra

ry
1

.4
b

 I
f 

th
e 

li
b

ra
ry

's
 n

am
e 

h
as

 c
h

an
g

ed
, 

th
en

 e
n

te
r 

th
e 

u
p

d
at

ed
 a

n
sw

er
 h

er
e.

1
.4

c
 W

as
 t

h
is

 a
n

 o
ff

ic
ia

l n
am

e 
ch

an
g

e?
1

.5
a

 F
ac

ili
ty

 S
tr

ee
t 

A
d

d
re

ss
 [

P
LS

 1
5

3
]

1
5

0
1

 E
ll

in
w

o
o

d
 S

tr
ee

t
1

.5
b

 I
f 

th
e 

fa
ci

lit
y'

s 
st

re
et

 a
d

d
re

ss
 h

as
 c

h
an

g
ed

, 
th

en
 e

n
te

r 
th

e 
u

p
d

at
ed

 a
n

sw
er

 h
er

e.
1

.5
c

 W
as

 t
h

is
 a

 p
h

ys
ic

al
 l

oc
at

io
n

 c
h

an
g

e?
1

.6
a

 F
ac

ili
ty

 C
it

y 
[P

LS
 1

5
4

]
D

es
 P

la
in

es
1

.6
b

 I
f 

th
e 

fa
ci

li
ty

's
 c

it
y 

h
as

 c
h

an
g

ed
, 

th
en

 e
n

te
r 

th
e 

u
p

d
at

ed
 a

n
sw

er
 h

er
e.

1
.7

a
 F

ac
ili

ty
 Z

ip
 [

P
LS

 1
5

5
]

6
0

0
1

6
1

.7
b

 I
f 

th
e 

fa
ci

li
ty

's
 z

ip
 c

od
e 

h
as

 c
h

an
g

ed
, 

th
en

 e
n

te
r 

th
e 

u
p

d
at

ed
 a

n
sw

er
 h

er
e.

1
.8

a
 M

ai
lin

g
 A

d
d

re
ss

 [
P

LS
 1

5
7

]
1

5
0

1
 E

ll
in

w
o

o
d

 S
tr

ee
t

1
.8

b
 I

f 
th

e 
fa

ci
li

ty
's

 m
ai

li
n

g
 a

d
d

re
ss

 h
as

 c
h

an
g

ed
, 

th
en

 e
n

te
r 

th
e 

u
p

d
at

ed
 a

n
sw

er
 h

er
e.

1
.9

a
 M

ai
lin

g
 C

it
y 

[P
LS

 1
5

8
]

D
es

 P
la

in
es

1
.9

b
 I

f 
th

e 
fa

ci
li

ty
's

 m
ai

li
n

g
 c

it
y 

h
as

 c
h

an
g

ed
, 

th
en

 e
n

te
r 

th
e 

u
p

d
at

ed
 a

n
sw

er
 h

er
e.

1
.1

0
a

 M
ai

lin
g

 Z
ip

 [
P

LS
 1

5
9

]
6

0
0

1
6

1
.1

0
b

 I
f 

th
e 

fa
ci

li
ty

's
 m

ai
li

n
g

 z
ip

 c
od

e 
h

as
 c

h
an

g
ed

, 
th

en
 e

n
te

r 
th

e 
u

p
d

at
ed

 a
n

sw
er

 h
er

e.
1

.1
1

a
 L

ib
ra

ry
 T

el
ep

h
o

n
e 

N
u

m
b

er
 [

P
LS

 1
6

2
]

8
4

7
8

2
7

5
5

5
1

1
.1

1
b

 I
f 

th
e 

te
le

p
h

on
e 

n
u

m
b

er
 h

as
 c

h
an

g
ed

, 
th

en
 e

n
te

r 
th

e 
u

p
d

at
ed

 a
n

sw
er

 h
er

e.
1

.1
2

a
 L

ib
ra

ry
 F

A
X

 N
u

m
b

er
8

4
7

8
2

7
7

9
7

4
1

.1
2

b
 I

f 
th

e 
fa

x 
n

u
m

b
er

 h
as

 c
h

an
g

ed
, 

th
en

 e
n

te
r 

th
e 

u
p

d
at

ed
 a

n
sw

er
 h

er
e.

1
.1

3
 W

eb
si

te
h

tt
p

:/
/

w
w

w
.d

p
p

l.
o

rg

Li
b

ra
ry

 D
ir

ec
to

r'
s 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

P
le

as
e 

en
te

r 
th

e 
fu

ll 
n

am
e,

 t
it

le
 a

n
d

 e
-m

ai
l a

d
d

re
ss

 o
f 

th
e 

lib
ra

ry
 d

ir
ec

to
r.

1
.1

4
 N

am
e

La
u

ri
e 

P
ap

ad
ou

ra
ki

s
1

.1
5

 T
it

le
A

ct
in

g
 I

n
te

ri
m

 L
ib

ra
ry

 D
ir

ec
to

r
1

.1
6

 L
ib

ra
ry

 D
ir

ec
to

r'
s 

E-
m

ai
l

lp
ap

ad
ou

ra
ki

s@
d

p
p

l.
o

rg

Li
b

ra
ry

 I
n

fo
rm

at
io

n

P
le

as
e 

p
ro

vi
d

e 
th

e 
re

q
u

es
te

d
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 a

b
ou

t 
th

e 
lib

ra
ry

 t
yp

e.

1
.1

7
a

 T
yp

e 
of

 li
b

ra
ry

C
it
y

1
.1

7
b

 I
f 

th
e 

lib
ra

ry
 t

yp
e 

h
as

 c
h

an
g

ed
, 

th
en

 e
n

te
r 

th
e 

u
p

d
at

ed
 a

n
sw

er
 h

er
e.

Da
ta

 In
pu

t
ile

:/
//

Y:
/B

oa
rd

%
20

Pa
ck

et
s/

20
25

/F
eb

ru
ar

y/
IP

LA
R%

20
20

25
.h

tm
l

1 
of

 2
4

2 /
13

/2
02

5,
 4

:0
9 

PM

42



1
.1

8
 I

s 
th

e 
m

ai
n

 li
b

ra
ry

 a
 c

o
m

b
in

ed
 p

u
b

lic
 a

n
d

 s
ch

oo
l l

ib
ra

ry
?

N
o

1
.1

9
 D

oe
s 

yo
u

r 
lib

ra
ry

 c
o

n
tr

ac
t 

w
it

h
 a

n
o

th
er

 li
b

ra
ry

 t
o 

R
EC

EI
V

E 
A

LL
 y

o
u

r 
lib

ra
ry

 s
er

vi
ce

s?
N

o

C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

fo
r 

S
er

vi
ce

s

P
le

as
e 

p
ro

vi
d

e 
th

e 
fu

ll 
le

g
al

 n
am

e(
s)

 o
f 

th
e 

lib
ra

ry
(i

es
) 

w
it

h
 w

h
ic

h
 y

o
u

r 
lib

ra
ry

 c
on

tr
ac

ts
 f

o
r 

se
rv

ic
e.

 I
f 

yo
u

 n
ee

d
 m

o
re

 t
h

an
 o

n
e 

lin
e,

 a
n

ew
 o

n
e 

w
ill

 a
p

p
ea

r 
o

n
ce

 t
ex

t 
h

as
 b

ee
n

 e
n

te
re

d
 i

n
 t

h
e 

fi
rs

t 
b

o
x.

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

c
o

n
tr

a
c

ti
n

g
 l

ib
ra

ri
e

s
:

L
e

g
a

l 
n

a
m

e
 o

f 
li

b
ra

ry
 y

o
u

 c
o

n
tr

a
c

t 
w

it
h

:

A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n

Li
b

ra
ri

es
 a

re
 r

eq
u

ir
ed

 b
y 

st
at

u
te

 [
7

5
 I

LC
S

 5
/

4
-1

0
(5

),
 7

5
 I

LC
S

 1
6

/
3

0
-6

5
(a

)(
2

)]
 t

o 
p

ro
vi

d
e 

a 
st

at
em

en
t 

as
 t

o 
an

y 
ex

te
n

si
on

s 
of

 li
b

ra
ry

se
rv

ic
e 

or
 a

n
y 

ch
an

g
es

 t
o

 t
h

e 
lim

it
s 

o
r 

b
ou

n
d

ar
ie

s 
o

f 
lib

ra
ry

 s
er

vi
ce

 a
re

as
. 

M
o

st
 o

f 
th

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 in

 t
h

is
 s

ec
ti

on
 w

ill
 b

e 
p

re
-f

ill
ed

. 
If

 t
h

e
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 is

 in
co

rr
ec

t,
 p

le
as

e 
en

te
r 

th
e 

u
p

d
at

ed
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 in

 t
h

e 
b

o
x 

p
ro

vi
d

ed
 o

n
 t

h
e 

n
ex

t 
lin

e 
o

f 
th

e 
su

rv
ey

. 
If

 y
o

u
r 

lib
ra

ry
 h

as
 h

ad
a 

p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 c
h

an
g

e,
 y

o
u

 m
u

st
 s

u
b

m
it

 o
ff

ic
ia

l 
ve

ri
fi

ca
ti

o
n

 t
o

 t
h

e 
Il

li
n

o
is

 S
ta

te
 L

ib
ra

ry
.

1
.2

1
a

 C
ou

n
ty

 in
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e 

ad
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

en
ti

ty
 is

 lo
ca

te
d

 [
P

LS
C

 1
6

1
]

C
oo

k
1

.2
1

b
 I

f 
th

e 
ad

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
en

ti
ty

's
 c

o
u

n
ty

 h
as

 c
h

an
g

ed
, 

th
en

 e
n

te
r 

th
e 

u
p

d
at

ed
 a

n
sw

er
 h

er
e.

1
.2

2
a

 D
id

 t
h

e 
ad

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
en

ti
ty

's
 l

eg
al

 s
er

vi
ce

 a
re

a 
b

o
u

n
d

ar
ie

s 
ch

an
g

e 
d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e 
p

as
t 

ye
ar

?
[P

LS
 2

0
5

]
N

o

1
.2

2
b

 I
F 

Y
ES

, 
in

d
ic

at
e 

th
e 

re
as

on
 f

or
 t

h
e 

b
o

u
n

d
ar

y 
ch

an
g

e
1

.2
3

a
 P

o
p

u
la

ti
on

 r
es

id
in

g
 in

 t
ax

 b
as

e 
(U

se
 t

h
e 

la
te

st
 o

ff
ic

ia
l f

ed
er

al
 c

en
su

s 
fi

g
u

re
) 

[P
LS

 2
0

8
]

6
0

,6
7

5
1

.2
3

b
 I

f 
th

e 
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 r

es
id

in
g

 in
 t

h
e 

ta
x 

b
as

e 
h

as
 h

ad
 a

 L
EG

A
L 

ch
an

g
e,

 t
h

en
 e

n
te

r 
th

e 
u

p
d

at
ed

an
sw

er
 h

er
e.

1
.2

3
c

 D
o

cu
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
le

g
al

 p
op

u
la

ti
o

n
 c

h
an

g
e

1
.2

4
 I

f 
th

e 
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 h

as
 c

h
an

g
ed

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e 

p
ri

or
 y

ea
r'

s 
an

sw
er

, 
th

en
 in

d
ic

at
e 

th
e 

re
as

on
.

1
.2

5
a

 T
h

is
 li

b
ra

ry
 is

 c
u

rr
en

tl
y 

a 
m

em
b

er
 o

f 
w

h
at

 I
lli

n
oi

s 
lib

ra
ry

 s
ys

te
m

?
R
A
IL

S

1
.2

5
b

 I
f 

th
e 

lib
ra

ry
's

 s
ys

te
m

 h
as

 c
h

an
g

ed
, 

th
en

 e
n

te
r 

th
e 

u
p

d
at

ed
 a

n
sw

er
 h

er
e.

Fe
d

er
al

 P
u

b
lic

 L
ib

ra
ry

 C
ri

te
ri

a

A
cc

o
rd

in
g

 t
o

 t
h

e 
In

st
it

u
te

 o
f 

M
u

se
u

m
 a

n
d

 L
ib

ra
ry

 S
er

vi
ce

s'
 P

u
b

lic
 L

ib
ra

ry
 S

u
rv

ey
, 

a 
p

u
b

lic
 li

b
ra

ry
 is

 a
n

 e
n

ti
ty

 t
h

at
 is

 e
st

ab
lis

h
ed

 u
n

d
er

st
at

e 
en

ab
lin

g
 la

w
s 

o
r 

re
g

u
la

ti
o

n
s 

to
 s

er
ve

 a
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y,
 d

is
tr

ic
t,

 o
r 

re
g

io
n

, 
an

d
 t

h
at

 p
ro

vi
d

es
 a

t 
le

as
t 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g
:

1
. 

A
n

 o
rg

an
iz

ed
 c

ol
le

ct
io

n
 o

f 
p

ri
n

te
d

 o
r 

o
th

er
 l

ib
ra

ry
 m

at
er

ia
ls

, 
o

r 
a 

co
m

b
in

at
io

n
 t

h
er

eo
f;

2
. 

P
ai

d
 s

ta
ff

;
3

. 
A

n
 e

st
ab

li
sh

ed
 s

ch
ed

u
le

 i
n

 w
h

ic
h

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
o

f 
th

e 
st

af
f 

ar
e 

av
ai

la
b

le
 t

o
 t

h
e 

p
u

b
lic

;
4

. 
Th

e 
fa

ci
li

ti
es

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
or

t 
su

ch
 a

 c
o

lle
ct

io
n

, 
st

af
f,

 a
n

d
 s

ch
ed

u
le

; 
an

d
5

. 
Is

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

ed
 in

 w
h

o
le

 o
r 

in
 p

ar
t 

w
it

h
 p

u
b

lic
 f

u
n

d
s.

1
.2

6
 D

oe
s 

th
is

 li
b

ra
ry

 h
av

e 
an

 o
rg

an
iz

ed
 c

ol
le

ct
io

n
 o

f 
p

ri
n

te
d

 o
r 

ot
h

er
 li

b
ra

ry
 m

at
er

ia
ls

, 
o

r 
a

co
m

b
in

at
io

n
 t

h
er

eo
f?

Y
e
s

1
.2

7
 D

oe
s 

th
is

 li
b

ra
ry

 h
av

e 
p

ai
d

 s
ta

ff
?

Y
e
s

1
.2

8
 D

oe
s 

th
is

 li
b

ra
ry

 h
av

e 
an

 e
st

ab
lis

h
ed

 s
ch

ed
u

le
 in

 w
h

ic
h

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
of

 t
h

e 
st

af
f 

ar
e 

av
ai

la
b

le
 t

o
th

e 
p

u
b

lic
?

Y
e
s

1
.2

9
 D

oe
s 

th
e 

lib
ra

ry
 h

av
e 

th
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
n

ec
es

sa
ry

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 s
u

ch
 a

 c
ol

le
ct

io
n

, 
st

af
f,

 a
n

d
sc

h
ed

u
le

?
Y
e
s

1
.3

0
 I

s 
th

is
 li

b
ra

ry
 s

u
p

p
or

te
d

 in
 w

h
ol

e 
o

r 
in

 p
ar

t 
w

it
h

 p
u

b
lic

 f
u

n
d

s?
Y
e
s

1
.3

1
 D

oe
s 

th
is

 p
u

b
lic

 li
b

ra
ry

 m
ee

t 
A

LL
 t

h
e 

cr
it

er
ia

 o
f 

th
e 

FS
C

S
 p

u
b

lic
 li

b
ra

ry
 d

ef
in

it
io

n
? 

[P
LS

2
0

3
]

Y
e
s

Da
ta

 In
pu

t
ile

:/
//

Y:
/B

oa
rd

%
20

Pa
ck

et
s/

20
25

/F
eb

ru
ar

y/
IP

LA
R%

20
20

25
.h

tm
l

2 
of

 2
4

2 /
13

/2
02

5,
 4

:0
9 

PM

43



S
ER

V
IC

E 
O

U
TL

ET
S

 (
2

.1
 -

 2
.1

6
)

Th
is

 s
ec

ti
o

n
 g

at
h

er
s 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
ou

tl
et

s 
(c

en
tr

al
s,

 b
ra

n
ch

es
, 

b
o

o
km

o
b

ile
s)

 o
f 

yo
u

r 
lib

ra
ry

. 
Lo

ca
ti

o
n

s 
ca

n
 o

n
ly

 b
e

ad
d

ed
 t

o
 t

h
is

 s
u

rv
ey

 b
y 

S
ta

te
 L

ib
ra

ry
 s

ta
ff

. 
If

 y
o

u
 h

av
e 

a 
b

ra
n

ch
 o

r 
b

o
ok

m
o

b
il

e 
an

d
 d

o
 n

o
t 

se
e 

it
s 

n
am

e 
lis

te
d

 in
 q

u
es

ti
o

n
 2

.3
a,

 p
le

as
e

co
n

ta
ct

 I
P

LA
R

@
ils

o
s.

g
o

v 
so

 t
h

at
 it

 c
an

 b
e 

ad
d

ed
.

2
.1

a
 T

ot
al

 n
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
b

oo
km

ob
ile

s 
[P

LS
 2

1
1

 &
 P

LS
 7

1
2

]
0

 
2

.1
b

 T
ot

al
 n

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

b
ra

n
ch

 li
b

ra
ri

es
 [

P
LS

 2
1

0
]

0
 

2
.2

a
 A

re
 a

n
y 

of
 t

h
e 

b
ra

n
ch

 l
ib

ra
ri

es
 a

 c
om

b
in

ed
 p

u
b

li
c 

an
d

 s
ch

oo
l l

ib
ra

ry
?

N
o

2
.2

b
 I

f 
Y

ES
, 

p
ro

vi
d

e 
th

e 
n

am
e 

of
 t

h
e 

b
ra

n
ch

 o
r 

b
ra

n
ch

es
 in

 t
h

e 
b

ox
 p

ro
vi

d
ed

.

S
er

vi
ce

 O
u

tl
et

 N
am

e

L
o

c
a

ti
o

n
2

.3
a

 B
ra

n
ch

 o
r 

B
o

ok
m

o
b

ile
 L

eg
al

N
am

e 
[P

LS
 7

0
2

]
2

.3
b

 I
f 

th
e 

o
u

tl
et

's
 l

eg
al

 n
am

e 
h

as
 c

h
an

g
ed

, 
th

en
 e

n
te

r
th

e 
u

p
d

at
ed

 a
n

sw
er

 h
er

e.
2

.3
c

 W
as

 t
h

is
 a

n
 o

ff
ic

ia
l

n
am

e 
ch

an
g

e?
D

E
S

 P
L

A
IN

E
S

 P
.L

.

IS
L 

C
o

n
tr

o
l N

u
m

b
er

L
o

c
a

ti
o

n
2

.4
 I

S
L 

C
on

tr
ol

 #
 [

P
LS

 7
0

1
]

2
.5

 I
S

L 
B

ra
n

ch
 #

 [
P

LS
 7

0
1

]
D

E
S

 P
L

A
IN

E
S

 P
.L

.

S
tr

ee
t 

A
d

d
re

ss

L
o

c
a

ti
o

n
2

.6
a

 S
tr

ee
t 

A
d

d
re

ss
[P

LS
 7

0
3

]
2

.6
b

 I
f 

th
e 

ou
tl

et
's

 s
tr

ee
t 

ad
d

re
ss

 h
as

 c
h

an
g

ed
, 

th
en

 e
n

te
r 

th
e

u
p

d
at

ed
 a

n
sw

er
 h

er
e.

2
.6

c
 W

as
 t

h
is

 a
 p

h
ys

ic
al

lo
ca

ti
o

n
 c

h
an

g
e?

D
E

S
 P

L
A

IN
E

S
 P

.L
.

A
d

d
re

ss

L
o

c
a

ti
o

n
2

.7
a

 C
it

y 
[P

LS
7

0
4

]
2

.7
b

 I
f 

th
e 

o
u

tl
et

's
 c

it
y 

h
as

 c
h

an
g

ed
, 

th
en

en
te

r 
th

e 
u

p
d

at
ed

 a
n

sw
er

 h
er

e.
2

.8
a

 Z
ip

 C
o

d
e

[P
LS

 7
0

5
]

2
.8

b
 I

f 
th

e 
o

u
tl

et
's

 z
ip

 c
o

d
e 

h
as

 c
h

an
g

ed
,

th
en

 e
n

te
r 

th
e 

u
p

d
at

ed
 a

n
sw

er
 h

er
e.

D
E

S
 P

L
A

IN
E

S
 P

.L
.

C
o

u
n

ty
 &

 P
h

o
n

e

L
o

c
a

ti
o

n
2

.9
a

 C
ou

n
ty

[P
LS

 7
0

7
]

2
.9

b
 I

f 
th

e 
o

u
tl

et
's

 c
o

u
n

ty
 h

as
ch

an
g

ed
, 

th
en

 e
n

te
r 

th
e 

u
p

d
at

ed
an

sw
er

 h
er

e.
2

.1
0

a
 T

el
ep

h
on

e
[P

LS
 7

0
8

]
2

.1
0

b
 I

f 
th

e 
o

u
tl

et
's

 p
h

o
n

e 
n

u
m

b
er

 h
as

ch
an

g
ed

, 
th

en
 e

n
te

r 
th

e 
u

p
d

at
ed

 a
n

sw
er

h
er

e.
D

E
S

 P
L

A
IN

E
S

 P
.L

.

S
q

u
ar

e 
Fe

et

L
o

c
a

ti
o

n
2

.1
1

a
 S

q
u

ar
e 

Fo
ot

ag
e

of
 O

u
tl

et
 [

P
LS

 7
1

1
]

2
.1

1
b

 I
f 

th
e 

fa
ci

lit
y'

s 
sq

u
ar

e 
fo

o
ta

g
e

h
as

 c
h

an
g

ed
, 

th
en

 e
n

te
r 

th
e 

u
p

d
at

ed
an

sw
er

 h
er

e.

2
.1

1
c

 I
n

d
ic

at
e 

th
e 

re
as

o
n

 f
o

r 
th

e 
ch

an
g

e/
va

ri
an

ce
 in

sq
u

ar
e 

fo
o

ta
g

e 
fo

r 
th

is
 a

n
n

u
al

 r
ep

or
t 

as
 c

om
p

ar
ed

 t
o 

th
e

p
re

vi
o

u
s 

an
n

u
al

 r
ep

o
rt

.
D

E
S

 P
L

A
IN

E
S

 P
.L

.
8

2
,5

0
0

ID
s

Da
ta

 In
pu

t
ile

:/
//

Y:
/B

oa
rd

%
20

Pa
ck

et
s/

20
25

/F
eb

ru
ar

y/
IP

LA
R%

20
20

25
.h

tm
l

3 
of

 2
4

2 /
13

/2
02

5,
 4

:0
9 

PM

44



H
o

u
rs

 a
n

d
 A

tt
en

d
an

ce

L
o

c
a

ti
o

n
2

.1
2

 T
o

ta
l p

u
b

lic
 s

er
vi

ce
 h

o
u

rs
 P

E
R

Y
EA

R
 f

or
 t

h
is

 s
er

vi
ce

 o
u

tl
et

 [
P

LS
 7

1
3

]
2

.1
3

 T
o

ta
l n

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

w
ee

ks
, 

d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e 

fi
sc

al
 y

ea
r,

th
is

 s
er

vi
ce

 o
u

tl
et

 w
as

 o
p

en
 f

o
r 

se
rv

ic
e 

to
 t

h
e 

p
u

b
lic

[P
LS

 7
1

4
]

2
.1

4
 T

o
ta

l a
n

n
u

al
at

te
n

d
an

ce
/

vi
si

ts
 in

 t
h

e
o

u
tl

et
D

E
S

 P
L

A
IN

E
S

 P
.L

.
3

,7
4

4
 

5
2

 
1
3

6
4

,5
2

8
 

A
N

N
U

A
L 

R
EP

O
R

T 
D

A
TA

 (
3

.1
 -

 3
.7

)

P
le

as
e 

en
te

r 
th

e 
ti

m
e 

p
er

io
d

 c
o

ve
re

d
 b

y 
th

is
 a

n
n

u
al

 r
ep

o
rt

 a
n

d
 t

h
e 

n
am

e 
an

d
 c

o
n

ta
ct

 i
n

fo
rm

at
io

n
 f

or
 t

h
e 

p
er

so
n

 p
re

p
ar

in
g

 t
h

e 
re

p
o

rt
.

Th
e 

re
p

or
t 

p
er

io
d

 s
h

o
u

ld
 c

ov
er

 t
h

e 
ti

m
e 

fr
o

m
 t

h
e 

en
d

 o
f 

th
e 

p
re

vi
ou

s 
IP

LA
R

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e 
en

d
 o

f 
yo

u
r 

m
o

st
 c

u
rr

en
t 

fi
sc

al
 y

ea
r.

 I
f 

yo
u

r
lib

ra
ry

 s
w

it
ch

ed
 t

o
 a

 n
ew

 f
is

ca
l y

ea
r 

d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e 

la
te

st
 p

er
io

d
, 

th
is

 m
ay

 m
ea

n
 t

h
at

 y
o

u
r 

re
p

o
rt

 n
ee

d
s 

to
 c

o
ve

r 
m

o
re

 o
r 

le
ss

 t
h

an
 a

 t
w

el
ve

(1
2

) 
m

on
th

 p
er

io
d

.

3
.1

 F
is

ca
l 

Y
ea

r 
S

ta
rt

 D
at

e 
(m

m
/

d
d

/
ye

ar
) 

[P
LS

 2
0

6
]

0
1

/
0

1
/

2
0

2
4

 
3

.2
 F

is
ca

l 
Y

ea
r 

En
d

 D
at

e 
(m

m
/

d
d

/
ye

ar
) 

[P
LS

 2
0

7
]

1
2

/
3

1
/

2
0

2
4

 
3

.3
 N

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

m
on

th
s 

in
 t

h
is

 f
is

ca
l y

ea
r

1
2

 
3

.4
 N

am
e 

of
 p

er
so

n
 p

re
p

ar
in

g
 t

h
is

 a
n

n
u

al
 r

ep
or

t
La

u
ri

e 
P

ap
ad

o
u

ra
ki

s 
3

.5
 T

el
ep

h
on

e 
N

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

P
er

so
n

 P
re

p
ar

in
g

 R
ep

or
t

8
4

7
-3

7
6

-2
7

7
6

 
3

.6
 F

A
X

 N
u

m
b

er
8

4
7

-8
2

7
-7

9
7

4
 

3
.7

 E
-M

ai
l A

d
d

re
ss

lp
ap

ad
o

u
ra

ki
s@

d
p

p
l.

o
rg

 

R
EF

ER
EN

D
A

 (
4

.1
 -

 4
.7

)

P
le

as
e 

en
te

r 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 r

eg
ar

d
in

g
 a

n
y 

re
fe

re
n

d
a 

th
e 

lib
ra

ry
 w

as
 in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e 

fi
sc

al
 y

ea
r 

re
p

or
t 

p
er

io
d

. 
A

 r
ef

er
en

d
u

m
 r

eq
u

ir
es

a 
q

u
es

ti
o

n
 b

e 
su

b
m

it
te

d
 t

o 
th

e 
vo

te
rs

 a
t 

an
 e

le
ct

io
n

 h
el

d
 u

n
d

er
 t

h
e 

g
en

er
al

 e
le

ct
io

n
 la

w
. 

Ex
am

p
le

s 
ar

e:
 b

o
n

d
 i

ss
u

e,
 d

is
tr

ic
t

es
ta

b
lis

h
m

en
t,

 t
ax

 in
cr

ea
se

.

4
.1

a
 W

as
 y

ou
r 

li
b

ra
ry

 in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 a

 r
ef

er
en

d
u

m
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e 
fi

sc
al

 y
ea

r 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 p

er
io

d
?

N
o

4
.1

b
 H

ow
 m

an
y 

re
fe

re
n

d
a 

w
as

 y
ou

r 
lib

ra
ry

 in
vo

lv
ed

 in
?

R
ef

er
en

d
u

m
 1

4
.2

 R
ef

er
en

d
u

m
Ty

p
e

4
.3

 I
f 

O
th

er
, 

w
h

at
 w

as
th

e 
re

fe
re

n
d

u
m

 t
yp

e?
4

.4
 R

ef
er

en
d

u
m

 D
at

e
(m

m
/

d
d

/
ye

ar
)

4
.5

 P
as

se
d

 o
r

Fa
ile

d
?

4
.6

 E
ff

ec
ti

ve
 D

at
e

(m
m

/
d

d
/

ye
ar

)
4

.7
 R

ef
er

en
d

u
m

 b
al

lo
t

la
n

g
u

ag
e 

d
oc

u
m

en
ta

ti
o

n

R
ef

er
en

d
u

m
 2

4
.2

 R
ef

er
en

d
u

m
Ty

p
e

4
.3

 I
f 

O
th

er
, 

w
h

at
 w

as
th

e 
re

fe
re

n
d

u
m

 t
yp

e?
4

.4
 R

ef
er

en
d

u
m

 D
at

e
(m

m
/

d
d

/
ye

ar
)

4
.5

 P
as

se
d

 o
r

Fa
ile

d
?

4
.6

 E
ff

ec
ti

ve
 D

at
e

(m
m

/
d

d
/

ye
ar

)
4

.7
 R

ef
er

en
d

u
m

 b
al

lo
t

la
n

g
u

ag
e 

d
oc

u
m

en
ta

ti
o

n

R
ef

er
en

d
u

m
 3

4
.2

 R
ef

er
en

d
u

m
Ty

p
e

4
.3

 I
f 

O
th

er
, 

w
h

at
 w

as
th

e 
re

fe
re

n
d

u
m

 t
yp

e?
4

.4
 R

ef
er

en
d

u
m

 D
at

e
(m

m
/

d
d

/
ye

ar
)

4
.5

 P
as

se
d

 o
r

Fa
ile

d
?

4
.6

 E
ff

ec
ti

ve
 D

at
e

(m
m

/
d

d
/

ye
ar

)
4

.7
 R

ef
er

en
d

u
m

 b
al

lo
t

la
n

g
u

ag
e 

d
oc

u
m

en
ta

ti
o

n

R
ef

er
en

d
u

m
 4

4
.2

 R
ef

er
en

d
u

m
4

.3
 I

f 
O

th
er

, 
w

h
at

 w
as

4
.4

 R
ef

er
en

d
u

m
 D

at
e

4
.5

 P
as

se
d

 o
r

4
.6

 E
ff

ec
ti

ve
 D

at
e

4
.7

 R
ef

er
en

d
u

m
 b

al
lo

t

Da
ta

 In
pu

t
ile

:/
//

Y:
/B

oa
rd

%
20

Pa
ck

et
s/

20
25

/F
eb

ru
ar

y/
IP

LA
R%

20
20

25
.h

tm
l

4 
of

 2
4

2 /
13

/2
02

5,
 4

:0
9 

PM

45



Ty
p

e
th

e 
re

fe
re

n
d

u
m

 t
yp

e?
(m

m
/

d
d

/
ye

ar
)

Fa
ile

d
?

(m
m

/
d

d
/

ye
ar

)
la

n
g

u
ag

e 
d

o
cu

m
en

ta
ti

o
n

R
ef

er
en

d
u

m
 5

4
.2

 R
ef

er
en

d
u

m
Ty

p
e

4
.3

 I
f 

O
th

er
, 

w
h

at
 w

as
th

e 
re

fe
re

n
d

u
m

 t
yp

e?
4

.4
 R

ef
er

en
d

u
m

 D
at

e
(m

m
/

d
d

/
ye

ar
)

4
.5

 P
as

se
d

 o
r

Fa
ile

d
?

4
.6

 E
ff

ec
ti

ve
 D

at
e

(m
m

/
d

d
/

ye
ar

)
4

.7
 R

ef
er

en
d

u
m

 b
al

lo
t

la
n

g
u

ag
e 

d
oc

u
m

en
ta

ti
o

n

C
U

R
R

EN
T 

LI
B

R
A

R
Y

 B
O

A
R

D
 (

5
.1

 -
 5

.1
3

)

P
le

as
e 

re
p

o
rt

 t
h

e 
n

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

b
oa

rd
 s

ea
ts

 a
n

d
 t

h
e 

n
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
va

ca
n

ci
es

. 
B

e 
su

re
 t

o
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

b
o

ar
d

 m
em

b
er

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n

; 
in

cl
u

d
in

g
n

am
e,

 p
os

it
io

n
, 

te
le

p
h

on
e 

n
u

m
b

er
, 

e-
m

ai
l 

ad
d

re
ss

, 
h

om
e 

ad
d

re
ss

, 
an

d
 t

er
m

 e
xp

ir
at

io
n

 d
at

e.
 I

f 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

va
ca

n
ci

es
, 

p
le

as
e 

ex
p

la
in

.

A
ll 

p
er

so
n

al
 id

en
ti

fy
in

g
 i

n
fo

rm
at

io
n

 is
 F

O
IA

 e
xe

m
p

t 
an

d
 w

ill
 N

O
T 

b
e 

re
le

as
ed

 t
o

 t
h

e 
p

u
b

lic
. 

Th
e 

o
n

ly
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 t

h
at

 t
h

e 
Il

lin
o

is
 S

ta
te

Li
b

ra
ry

 w
ill

 r
el

ea
se

 u
p

o
n

 r
eq

u
es

t 
is

 t
h

e 
b

o
ar

d
 m

em
b

er
 n

am
e,

 t
ru

st
ee

 p
o

si
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 t

er
m

 e
xp

ir
at

io
n

 d
at

e.

R
ep

o
rt

 t
h

e 
m

o
st

 c
u

rr
en

t 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 a

va
ila

b
le

.

5
.1

 T
o

ta
l n

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

b
o

ar
d

 s
ea

ts
9

5
.2

 T
ot

al
 n

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

va
ca

n
t 

b
oa

rd
 s

ea
ts

0
 

5
.2

b
 P

le
as

e 
ex

p
la

in
Th

e 
m

ay
or

 a
p

p
oi

n
te

d
 a

 n
ew

 m
em

b
er

 t
o 

th
e 

B
oa

rd
 s

o 
it

fi
lle

d
 t

h
e 

va
ca

n
cy

.
5

.3
 T

h
is

 p
u

b
lic

 li
b

ra
ry

 b
oa

rd
 o

f 
tr

u
st

ee
s 

at
te

st
s 

th
at

 t
h

e 
cu

rr
en

t 
b

o
ar

d
 is

 le
g

al
ly

 e
st

ab
lis

h
ed

,
or

g
an

iz
ed

, 
an

d
 t

h
e 

te
rm

s 
of

 o
ff

ic
e 

fo
r 

lib
ra

ry
 t

ru
st

ee
s 

ar
e 

al
l u

n
ex

p
ir

ed
.

Y
e
s

5
.4

 I
F 

N
O

, 
p

le
as

e 
ex

p
la

in

Fi
rs

t 
M

em
b

er

5
.5

 N
am

e
D

r.
 G

re
g

or
y 

S
ar

lo
5

.6
 T

ru
st

ee
 P

os
it

io
n

P
re

si
d
e
n
t

5
.7

 P
re

se
n

t 
Te

rm
 E

n
d

s 
(m

m
/y

ea
r)

0
6

/
2

0
2

5
5

.8
 T

el
ep

h
on

e 
N

u
m

b
er

8
4

7
-8

2
7

-5
5

5
1

5
.9

 E
-m

ai
l A

d
d

re
ss

g
sa

rl
o@

d
p

p
l.

or
g

5
.1

0
 H

om
e 

A
d

d
re

ss
6

0
0

 J
ar

vi
s 

A
ve

5
.1

1
 C

it
y

D
es

 P
la

in
es

5
.1

2
 S

ta
te

IL
5

.1
3

 Z
ip

 C
od

e
6

0
0

1
8

S
ec

o
n

d
 m

em
b

er

5
.5

 N
am

e
K

ri
st

en
 G

ra
ac

k
5

.6
 T

ru
st

ee
 P

os
it

io
n

V
ic

e
-P

re
si

d
e
n
t

5
.7

 P
re

se
n

t 
Te

rm
 E

n
d

s 
(m

m
/y

ea
r)

0
6

/
2

0
2

5
5

.8
 T

el
ep

h
on

e 
N

u
m

b
er

8
4

7
-8

2
7

-5
5

5
1

5
.9

 E
-m

ai
l A

d
d

re
ss

kg
ra

ac
k@

d
p

p
l.

or
g

5
.1

0
 H

om
e 

A
d

d
re

ss
1

3
6

6
 C

ar
ol

 L
an

e
5

.1
1

 C
it

y
D

es
 P

la
in

es
5

.1
2

 S
ta

te
IL

5
.1

3
 Z

ip
 C

o
d

e
6

0
0

1
8

Th
ir

d
 m

em
b

er

Da
ta

 In
pu

t
ile

:/
//

Y:
/B

oa
rd

%
20

Pa
ck

et
s/

20
25

/F
eb

ru
ar

y/
IP

LA
R%

20
20

25
.h

tm
l

5 
of

 2
4

2 /
13

/2
02

5,
 4

:0
9 

PM

46



5
.5

 N
am

e
R

ac
h

el
 R

ic
e

5
.6

 T
ru

st
ee

 P
os

it
io

n
O

th
e
r

5
.7

 P
re

se
n

t 
Te

rm
 E

n
d

s 
(m

m
/y

ea
r)

0
6

/
2

0
2

6
5

.8
 T

el
ep

h
on

e 
N

u
m

b
er

8
4

7
-8

2
7

-5
5

5
1

5
.9

 E
-m

ai
l A

d
d

re
ss

rr
ic

e@
d

p
p

l.
or

g
5

.1
0

 H
om

e 
A

d
d

re
ss

1
0

9
9

 W
 V

ill
a 

D
r

5
.1

1
 C

it
y

D
es

 P
la

in
es

5
.1

2
 S

ta
te

IL
5

.1
3

 Z
ip

 C
o

d
e

6
0

0
1

6

Fo
u

rt
h

 m
em

b
er

5
.5

 N
am

e
C

h
ri

st
in

e 
H

al
b

la
n

d
er

5
.6

 T
ru

st
ee

 P
os

it
io

n
O

th
e
r

5
.7

 P
re

se
n

t 
Te

rm
 E

n
d

s 
(m

m
/y

ea
r)

0
6

/
2

0
2

5
5

.8
 T

el
ep

h
on

e 
N

u
m

b
er

8
4

7
-8

2
7

-5
5

5
1

5
.9

 E
-m

ai
l A

d
d

re
ss

ch
al

b
la

n
d

er
@

d
p

p
l.

or
g

5
.1

0
 H

om
e 

A
d

d
re

ss
1

4
0

5
 C

am
p

b
el

l
5

.1
1

 C
it

y
D

es
 P

la
in

es
5

.1
2

 S
ta

te
IL

5
.1

3
 Z

ip
 C

o
d

e
6

0
0

1
6

Fi
ft

h
 m

em
b

er

5
.5

 N
am

e
R

ob
er

t 
Fl

in
n

5
.6

 T
ru

st
ee

 P
os

it
io

n
O

th
e
r

5
.7

 P
re

se
n

t 
Te

rm
 E

n
d

s 
(m

m
/y

ea
r)

0
6

/
2

0
2

7
5

.8
 T

el
ep

h
on

e 
N

u
m

b
er

8
4

7
-8

2
7

-5
5

5
1

5
.9

 E
-m

ai
l A

d
d

re
ss

rf
lin

n
@

d
p

p
l.

or
g

5
.1

0
 H

om
e 

A
d

d
re

ss
1

0
0

2
 J

ea
n

et
te

 S
tr

ee
t

5
.1

1
 C

it
y

D
es

 P
la

in
es

5
.1

2
 S

ta
te

IL
5

.1
3

 Z
ip

 C
o

d
e

6
0

0
1

6

S
ix

th
 m

em
b

er

5
.5

 N
am

e
D

en
is

e 
H

u
d

ec
5

.6
 T

ru
st

ee
 P

os
it

io
n

Tr
e
a
su

re
r

5
.7

 P
re

se
n

t 
Te

rm
 E

n
d

s 
(m

m
/y

ea
r)

0
6

/
2

0
2

6
5

.8
 T

el
ep

h
on

e 
N

u
m

b
er

8
4

7
-8

2
7

-5
5

5
1

5
.9

 E
-m

ai
l A

d
d

re
ss

d
h

u
d

ec
@

d
p

p
l.

or
g

5
.1

0
 H

om
e 

A
d

d
re

ss
1

6
5

3
 R

iv
er

 S
tr

ee
t,

 #
5

0
4

5
.1

1
 C

it
y

D
es

 P
la

in
es

5
.1

2
 S

ta
te

IL
5

.1
3

 Z
ip

 C
o

d
e

6
0

0
1

6

S
ev

en
th

 m
em

b
er

5
.5

 N
am

e
N

ic
h

ol
as

 H
ar

ko
vi

ch

Da
ta

 In
pu

t
ile

:/
//

Y:
/B

oa
rd

%
20

Pa
ck

et
s/

20
25

/F
eb

ru
ar

y/
IP

LA
R%

20
20

25
.h

tm
l

6 
of

 2
4

2 /
13

/2
02

5,
 4

:0
9 

PM

47



5
.6

 T
ru

st
ee

 P
os

it
io

n
O

th
e
r

5
.7

 P
re

se
n

t 
Te

rm
 E

n
d

s 
(m

m
/

ye
ar

)
0

6
/2

0
2

6
5

.8
 T

el
ep

h
o

n
e 

N
u

m
b

er
8

4
7

-8
2

7
-5

5
5

1
5

.9
 E

-m
ai

l A
d

d
re

ss
n

h
ar

ko
vi

ch
@

d
p

p
l.

or
g

5
.1

0
 H

om
e 

A
d

d
re

ss
1

4
3

0
 V

an
 B

u
re

n
 S

tr
ee

t
5

.1
1

 C
it

y
D

es
 P

la
in

es
5

.1
2

 S
ta

te
IL

5
.1

3
 Z

ip
 C

od
e

6
0

0
1

8

Ei
g

h
th

 m
em

b
er

5
.5

 N
am

e
M

ic
h

el
le

 S
h

im
on

-H
u

tc
h

is
on

5
.6

 T
ru

st
ee

 P
os

it
io

n
O

th
e
r

5
.7

 P
re

se
n

t 
Te

rm
 E

n
d

s 
(m

m
/y

ea
r)

0
6

/
2

0
2

5
5

.8
 T

el
ep

h
on

e 
N

u
m

b
er

8
4

7
-8

2
7

-5
5

5
1

5
.9

 E
-m

ai
l A

d
d

re
ss

m
sh

im
on

@
d

p
p

l.
or

g
5

.1
0

 H
om

e 
A

d
d

re
ss

5
9

4
 W

eb
fo

rd
 A

ve
5

.1
1

 C
it

y
D

es
 P

la
in

es
5

.1
2

 S
ta

te
IL

5
.1

3
 Z

ip
 C

o
d

e
6

0
0

1
6

N
in

th
 m

em
b

er

5
.5

 N
am

e
Li

sa
 D

u
B

ro
ck

5
.6

 T
ru

st
ee

 P
os

it
io

n
S
e
cr

e
ta

ry

5
.7

 P
re

se
n

t 
Te

rm
 E

n
d

s 
(m

m
/y

ea
r)

0
6

/
2

0
2

5
5

.8
 T

el
ep

h
on

e 
N

u
m

b
er

8
4

7
-8

2
7

-5
5

5
1

5
.9

 E
-m

ai
l A

d
d

re
ss

ld
u

b
ro

ck
@

d
p

p
l.

or
g

5
.1

0
 H

om
e 

A
d

d
re

ss
2

2
3

2
 O

tt
aw

a 
S

tr
ee

t
5

.1
1

 C
it

y
D

es
 P

la
in

es
5

.1
2

 S
ta

te
IL

5
.1

3
 Z

ip
 C

o
d

e
6

0
0

1
6

FA
C

IL
IT

Y
/

FA
C

IL
IT

IE
S

 (
6

.1
-6

.3
b

)

P
le

as
e 

p
ro

vi
d

e 
th

e 
re

q
u

es
te

d
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 a

b
ou

t 
th

e 
lib

ra
ry

's
 f

ac
ili

ti
es

.

6
.1

 T
ot

al
 N

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

M
ee

ti
n

g
 R

oo
m

s
3

 
6

.2
 T

ot
al

 n
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
ti

m
es

 m
ee

ti
n

g
 r

oo
m

(s
) 

u
se

d
 b

y 
th

e 
p

u
b

li
c 

d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e 

fi
sc

al
 y

ea
r

2
,0

9
1

 
6

.3
 T

ot
al

 N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
S

tu
d

y 
R

oo
m

s
7

 
6

.3
b

 T
o

ta
l n

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

ti
m

es
 s

tu
d

y 
ro

om
(s

) 
u

se
d

 b
y 

th
e 

p
u

b
lic

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e 

fi
sc

al
 y

ea
r

9
,3

9
2

 

C
ap

it
al

 N
ee

d
s 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t

P
u

b
lic

 A
ct

 9
6

-0
0

3
7

, 
th

e 
P

u
b

lic
 L

ib
ra

ry
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

 A
ct

, 
re

q
u

ir
es

 t
h

e 
Il

li
n

o
is

 S
ec

re
ta

ry
 o

f 
S

ta
te

 t
o

 f
ile

 a
 c

o
m

p
re

h
en

si
ve

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t

re
p

o
rt

 o
f 

th
e 

ca
p

it
al

 n
ee

d
s 

o
f 

al
l I

lli
n

o
is

 p
u

b
lic

 li
b

ra
ri

es
 t

o
 t

h
e 

G
en

er
al

 A
ss

em
b

ly
 e

ve
ry

 t
w

o
 y

ea
rs

. 
In

 a
n

 e
ff

o
rt

 t
o

 c
o

m
p

ile
 t

h
is

 d
at

a,
p

le
as

e 
fi

ll 
in

 t
h

e 
re

q
u

es
te

d
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 b

el
ow

. 
If

 y
o

u
 h

av
e 

an
y 

q
u

es
ti

o
n

s 
ab

o
u

t 
th

is
 s

ec
ti

o
n

, 
p

le
as

e 
co

n
ta

ct
 M

ar
k 

S
h

af
fe

r 
(2

1
7

-5
2

4
-4

9
0

1
or

 m
sh

af
fe

r@
ils

o
s.

g
o

v)
 a

t 
th

e 
Il

li
n

o
is

 S
ta

te
 L

ib
ra

ry
.

Da
ta

 In
pu

t
ile

:/
//

Y:
/B

oa
rd

%
20

Pa
ck

et
s/

20
25

/F
eb

ru
ar

y/
IP

LA
R%

20
20

25
.h

tm
l

7 
of

 2
4

2 /
13

/2
02

5,
 4

:0
9 

PM

48



A
g

e 
o

f 
Fa

ci
li

ty

P
le

as
e 

in
d

ic
at

e 
th

e 
n

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

b
u

ild
in

g
s 

in
 e

ac
h

 c
at

eg
o

ry
 b

el
ow

.
5

 y
ea

rs
 o

r 
le

ss
6

-1
0

 y
ea

rs
1

1
-2

5
 y

ea
rs

2
6

-5
0

 y
ea

rs
5

1
-1

0
0

 y
ea

rs
1

0
0

+
 y

ea
rs

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

F
a
c

il
it

ie
s

0
0

1
0

0
0

Ty
p

e 
of

 W
or

k 
N

ee
d

ed

P
le

as
e 

p
ro

vi
d

e 
es

ti
m

at
es

 o
f 

th
e 

co
st

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
ty

p
e 

o
f 

w
o

rk
 n

ee
d

ed
. 

If
 y

ou
 d

o
 n

o
t 

h
av

e 
b

ra
n

ch
 l

o
ca

ti
o

n
s,

 t
h

e 
"O

th
er

 F
ac

ili
ti

es
" 

co
lu

m
n

s
sh

o
u

ld
 b

e 
p

re
-p

o
p

u
la

te
d

 w
it

h
 z

er
o

s.
 I

f 
n

ot
, 

p
le

as
e 

en
te

r 
ze

ro
s 

to
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 t

h
e 

se
ct

io
n

.
H

ea
d

q
u

ar
te

rs
 -

 N
u

m
b

er
 o

f
B

u
ild

in
g

s
H

ea
d

q
u

ar
te

rs
 -

Es
ti

m
at

e 
$

O
th

er
 F

ac
ili

ti
es

 -
 N

u
m

b
er

 o
f

B
u

ild
in

g
s

O
th

er
 F

ac
ili

ti
es

 -
Es

ti
m

at
e 

$
G

e
n

e
ra

l 
re

p
a

ir
/r

e
m

o
d

e
li
n

g
1

2
$

5
1

,3
6

4
0

$
0

S
tr

u
c
tu

ra
l 

re
p

a
ir

s
 (

w
a

ll
s
, 

fo
u

n
d

a
ti

o
n

s
, 

e
tc

.)
3
1

$
0

0
$

0
R

o
o

f 
re

p
a

ir
/r

e
p

la
c

e
m

e
n

t
4
1

$
0

0
$

0
H

e
a

ti
n

g
/v

e
n

ti
la

ti
o

n
/a

ir
 c

o
n

d
it

io
n

in
g

5
1

$
0

0
$

0
E

le
c

tr
ic

a
l 
s

y
s

te
m

s
 o

th
e
r 

th
a

n
 a

la
rm

s
6
1

$
0

0
$

0
P

lu
m

b
in

g
 s

y
s

te
m

s
7
1

$
0

0
$

0
E

g
re

s
s

 s
y
s

te
m

s
 (

d
o

o
rs

, 
s
ta

ir
s

, 
e

tc
.)

8
1

$
0

0
$

0
F

ir
e

 p
ro

te
c

ti
o

n
 (

d
e

te
c
to

rs
, 

a
la

rm
s

, 
e

tc
.)

9
1

$
0

0
$

0
A

s
b

e
s

to
s

 a
b

a
te

m
e

n
t

1
0
1

$
0

0
$

0
S

e
c

u
ri

ty
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s

1
1
1

$
0

0
$

0
E

n
e

rg
y
 c

o
n

s
e

rv
a

ti
o

n
1

2
1

$
0

0
$

0
R

e
p

a
ir

 o
f 

s
id

e
w

a
lk

s
, 
c

u
rb

in
g

, 
p

a
rk

in
g

 a
re

a
s

1
3
1

$
0

0
$

0
A

c
c

e
s
s

ib
il
it

y
 m

e
a
s

u
re

s
1

4
1

$
0

0
$

0
T
e

c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
 u

p
g

ra
d

in
g

1
5
1

$
0

0
$

0
N

e
w

 b
u

il
d

in
g

 c
o

n
s

tr
u

c
ti

o
n

 (
c

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n

 o
f

a
 n

e
w

 f
a

c
il
it

y
)

1
6
1

$
0

0
$

0
B

u
il
d

in
g

 a
d

d
it

io
n

s
 (

a
d

d
in

g
 s

q
u

a
re

 f
e

e
t 

to
e
x

is
ti

n
g

 f
a

c
il
it

y
)

1
7
1

$
0

0
$

0

Ty
p

e 
of

 W
or

k 
in

 P
ro

g
re

ss

P
le

as
e 

p
ro

vi
d

e 
es

ti
m

at
es

 o
f 

th
e 

co
st

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
ty

p
e 

o
f 

w
o

rk
 c

u
rr

en
tl

y 
in

 p
ro

g
re

ss
. 

If
 y

o
u

 d
o

 n
o

t 
h

av
e 

b
ra

n
ch

 lo
ca

ti
o

n
s,

 t
h

e 
"O

th
er

Fa
ci

li
ti

es
" 

co
lu

m
n

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

p
re

-p
o

p
u

la
te

d
 w

it
h

 z
er

o
s.

 I
f 

n
o

t,
 p

le
as

e 
en

te
r 

ze
ro

s 
to

 c
o

m
p

le
te

 t
h

e 
se

ct
io

n
.

H
ea

d
q

u
ar

te
rs

 -
 N

u
m

b
er

 o
f

B
u

ild
in

g
s

H
ea

d
q

u
ar

te
rs

 -
Es

ti
m

at
e 

$
O

th
er

 F
ac

ili
ti

es
 -

 N
u

m
b

er
 o

f
B

u
ild

in
g

s
O

th
er

 F
ac

ili
ti

es
 -

Es
ti

m
at

e 
$

G
e

n
e
ra

l 
re

p
a

ir
/r

e
m

o
d

e
li
n

g
1

 
1

8
$

5
7

8
,0

0
0

0
$

0
S

tr
u

c
tu

ra
l 

re
p

a
ir

s
 (

w
a

ll
s
, 

fo
u

n
d

a
ti

o
n

s
, 

e
tc

.)
1

$
0

0
$

0
R

o
o

f 
re

p
a

ir
/r

e
p

la
c

e
m

e
n

t
1

9
1

$
0

0
$

0
H

e
a

ti
n

g
/v

e
n

ti
la

ti
o

n
/a

ir
 c

o
n

d
it

io
n

in
g

1
$

0
0

$
0

E
le

c
tr

ic
a

l 
s

y
s

te
m

s
 o

th
e
r 

th
a

n
 a

la
rm

s
1

$
0

0
$

0
P

lu
m

b
in

g
 s

y
s

te
m

s
1

$
0

0
$

0
E

g
re

s
s

 s
y
s

te
m

s
 (

d
o

o
rs

, 
s
ta

ir
s

, 
e

tc
.)

1
$

0
0

$
0

F
ir

e
 p

ro
te

c
ti

o
n

 (
d

e
te

c
to

rs
, 

a
la

rm
s

, 
e

tc
.)

1
$

0
0

$
0

A
s

b
e
s

to
s

 a
b

a
te

m
e

n
t

2
0
1

$
0

0
$

0
S

e
c

u
ri

ty
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s

1
$

0
0

$
0

E
n

e
rg

y
 c

o
n

s
e

rv
a

ti
o

n
1

$
0

0
$

0
R

e
p

a
ir

 o
f 

s
id

e
w

a
lk

s
, 
c

u
rb

in
g

, 
p

a
rk

in
g

 a
re

a
s

2
1
1

$
0

0
$

0

Da
ta

 In
pu

t
ile

:/
//

Y:
/B

oa
rd

%
20

Pa
ck

et
s/

20
25

/F
eb

ru
ar

y/
IP

LA
R%

20
20

25
.h

tm
l

8 
of

 2
4

2 /
13

/2
02

5,
 4

:0
9 

PM

49



A
c
c

e
s

s
ib

il
it

y
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s

1
$

0
0

$
0

T
e

c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
 u

p
g

ra
d

in
g

1
$

0
0

$
0

N
e
w

 b
u

il
d

in
g

 c
o

n
s

tr
u

c
ti

o
n

 (
c

o
n

s
tr

u
c

ti
o

n
 o

f
a

 n
e
w

 f
a
c

il
it

y
)

2
2
1

$
0

0
$

0
B

u
il

d
in

g
 a

d
d

it
io

n
s

 (
a

d
d

in
g

 s
q

u
a

re
 f

e
e
t 

to
e

x
is

ti
n

g
 f

a
c

il
it

y
)

2
3
1

$
0

0
$

0

A
S

S
ET

S
 A

N
D

 L
IA

B
IL

IT
IE

S
 (

7
.1

 -
 7

.1
3

)

Th
e 

b
el

o
w

 s
ec

ti
o

n
s 

re
q

u
es

t 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 r

eg
ar

d
in

g
 p

ro
p

er
ty

, 
fi

sc
al

 a
cc

u
m

u
la

ti
o

n
s 

an
d

 o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

 li
ab

ili
ti

es
. 

Th
es

e 
se

ct
io

n
s 

ar
e 

re
q

u
ir

ed
b

y 
st

at
u

te
 [

 [
7

5
 I

LC
S

 5
/

4
-1

0
, 

7
5

 I
LC

S
 1

6
/3

0
-6

5
] 

to
 b

e 
in

cl
u

d
ed

 i
n

 t
h

e 
an

n
u

al
 r

ep
o

rt
. 

P
le

as
e 

p
ro

vi
d

e 
th

e 
re

q
u

es
te

d
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 in

 e
ac

h
se

ct
io

n
.

P
ro

p
er

ty

Li
b

ra
ri

es
 a

re
 r

eq
u

ir
ed

 b
y 

st
at

u
te

 [
7

5
 I

LC
S

 5
/

4
-1

0
(4

),
 7

5
 I

LC
S

 1
6

/
3

0
-6

5
(a

)(
3

)]
 t

o 
p

ro
vi

d
e 

a 
st

at
em

en
t 

as
 t

o 
p

ro
p

er
ty

 a
cq

u
ir

ed
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
le

g
ac

y,
 p

u
rc

h
as

e,
 g

if
t 

o
r 

ot
h

er
w

is
e.

 P
le

as
e 

p
ro

vi
d

e 
th

is
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 in

 t
h

e 
se

ct
io

n
 b

el
o

w
.

7
.1

 W
h

at
 is

 t
h

e 
es

ti
m

at
ed

 c
u

rr
en

t 
fa

ir
 m

ar
ke

t 
va

lu
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

lib
ra

ry
's

 r
ea

l 
es

ta
te

 (
la

n
d

 a
n

d
b

u
il

d
in

g
s 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 g
ar

ag
es

, 
sh

ed
s,

 e
tc

.)
?

2
4

$
2

6
,8

6
8

,0
6

3
 

7
.2

 D
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e 

la
st

 f
is

ca
l y

ea
r,

 d
id

 t
h

e 
lib

ra
ry

 a
cq

u
ir

e 
an

y 
re

al
 a

n
d

/o
r 

p
er

so
n

al
 p

ro
p

er
ty

?
N

o

IF
 Y

ES
, 

h
o

w
 m

u
ch

 o
f 

th
e 

p
ro

p
er

ty
 w

as
 a

cq
u

ir
ed

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e 
fo

ll
ow

in
g

 o
p

ti
o

n
s?

 (
En

te
r 

d
o

lla
r 

am
ou

n
t 

fo
r 

ea
ch

 o
p

ti
o

n
 7

.3
-7

.6
 t

h
at

 a
p

p
lie

s)

7
.3

 P
u

rc
h

as
e

7
.4

 L
eg

ac
y

7
.5

 G
if

t
7

.6
 O

th
er

7
.7

 P
ro

vi
d

e 
a 

g
en

er
al

 d
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e 
p

ro
p

er
ty

 a
cq

u
ir

ed
.

Fi
sc

al
 A

cc
u

m
u

la
ti

o
n

s

Li
b

ra
ri

es
 a

re
 r

eq
u

ir
ed

 b
y 

st
at

u
te

 [
7

5
 I

LC
S

 5
/

4
-1

0
(7

),
 7

5
 I

LC
S

 1
6

/
3

0
-6

5
(a

)(
4

)]
 t

o 
p

ro
vi

d
e 

a 
st

at
em

en
t 

as
 t

o 
th

e 
am

ou
n

t 
of

 a
n

y 
fi

sc
al

ac
cu

m
u

la
ti

on
s 

an
d

 t
h

e 
re

as
o

n
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

ac
cu

m
u

la
ti

o
n

s.
 P

le
as

e 
p

ro
vi

d
e 

th
is

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 i
n

 t
h

e 
se

ct
io

n
 b

el
o

w
.

7
.8

 D
o

es
 y

ou
r 

lib
ra

ry
 h

av
e 

fi
sc

al
 a

cc
u

m
u

la
ti

on
s 

(r
es

er
ve

 f
u

n
d

s,
 o

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g
 f

u
n

d
 b

al
an

ce
s,

et
c.

)?
Y
e
s

7
.9

 I
F 

Y
ES

, 
th

en
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

a 
st

at
em

en
t 

th
at

 d
et

ai
ls

 t
h

e 
d

ol
la

r 
am

o
u

n
t(

s)
 a

n
d

 t
h

e 
re

as
o

n
(s

) 
fo

r 
th

e
fi

sc
al

 a
cc

u
m

u
la

ti
on

s.
In

 J
u

n
e 

of
 2

0
1

2
, 

Th
e 

Li
b

ra
ry

 B
oa

rd
 o

f 
Tr

u
st

ee
s 

vo
te

d
 t

o
es

ta
b

lis
h

 p
ol

ic
y 

re
q

u
ir

in
g

 $
1

,5
0

0
,0

0
0

 in
 c

as
h

 r
es

er
ve

s.

Li
ab

ili
ti

es

Li
b

ra
ri

es
 a

re
 r

eq
u

ir
ed

 b
y 

st
at

u
te

 [
7

5
 I

LC
S

 5
/

4
-1

0
(8

),
 7

5
 I

LC
S

 1
6

/
3

0
-6

5
(a

)(
5

)]
 t

o 
p

ro
vi

d
e 

a 
st

at
em

en
t 

as
 t

o 
an

y 
ou

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

 li
ab

ili
ti

es
,

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 f
o

r 
b

o
n

d
s 

st
ill

 o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

. 
P

le
as

e 
p

ro
vi

d
e 

th
is

 i
n

fo
rm

at
io

n
 in

 t
h

e 
se

ct
io

n
 b

el
ow

.

7
.1

0
 D

oe
s 

yo
u

r 
lib

ra
ry

 h
av

e 
an

y 
ou

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

 li
ab

ili
ti

es
 in

cl
u

d
in

g
 b

on
d

s,
 j

u
d

g
m

en
ts

, 
se

tt
le

m
en

ts
,

et
c.

?
N

o

7
.1

1
 I

F 
Y

ES
, 

w
h

at
 is

 t
h

e 
to

ta
l a

m
ou

n
t 

of
 t

h
e 

ou
ts

ta
n

d
in

g
 li

ab
ili

ti
es

?
7

.1
2

 I
F 

Y
ES

, 
th

en
 p

re
p

ar
e 

a 
st

at
em

en
t 

th
at

 id
en

ti
fi

es
 e

ac
h

 o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

 li
ab

il
it

y 
an

d
 it

s 
sp

ec
if

ic
d

ol
la

r 
am

o
u

n
t.

Da
ta

 In
pu

t
ile

:/
//

Y:
/B

oa
rd

%
20

Pa
ck

et
s/

20
25

/F
eb

ru
ar

y/
IP

LA
R%

20
20

25
.h

tm
l

9 
of

 2
4

2 /
13

/2
02

5,
 4

:0
9 

PM

50



O
P

ER
A

TI
N

G
 R

EC
E

IP
TS

 B
Y

 S
O

U
R

C
E 

(8
.1

 -
 8

.2
1

)

Li
b

ra
ri

es
 a

re
 r

eq
u

ir
ed

 b
y 

st
at

u
te

 [
7

5
 I

LC
S

 5
/

4
-1

0
(1

)(
9

),
 7

5
 I

LC
S

 1
6

/
3

0
-6

5
(a

)(
6

)]
 t

o 
p

ro
vi

d
e 

an
 it

em
iz

ed
 s

ta
te

m
en

t 
of

 o
p

er
at

in
g

re
ce

ip
ts

. 
"O

p
er

at
in

g
 r

ec
ei

p
ts

" 
ar

e 
th

e 
m

o
n

ie
s 

re
ce

iv
ed

 a
n

d
 u

ti
li

ze
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e 

lib
ra

ry
's

 f
is

ca
l 

ye
ar

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e 
p

ro
vi

si
o

n
 o

f 
o

n
g

o
in

g
,

d
ay

-t
o

-d
ay

 l
ib

ra
ry

 s
er

vi
ce

s.
 O

n
ly

 in
cl

u
d

e 
fu

n
d

s 
re

ce
iv

ed
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e 
re

p
o

rt
 p

er
io

d
. 

If
 t

h
e 

lib
ra

ry
 w

as
 a

w
ar

d
ed

 a
 g

ra
n

t,
 b

u
t 

o
n

ly
 r

ec
ei

ve
d

p
ar

t 
o

f 
th

e 
fu

n
d

s 
d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e 
re

p
or

t 
p

er
io

d
, 

re
p

o
rt

 o
n

ly
 t

h
e 

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
th

e 
g

ra
n

t 
re

ce
iv

ed
, 

n
o

t 
th

e 
w

h
o

le
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
th

e 
g

ra
n

t.

Ex
cl

u
d

e 
re

ve
n

u
e 

fo
r 

m
aj

or
 c

ap
it

al
 e

xp
en

d
it

u
re

s,
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s 
to

 e
n

d
o

w
m

en
ts

, 
re

ve
n

u
e 

p
as

se
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
o

 a
n

o
th

er
 a

g
en

cy
, 

fu
n

d
s

u
n

sp
en

t 
in

 p
re

vi
ou

s 
fi

sc
al

 y
ea

rs
 (

e.
g

. 
ca

rr
yo

ve
r)

, 
an

d
 t

ax
 a

n
ti

ci
p

at
io

n
 w

ar
ra

n
ts

.

N
O

TE
: 

R
o

u
n

d
 a

n
sw

er
s 

to
 t

h
e 

n
ea

re
st

 w
h

o
le

 d
o

lla
r.

Lo
ca

l 
G

o
ve

rn
m

en
t

Th
is

 in
cl

u
d

es
 a

ll 
lo

ca
l g

o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

fu
n

d
s 

d
es

ig
n

at
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y,
 d

is
tr

ic
t,

 o
r 

re
g

io
n

 a
n

d
 a

va
ila

b
le

 f
o

r 
ex

p
en

d
it

u
re

 b
y 

th
e 

p
u

b
lic

lib
ra

ry
. 

Fo
r 

ex
am

p
le

, 
in

cl
u

d
e 

re
ce

ip
ts

 f
ro

m
: 

lo
ca

l p
ro

p
er

ty
 t

ax
es

 (
lib

ra
ry

 t
ax

es
),

 im
p

ac
t 

fe
es

 (
IL

 H
ig

h
w

ay
 C

od
e)

, 
th

e 
M

ob
ile

 H
o

m
e 

Lo
ca

l
S

er
vi

ce
s 

Ta
x 

A
ct

. 
D

o
 n

o
t 

in
cl

u
d

e 
th

e 
va

lu
e 

o
f 

an
y 

co
n

tr
ib

u
te

d
 o

r 
in

-k
in

d
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

o
r 

th
e 

va
lu

e 
o

f 
an

y 
g

if
ts

 a
n

d
 d

o
n

at
io

n
s,

 li
b

ra
ry

 f
in

es
,

fe
es

, 
o

r 
g

ra
n

ts
. 

D
o 

n
o

t 
in

cl
u

d
e 

st
at

e,
 f

ed
er

al
, 

an
d

 o
th

er
 f

u
n

d
s 

p
as

se
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 lo
ca

l g
o

ve
rn

m
en

t 
fo

r 
li

b
ra

ry
 u

se
. 

R
ep

o
rt

 t
h

es
e 

fu
n

d
s 

w
it

h
st

at
e 

g
o

ve
rn

m
en

t 
re

ve
n

u
e 

o
r 

fe
d

er
al

 g
o

ve
rn

m
en

t 
re

ve
n

u
e,

 a
s 

ap
p

ro
p

ri
at

e.

8
.1

 L
oc

al
 g

o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

[P
LS

 3
0

0
] 

(i
n

cl
u

d
es

 a
ll 

lo
ca

l g
ov

er
n

m
en

t 
fu

n
d

s 
d

es
ig

n
at

ed
 b

y 
th

e
co

m
m

u
n

it
y,

 d
is

tr
ic

t,
 o

r 
re

g
io

n
 a

n
d

 a
va

ila
b

le
 f

or
 e

xp
en

d
it

u
re

 b
y 

th
e 

p
u

b
lic

 l
ib

ra
ry

, 
ex

ce
p

t 
ca

p
it

al
in

co
m

e 
fr

o
m

 b
o

n
d

 s
al

es
 w

h
ic

h
 m

u
st

 b
e 

re
p

or
te

d
 in

 1
2

.1
a 

o
n

ly
)

2
5

$
6

,0
2

7
,7

3
4

 

8
.1

a
 I

s 
th

is
 l

ib
ra

ry
's

 a
n

n
u

al
 t

ax
 le

vy
/

fi
sc

al
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
at

io
n

 s
u

b
je

ct
 t

o 
ta

x 
ca

p
s 

[t
h

e 
P

ro
p

er
ty

 T
ax

Ex
te

n
si

on
 L

im
it

at
io

n
 L

aw
, 

3
5

 I
LC

S
 2

0
0

/
1

8
-1

8
5

, 
et

 s
eq

.]
?

N
o

8
.1

b
 L

oc
al

 g
o

ve
rn

m
en

t 
fu

n
d

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
en

su
in

g
 o

r 
u

p
co

m
in

g
/

cu
rr

en
t 

fi
sc

al
 y

ea
r 

(i
n

cl
u

d
es

 a
ll 

lo
ca

l
g

ov
er

n
m

en
t 

fu
n

d
s 

d
es

ig
n

at
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y,
 d

is
tr

ic
t,

 o
r 

re
g

io
n

 a
n

d
 a

va
ila

b
le

 f
o

r 
ex

p
en

d
it

u
re

b
y 

th
e 

p
u

b
lic

 li
b

ra
ry

, 
ex

ce
p

t 
ca

p
it

al
 in

co
m

e 
fr

om
 b

on
d

 s
al

es
.)

$
6

,1
0

0
,0

0
0

 

S
ta

te
 G

o
ve

rn
m

en
t

Th
es

e 
ar

e 
al

l f
u

n
d

s 
d

is
tr

ib
u

te
d

 t
o

 p
u

b
lic

 l
ib

ra
ri

es
 b

y 
st

at
e 

g
o

ve
rn

m
en

t 
fo

r 
ex

p
en

d
it

u
re

 b
y 

th
e 

p
u

b
lic

 l
ib

ra
ri

es
, 

ex
ce

p
t 

fo
r

fe
d

er
al

 m
o

n
ey

 d
is

tr
ib

u
te

d
 b

y 
th

e 
st

at
e.

 T
h

is
 in

cl
u

d
es

 f
u

n
d

s 
fr

o
m

 s
u

ch
 s

o
u

rc
es

 a
s 

p
en

al
 f

in
es

, 
lic

en
se

 f
ee

s,
 a

n
d

 m
in

er
al

 r
ig

h
ts

.

N
ot

e:
 I

f 
o

p
er

at
in

g
 r

ev
en

u
e 

fr
o

m
 c

o
n

so
lid

at
ed

 t
ax

es
 is

 t
h

e 
re

su
lt

 o
f 

st
at

e 
le

g
is

la
ti

o
n

, 
th

e 
re

ve
n

u
e 

sh
o

u
ld

 b
e 

re
p

o
rt

ed
 u

n
d

er
 s

ta
te

 r
ev

en
u

e
(e

ve
n

 t
h

ou
g

h
 t

h
e 

re
ve

n
u

e 
m

ay
 b

e 
fr

o
m

 m
u

lt
ip

le
 s

o
u

rc
es

).

If
 y

o
u

 a
re

 n
o

t 
su

re
 i

f 
fu

n
d

s 
yo

u
 r

ec
ei

ve
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e 
S

ta
te

 o
f 

Il
li

n
o

is
 a

re
 f

ed
er

al
 o

f 
st

at
e 

fu
n

d
s,

 p
le

as
e 

co
n

ta
ct

 I
P

LA
R

@
il

so
s.

g
o

v 
o

r 
th

e
Li

b
ra

ry
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
G

ro
u

p
 a

t 
2

1
7

-5
2

4
-8

8
3

6
.

8
.2

 P
er

 c
ap

it
a 

g
ra

n
t

$
9

0
,1

0
2

 
8

.3
 E

q
u

al
iz

at
io

n
 a

id
 g

ra
n

t
$

0
 

8
.4

 P
er

so
n

al
 p

ro
p

er
ty

 r
ep

la
ce

m
en

t 
ta

x
2

6
$

1
,5

8
3

,0
4

1
 

8
.5

 O
th

er
 S

ta
te

 G
o

ve
rn

m
en

t 
fu

n
d

s 
re

ce
iv

ed
2

7
$

1
,0

5
0

 
8

.6
 I

f 
O

th
er

, 
p

le
as

e 
sp

ec
if

y
8

.7
 T

ot
al

 S
ta

te
 G

o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

Fu
n

d
s 

(8
.2

 +
 8

.3
 +

 8
.4

 +
 8

.5
) 

[P
LS

 3
0

1
]

$
1

,6
7

4
,1

9
3

 

Fe
d

er
al

 G
ov

er
n

m
en

t

Th
is

 in
cl

u
d

es
 a

ll 
fe

d
er

al
 g

o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

fu
n

d
s 

d
is

tr
ib

u
te

d
 t

o
 p

u
b

lic
 li

b
ra

ri
es

 f
o

r 
ex

p
en

d
it

u
re

 b
y 

th
e 

p
u

b
lic

 li
b

ra
ri

es
, 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 f
ed

er
al

 m
o

n
ey

d
is

tr
ib

u
te

d
 b

y 
th

e 
S

ta
te

 o
f 

Il
lin

o
is

 (
e.

g
.,

 L
S

TA
 g

ra
n

ts
 p

ai
d

 d
ir

ec
tl

y 
to

 y
o

u
r 

lib
ra

ry
).

If
 y

o
u

 a
re

 u
n

su
re

 i
f 

th
e 

fu
n

d
s 

yo
u

 r
ec

ei
ve

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e 

S
ta

te
 o

f 
Il

li
n

o
is

 w
er

e 
fe

d
er

al
 o

r 
st

at
e 

fu
n

d
s,

 p
le

as
e 

co
n

ta
ct

 I
P

LA
R

@
ils

o
s.

g
o

v 
o

r
th

e 
Li

b
ra

ry
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

G
ro

u
p

 a
t 

2
1

7
-5

2
4

-8
8

3
6

.

8
.8

 L
S

TA
 f

u
n

d
s 

re
ce

iv
ed

$
0

 

Da
ta

 In
pu

t
ile

:/
//

Y:
/B

oa
rd

%
20

Pa
ck

et
s/

20
25

/F
eb

ru
ar

y/
IP

LA
R%

20
20

25
.h

tm
l

10
 o

f 2
4

2 /
13

/2
02

5,
 4

:0
9 

PM

51



8
.9

 E
-R

at
e 

fu
n

d
s 

re
ce

iv
ed

2
8

$
1

8
,0

3
3

 
8

.1
0

 O
th

er
 f

ed
er

al
 f

u
n

d
s 

re
ce

iv
ed

$
3

,5
0

0
 

8
.1

1
 I

f 
O

th
er

, 
p

le
as

e 
sp

ec
if

y
A

g
e 

O
p

ti
on

 C
A

R
ES

 
8

.1
2

 T
ot

al
 F

ed
er

al
 G

o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

Fu
n

d
s 

(8
.8

 +
 8

.9
 +

 8
.1

0
) 

[P
LS

 3
0

2
]

$
2

1
,5

3
3

 

O
th

er
 I

n
co

m
e

Th
is

 is
 a

ll 
o

p
er

at
in

g
 r

ev
en

u
e 

o
th

er
 t

h
an

 t
h

at
 r

ep
or

te
d

 u
n

d
er

 lo
ca

l,
 s

ta
te

, 
an

d
 f

ed
er

al
 f

u
n

d
s.

 I
n

cl
u

d
e,

 f
or

 e
xa

m
p

le
, 

m
o

n
et

ar
y 

g
if

ts
 a

n
d

d
o

n
at

io
n

s 
re

ce
iv

ed
 in

 t
h

e 
cu

rr
en

t 
ye

ar
, 

in
te

re
st

, 
lib

ra
ry

 f
in

es
, 

fe
es

 f
o

r 
lib

ra
ry

 s
er

vi
ce

s,
or

 g
ra

n
ts

. 
D

o
 n

o
t 

in
cl

u
d

e 
th

e 
va

lu
e 

of
 a

n
y 

co
n

tr
ib

u
te

d
 o

r 
in

-k
in

d
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

or
 t

h
e 

va
lu

e 
o

f 
an

y 
n

o
n

-m
o

n
et

ar
y 

g
if

ts
 a

n
d

 d
on

at
io

n
s.

8
.1

3
 M

on
et

ar
y 

G
if

ts
 a

n
d

 D
on

at
io

n
s

$
8

2
,7

4
7

 
8

.1
4

 O
th

er
 r

ec
ei

p
ts

 in
te

n
d

ed
 t

o
 b

e 
u

se
d

 f
or

 o
p

er
at

in
g

 e
xp

en
d

it
u

re
s

2
9

$
4

3
8

,9
8

0
 

8
.1

5
 T

O
TA

L 
al

l o
th

er
 r

ec
ei

p
ts

 (
8

.1
3

 +
 8

.1
4

) 
[P

LS
 3

0
3

]
$

5
2

1
,7

2
7

 
8

.1
6

 O
th

er
 n

on
-c

ap
it

al
 r

ec
ei

p
ts

 p
la

ce
d

 in
 r

es
er

ve
 f

u
n

d
s

$
0

 

To
ta

l O
p

er
at

in
g

 R
ec

ei
p

ts

8
.1

7
 T

O
TA

L 
re

ce
ip

ts
 (

 8
.1

 +
 8

.7
 +

 8
.1

2
 +

 8
.1

5
) 

[P
LS

 3
0

4
]

$
8

,2
4

5
,1

8
7

 

S
af

eg
u

ar
d

in
g

 o
f 

Li
b

ra
ry

 F
u

n
d

s

Th
is

 s
ec

ti
o

n
 r

eq
u

es
ts

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 t
o

 v
er

if
y 

th
at

 li
b

ra
ri

es
 m

ee
t 

th
e 

st
at

u
to

ry
 r

eq
u

ir
ed

 m
in

im
u

m
 le

ve
l o

f 
in

su
ra

n
ce

 f
o

r 
lib

ra
ry

 f
u

n
d

s 
[7

5
IL

C
S

 5
/

4
-9

 a
n

d
 7

5
 I

LC
S

 1
6

/
3

0
-4

5
(e

)]
. 

A
cc

or
d

in
g

 t
o 

th
es

e 
st

at
u

te
s,

 “
th

e 
lib

ra
ry

 s
h

al
l p

ro
vi

d
e 

th
e 

Il
lin

o
is

 S
ta

te
 L

ib
ra

ry
 a

 c
op

y 
o

f 
th

e
lib

ra
ry

’s
 c

er
ti

fi
ca

te
 o

f 
in

su
ra

n
ce

 a
t 

th
e 

ti
m

e 
th

e 
lib

ra
ry

’s
 a

n
n

u
al

 r
ep

o
rt

 i
s 

fi
le

d
.”

Fo
r 

m
u

n
ic

ip
al

it
ie

s 
o

f 
le

ss
 t

h
an

 5
0

0
,0

0
0

 p
o

p
u

la
ti

on
, 

7
5

 I
LC

S
 5

/
4

-9
 r

eq
u

ir
es

 t
h

at
 t

h
e 

b
o

n
d

 b
e 

".
..

n
o

t 
le

ss
 t

h
an

 1
0

%
 o

f 
th

e 
to

ta
l f

u
n

d
s

re
ce

iv
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

li
b

ra
ry

 in
 t

h
e 

la
st

 f
is

ca
l y

ea
r.

..
,"

 o
r 

th
e 

in
su

ra
n

ce
 p

o
lic

y 
o

r 
o

th
er

 in
su

ra
n

ce
 i

n
st

ru
m

en
t'

s 
co

ve
ra

g
e 

".
..

sh
al

l b
e 

in
 a

n
am

ou
n

t 
at

 le
as

t 
eq

u
al

 t
o 

5
0

%
 o

f 
th

e 
av

er
ag

e 
am

o
u

n
t 

of
 t

h
e 

lib
ra

ry
's

 o
p

er
at

in
g

 f
u

n
d

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e 

p
ri

o
r 

3
 f

is
ca

l y
ea

rs
."

Fo
r 

p
u

b
lic

 li
b

ra
ry

 d
is

tr
ic

ts
, 

7
5

 I
LC

S
 1

6
/

3
0

-4
5

(e
) 

re
q

u
ir

es
 t

h
at

 t
h

e 
b

o
n

d
 b

e 
".

..
b

as
ed

 u
p

o
n

 a
 m

in
im

u
m

 o
f 

1
0

%
 o

f 
th

e 
to

ta
l f

u
n

d
s 

re
ce

iv
ed

b
y 

th
e 

d
is

tr
ic

t 
in

 t
h

e 
la

st
 p

re
vi

o
u

s 
fi

sc
al

 y
ea

r.
..

,"
 o

r 
th

e 
in

su
ra

n
ce

 p
o

li
cy

 o
r 

o
th

er
 in

su
ra

n
ce

 i
n

st
ru

m
en

t'
s 

co
ve

ra
g

e 
".

..
 s

h
al

l 
b

e 
in

 a
n

am
ou

n
t 

at
 le

as
t 

eq
u

al
 t

o 
1

0
%

 o
f 

th
e 

av
er

ag
e 

am
o

u
n

t 
of

 t
h

e 
d

is
tr

ic
t'

s 
o

p
er

at
in

g
 f

u
n

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e 
p

ri
o

r 
3

 f
is

ca
l y

ea
rs

."

8
.1

8
a

 T
h

e 
lib

ra
ry

 s
af

eg
u

ar
d

s 
it

s 
fu

n
d

s 
u

si
n

g
 w

h
ic

h
 o

p
ti

o
n

?
In

su
ra

n
ce

 P
o
lic

y/
In

st
ru

m
e
n
t

8
.1

8
b

 P
ro

of
 o

f 
C

er
ti

fi
ca

te
 o

f 
In

su
ra

n
ce

 f
or

 L
ib

ra
ry

 F
u

n
d

s
G

ov
er

n
em

t 
C

ri
m

e 
P

o
lic

y 
2

0
2

5
.p

d
f

8
.1

9
 W

h
at

 is
 t

h
e 

co
ve

ra
g

e 
am

ou
n

t 
o

f 
ei

th
er

 t
h

e 
su

re
ty

 b
o

n
d

 O
R

 t
h

e 
in

su
ra

n
ce

 p
ol

ic
y/

in
su

ra
n

ce
in

st
ru

m
en

t?
$

4
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
 

8
.2

0
 I

s 
th

e 
am

ou
n

t 
o

f 
th

e 
su

re
ty

 b
o

n
d

, 
in

su
ra

n
ce

 p
ol

ic
y 

or
 o

th
er

 in
su

ra
n

ce
 in

st
ru

m
en

t 
in

co
m

p
lia

n
ce

 w
it

h
 li

b
ra

ry
 la

w
?

Y
e
s

8
.2

1
 T

h
e 

d
es

ig
n

at
ed

 c
u

st
od

ia
n

 o
f 

th
e 

lib
ra

ry
's

 f
u

n
d

s 
is

:
O

th
e
r

Da
ta

 In
pu

t
ile

:/
//

Y:
/B

oa
rd

%
20

Pa
ck

et
s/

20
25

/F
eb

ru
ar

y/
IP

LA
R%

20
20

25
.h

tm
l

11
 o

f 2
4

2 /
13

/2
02

5,
 4

:0
9 

PM

52



O
P

ER
A

TI
N

G
 E

X
P

EN
D

IT
U

R
ES

 B
Y

 C
A

T
EG

O
R

Y
 (

9
.1

 -
 1

1
.2

)

Li
b

ra
ri

es
 a

re
 r

eq
u

ir
ed

 b
y 

st
at

u
te

 [
7

5
 I

LC
S

 5
/

4
-1

0
(2

),
 7

5
 I

LC
S

 1
6

/
3

0
-6

5
(a

)(
6

)]
 t

o 
p

ro
vi

d
e 

an
 it

em
iz

ed
 s

ta
te

m
en

t 
as

 t
o 

h
o

w
 o

p
er

at
in

g
re

ve
n

u
es

 h
av

e 
b

ee
n

 e
xp

en
d

ed
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e 
fi

sc
al

 y
ea

r 
re

p
o

rt
 p

er
io

d
. 

"O
p

er
at

in
g

 e
xp

en
d

it
u

re
s"

 a
re

 t
h

e 
cu

rr
en

t 
an

d
 r

ec
u

rr
en

t 
co

st
s

n
ec

es
sa

ry
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e 

p
ro

vi
si

o
n

 o
f 

lib
ra

ry
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

In
cl

u
d

e:
 S

ig
n

if
ic

an
t 

co
st

s,
 e

sp
ec

ia
lly

 b
en

ef
it

s 
an

d
 s

al
ar

ie
s,

 t
h

at
 a

re
 p

ai
d

 b
y 

o
th

er
 t

ax
in

g
 a

g
en

ci
es

 (
g

o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

ag
en

ci
es

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

au
th

o
ri

ty
 t

o
 le

vy
 t

ax
) 

"o
n

 b
eh

al
f 

of
" 

th
e 

lib
ra

ry
 m

ay
 b

e 
in

cl
u

de
d

 if
 t

h
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 is
 a

va
ila

b
le

 t
o

 t
h

e 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 a

g
en

cy
. 

O
n

ly
 s

u
ch

 f
u

n
d

s
th

at
 a

re
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
ed

 b
y 

ex
p

en
d

it
u

re
 d

o
cu

m
en

ts
 (

su
ch

 a
s 

in
vo

ic
es

, 
co

n
tr

ac
ts

, 
p

ay
ro

ll 
re

co
rd

s,
 e

tc
.)

 a
t 

th
e 

p
o

in
t 

o
f 

d
is

b
u

rs
em

en
t 

sh
o

u
ld

 b
e

in
cl

u
d

ed
.

Ex
cl

u
d

e:
 D

o
 n

o
t 

re
p

o
rt

 t
h

e 
va

lu
e 

o
f 

fr
ee

 it
em

s,
 e

st
im

at
ed

 c
o

st
s,

 a
n

d
 c

ap
it

al
 e

xp
en

d
it

u
re

s.

N
O

TE
: 

R
o

u
n

d
 a

n
sw

er
s 

to
 t

h
e 

n
ea

re
st

 w
h

o
le

 d
o

lla
r.

S
TA

FF
 E

X
P

EN
D

IT
U

R
ES

 (
9

.1
-9

.3
)

Th
is

 s
ec

ti
o

n
 g

at
h

er
s 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 o
n

 s
ta

ff
 b

en
ef

it
s 

an
d

 s
al

ar
ie

s.
 I

f 
th

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 is

 a
va

ila
b

le
, 

in
cl

u
d

e 
b

en
ef

it
s 

an
d

 s
al

ar
ie

s 
fo

r 
st

af
f 

th
at

ar
e 

p
ai

d
 b

y 
o

th
er

 t
ax

in
g

 a
g

en
ci

es
 (

g
o

ve
rn

m
en

t 
ag

en
ci

es
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
au

th
o

ri
ty

 t
o

 l
ev

y 
ta

x)
 "

o
n

 b
eh

al
f 

o
f"

 t
h

e 
li

b
ra

ry
.

N
O

TE
: 

R
o

u
n

d
 a

n
sw

er
s 

to
 t

h
e 

n
ea

re
st

 w
h

o
le

 d
o

lla
r.

9
.1

 S
al

ar
ie

s 
an

d
 w

ag
es

 f
o

r 
al

l l
ib

ra
ry

 s
ta

ff
 [

P
LS

 3
5

0
]

$
3

,3
2

3
,8

6
0

 
9

.2
a

 F
ri

n
g

e 
b

en
ef

it
s,

 f
or

 a
ll 

lib
ra

ry
 s

ta
ff

, 
p

ai
d

 f
or

 f
ro

m
 e

it
h

er
 t

h
e 

lib
ra

ry
's

 o
r 

th
e 

m
u

n
ic

ip
al

co
rp

or
at

e 
au

th
or

it
y'

s 
ap

p
ro

p
ri

at
io

n
 [

P
LS

 3
5

1
]

$
9

7
7

,1
0

7
 

9
.2

b
 I

f 
th

is
 li

b
ra

ry
 a

n
sw

er
ed

 q
u

es
ti

on
 9

.2
a 

as
 z

er
o,

 p
le

as
e 

se
le

ct
 a

n
 e

xp
la

n
at

io
n

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e 

d
ro

p
-

d
ow

n
 b

ox
.

9
.3

 T
ot

al
 S

ta
ff

 E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
s 

(9
.1

 +
 9

.2
) 

[P
LS

 3
5

2
]

$
4

,3
0

0
,9

6
7

 

C
O

LL
EC

TI
O

N
 E

X
P

EN
D

IT
U

R
ES

 (
1

0
.1

 -
 1

0
.4

)

In
cl

u
d

e 
ex

p
en

d
it

u
re

s 
fo

r 
al

l m
at

er
ia

ls
 in

 a
ll 

fo
rm

at
s 

(e
.g

.,
 p

ri
n

t,
 m

ic
ro

fo
rm

, 
el

ec
tr

o
n

ic
) 

w
h

et
h

er
 p

u
rc

h
as

ed
, 

le
as

ed
 o

r 
lic

en
se

d
. 

Ex
cl

u
d

e
ch

ar
g

es
 o

r 
fe

es
 f

o
r 

in
te

rl
ib

ra
ry

 l
oa

n
s 

an
d

 e
xp

en
d

it
u

re
s 

fo
r 

d
o

cu
m

en
t 

d
el

iv
er

y.

N
O

TE
: 

R
o

u
n

d
 a

n
sw

er
s 

to
 t

h
e 

n
ea

re
st

 w
h

o
le

 d
o

lla
r.

1
0

.1
 P

ri
n

te
d

 M
at

er
ia

ls
 (

b
oo

ks
, 

n
ew

sp
ap

er
s,

 e
tc

.)
 [

P
LS

 3
5

3
]

3
0

$
3

4
3

,8
4

5
 

1
0

.2
 E

le
ct

ro
n

ic
 C

on
te

n
t 

Ex
p

en
d

it
u

re
s 

(e
-b

o
ok

s,
 d

at
ab

as
es

, 
et

c.
) 

[P
LS

 3
5

4
]

$
3

1
5

,9
4

3
 

1
0

.3
a

 O
th

er
 P

h
ys

ic
al

 M
at

er
ia

ls
 E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

s 
[P

LS
 3

5
5

]
$

1
0

9
,5

8
5

 

1
0

.3
b

 P
le

as
e 

lis
t 

th
e 

ty
p

es
 o

f 
m

at
er

ia
ls

 p
u

rc
h

as
ed

 in
 1

0
.3

a
D

V
D

s,
 4

K
 D

V
D

s,
 B

lu
-r

ay
s,

 C
D

s,
 V

id
eo

g
am

es
, 

S
TE

M
 k

it
s,

Y
o

to
 m

u
si

c 
p

la
ye

rs
, 

fl
as

h
 c

ar
d

s,
 v

in
yl

 c
u

tt
er

s,
 m

em
o

ry
 k

it
s,

b
oa

rd
 g

am
es

, 
as

si
st

iv
e 

te
ch

n
ol

o
g

y 
d

ev
ic

es
, 

m
u

si
ca

l
in

st
ru

m
en

ts
, 

re
al

ia
 

1
0

.4
 T

O
TA

L 
C

o
lle

ct
io

n
 E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

s 
(1

0
.1

 +
 1

0
.2

 +
 1

0
.3

) 
[P

LS
 3

5
6

]
$

7
6

9
,3

7
3

 

O
TH

ER
 O

P
ER

A
TI

N
G

 E
X

P
EN

D
IT

U
R

E
S

 (
1

1
.1

 -
 1

1
.2

)

Th
is

 in
cl

u
d

es
 a

ll 
ex

p
en

d
it

u
re

s 
ot

h
er

 t
h

an
 t

h
o

se
 r

ep
o

rt
ed

 f
o

r 
S

ta
ff

 E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
s 

an
d

 C
o

lle
ct

io
n

 E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
s.

Ex
cl

u
d

e 
p

u
rc

h
as

es
 o

f 
m

aj
o

r 
fi

xe
d

 a
ss

et
s,

 w
h

ic
h

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e 
re

p
o

rt
ed

 i
n

 c
ap

it
al

 e
xp

en
d

it
u

re
s 

(1
2

.7
).

N
O

TE
: 

R
o

u
n

d
 a

n
sw

er
s 

to
 t

h
e 

n
ea

re
st

 w
h

o
le

 d
o

lla
r.

1
1

.1
 A

ll 
ot

h
er

 o
p

er
at

in
g

 e
xp

en
d

it
u

re
s 

n
ot

 in
cl

u
d

ed
 a

b
o

ve
 (

su
p

p
lie

s,
 u

ti
lit

ie
s,

 le
g

al
 f

ee
s,

 e
tc

.)
[P

LS
 3

5
7

]
$

1
,5

9
6

,6
2

7
 

1
1

.2
 T

O
TA

L 
o

p
er

at
in

g
 e

xp
en

d
it

u
re

s 
(9

.3
 +

 1
0

.4
 +

 1
1

.1
) 

[P
LS

 3
5

8
]

$
6

,6
6

6
,9

6
7

 

Da
ta

 In
pu

t
ile

:/
//

Y:
/B

oa
rd

%
20

Pa
ck

et
s/

20
25

/F
eb

ru
ar

y/
IP

LA
R%

20
20

25
.h

tm
l

12
 o

f 2
4

2 /
13

/2
02

5,
 4

:0
9 

PM

53



C
A

P
IT

A
L 

R
EV

EN
U

E 
A

N
D

 E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
ES

 (
1

2
.1

 -
 1

2
.7

)

Th
is

 s
ec

ti
o

n
 g

at
h

er
s 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 o
n

 c
ap

it
al

 r
ev

en
u

e 
an

d
 e

xp
en

d
it

u
re

s.
 P

ro
vi

d
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
fu

n
d

s 
re

ce
iv

ed
 a

n
d

 s
p

en
t 

d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e 

fi
sc

al
ye

ar
 r

ep
o

rt
 p

er
io

d
 o

n
ly

. 
If

 t
h

e 
lib

ra
ry

 w
as

 a
w

ar
d

ed
 a

 g
ra

n
t,

 b
u

t 
o

n
ly

 r
ec

ei
ve

d
 p

ar
t 

o
f 

th
e 

fu
n

d
s 

d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e 

re
p

o
rt

 p
er

io
d

, 
re

p
or

t 
on

ly
 t

h
e

am
ou

n
t 

o
f 

th
e 

fu
n

d
s 

re
ce

iv
ed

, 
n

o
t 

th
e 

en
ti

re
 g

ra
n

t 
aw

ar
d

.

C
ap

it
al

 R
ev

en
u

e

In
cl

u
d

e 
fu

n
d

s 
re

ce
iv

ed
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e 
fi

sc
al

 y
ea

r 
re

p
o

rt
 p

er
io

d
 f

or
: 

si
te

 a
cq

u
is

it
io

n
s;

 n
ew

 b
u

ild
in

g
(s

);
 a

d
d

it
io

n
s 

to
 o

r 
re

n
ov

at
io

n
s 

o
f 

ex
is

ti
n

g
b

u
ild

in
g

s;
 f

u
rn

is
h

in
g

s,
 e

q
u

ip
m

en
t,

 a
n

d
 in

it
ia

l c
o

lle
ct

io
n

s 
fo

r 
n

ew
 b

u
il

d
in

g
s,

 b
u

il
d

in
g

 a
d

d
it

io
n

s,
 o

r 
b

u
il

d
in

g
 r

en
o

va
ti

o
n

s;
 c

o
m

p
u

te
r

h
ar

d
w

ar
e 

an
d

 s
o

ft
w

ar
e 

u
se

d
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 l

ib
ra

ry
 o

p
er

at
io

n
s,

 t
o

 li
n

k 
to

 n
et

w
o

rk
s,

 o
r 

to
 r

u
n

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 p
ro

d
u

ct
s;

 n
ew

 v
eh

ic
le

s;
 o

r 
ot

h
er

on
e-

ti
m

e 
m

aj
o

r 
p

ro
je

ct
s.

Ex
cl

u
d

e 
re

ve
n

u
e 

fo
r:

 r
ep

la
ce

m
en

t 
an

d
/

o
r 

re
p

ai
r 

o
f 

ex
is

ti
n

g
 f

u
rn

is
h

in
g

s 
an

d
 e

q
u

ip
m

en
t,

 r
eg

u
la

r 
p

u
rc

h
as

e 
o

f 
lib

ra
ry

 m
at

er
ia

ls
,

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 f
o

r 
ca

p
it

al
 a

p
p

re
ci

at
io

n
, 

in
co

m
e 

p
as

se
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
o

 a
n

o
th

er
 a

g
en

cy
 (

e.
g

.,
 f

in
es

),
 a

n
d

 f
u

n
d

s 
u

n
sp

en
t 

in
 p

re
vi

o
u

s 
fi

sc
al

 y
ea

r
(e

.g
.,

 c
ar

ry
ov

er
).

N
O

TE
: 

R
o

u
n

d
 a

n
sw

er
s 

to
 t

h
e 

n
ea

re
st

 w
h

o
le

 d
o

lla
r.

1
2

.1
a

 L
oc

al
 G

ov
er

n
m

en
t:

 C
ap

it
al

 I
n

co
m

e 
fr

om
 B

on
d

 S
al

es
$

0
 

1
2

.1
b

 L
oc

al
 G

ov
er

n
m

en
t:

 O
th

er
$

0
 

1
2

.1
c

 T
ot

al
 L

o
ca

l G
ov

er
n

m
en

t 
(1

2
.1

a 
+

 1
2

.1
b

) 
[P

LS
 4

0
0

]
$

0
 

1
2

.2
 S

ta
te

 G
o

ve
rn

m
en

t 
[P

LS
 4

0
1

]
$

0
 

1
2

.3
 F

ed
er

al
 G

o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

[P
LS

 4
0

2
]

$
0

 
1

2
.4

 O
th

er
 C

ap
it

al
 R

ev
en

u
e 

[P
LS

 4
0

3
]

$
2

6
7

,2
8

4
 

1
2

.5
 I

f 
O

th
er

, 
p

le
as

e 
sp

ec
if

y
C

ap
it

al
 I

n
te

re
st

 I
n

co
m

e 
1

2
.6

 T
ot

al
 C

ap
it

al
 R

ev
en

u
e 

(1
2

.1
c 

+
 1

2
.2

 +
 1

2
.3

 +
 1

2
.4

) 
[P

LS
 4

0
4

]
$

2
6

7
,2

8
4

 

C
ap

it
al

 E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
s

In
cl

u
d

e 
fu

n
d

s 
ex

p
en

d
ed

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e 

fi
sc

al
 y

ea
r 

re
p

o
rt

 p
er

io
d

 f
or

: 
si

te
 a

cq
u

is
it

io
n

s;
 n

ew
 b

u
ild

in
g

(s
);

 a
d

d
it

io
n

s 
to

 o
r 

re
n

ov
at

io
n

s 
o

f
ex

is
ti

n
g

 b
u

ild
in

g
s;

 f
u

rn
is

h
in

g
s,

 e
q

u
ip

m
en

t,
 a

n
d

 i
n

it
ia

l 
co

ll
ec

ti
o

n
s 

fo
r 

n
ew

 b
u

ild
in

g
s,

 b
u

ild
in

g
 a

d
d

it
io

n
s,

 o
r 

b
u

ild
in

g
 r

en
o

va
ti

o
n

s;
co

m
p

u
te

r 
h

ar
d

w
ar

e 
an

d
 s

o
ft

w
ar

e 
u

se
d

 t
o 

su
p

p
o

rt
 l

ib
ra

ry
 o

p
er

at
io

n
s,

 t
o

 li
n

k 
to

 n
et

w
o

rk
s,

 o
r 

to
 r

u
n

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 p
ro

d
u

ct
s;

 n
ew

 v
eh

ic
le

s;
or

 o
th

er
 o

n
e-

ti
m

e 
m

aj
or

 p
ro

je
ct

s.

Ex
cl

u
d

e 
ex

p
en

d
it

u
re

s 
fo

r:
 r

ep
la

ce
m

en
t 

an
d

/
o

r 
re

p
ai

r 
o

f 
ex

is
ti

n
g

 f
u

rn
is

h
in

g
s 

an
d

 e
q

u
ip

m
en

t,
 r

eg
u

la
r 

p
u

rc
h

as
e 

o
f 

lib
ra

ry
 m

at
er

ia
ls

,
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 f

o
r 

ca
p

it
al

 a
p

p
re

ci
at

io
n

, 
in

co
m

e 
p

as
se

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

o
 a

n
o

th
er

 a
g

en
cy

 (
e.

g
.,

 f
in

es
),

 a
n

d
 f

u
n

d
s 

u
n

sp
en

t 
in

 p
re

vi
o

u
s 

fi
sc

al
 y

ea
r

(e
.g

.,
 c

ar
ry

ov
er

).

N
O

TE
: 

R
o

u
n

d
 a

n
sw

er
s 

to
 t

h
e 

n
ea

re
st

 w
h

o
le

 d
o

lla
r.

1
2

.7
 T

ot
al

 C
ap

it
al

 E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
s 

[P
LS

C
 4

0
5

]
3

1
$

1
,1

7
8

,5
3

1
 

Da
ta

 In
pu

t
ile

:/
//

Y:
/B

oa
rd

%
20

Pa
ck

et
s/

20
25

/F
eb

ru
ar

y/
IP

LA
R%

20
20

25
.h

tm
l

13
 o

f 2
4

2 /
13

/2
02

5,
 4

:0
9 

PM

54



P
E

R
S

O
N

N
EL

 (
1

3
.1

 -
 1

3
.4

6
)

In
cl

u
d

e 
al

l p
o

si
ti

o
n

s 
fu

n
d

ed
 in

 t
h

e 
li

b
ra

ry
's

 b
u

d
g

et
 w

h
et

h
er

 t
h

o
se

 p
o

si
ti

o
n

s 
ar

e 
fi

lle
d

 o
r 

n
o

t.
 R

ep
o

rt
 p

o
si

ti
o

n
 f

ig
u

re
s 

as
 o

f 
th

e 
la

st
 d

ay
 o

f
th

e 
fi

sc
al

 y
ea

r.
 I

n
cl

u
d

e 
o

n
ly

 p
ai

d
 e

m
p

lo
ye

es
. 

D
o

 N
O

T 
in

cl
u

d
e 

vo
lu

n
te

er
s.

R
ep

o
rt

 p
er

so
n

n
el

 i
n

 t
h

e 
ap

p
ro

p
ri

at
e 

ca
te

g
o

ri
es

 b
as

ed
 o

n
 t

h
e 

ty
p

e 
o

f 
lib

ra
ry

 w
or

k 
b

ei
n

g
 p

er
fo

rm
ed

 r
at

h
er

 t
h

an
 o

n
 a

n
 e

m
p

lo
ye

e'
s

ed
u

ca
ti

on
al

 q
u

al
if

ic
at

io
n

s.

Th
e 

FT
E 

(f
u

ll-
ti

m
e 

eq
u

iv
al

en
t/

em
p

lo
ye

e)
 c

al
cu

la
to

r 
u

ti
liz

es
 t

h
e 

IM
LS

/
P

LS
C

 n
at

io
n

al
 s

ta
n

d
ar

d
 f

or
 a

 f
u

ll-
ti

m
e 

w
o

rk
 w

ee
k 

as
 4

0
 h

o
u

rs
 p

er
w

ee
k.

 I
lli

n
o

is
 li

b
ra

ri
es

 s
h

o
u

ld
 r

ep
or

t 
ea

ch
 s

ta
ff

 m
em

b
er

's
 h

o
u

rs
 p

er
 w

ee
k 

b
as

ed
 o

n
 t

h
e 

n
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
h

ou
rs

 w
or

ke
d

. 
If

 y
o

u
r 

li
b

ra
ry

co
n

si
d

er
s 

3
5

-3
9

+
 h

o
u

rs
 p

er
 w

ee
k 

as
 a

 f
u

ll-
ti

m
e 

w
o

rk
 w

ee
k,

 t
h

en
 r

ep
o

rt
 u

si
n

g
 t

h
o

se
 f

ig
u

re
s.

 D
O

 N
O

T 
in

fl
at

e 
th

e 
h

o
u

rs
 y

ou
r 

lib
ra

ry
co

n
si

d
er

s 
as

 a
 f

u
ll-

ti
m

e 
w

o
rk

 w
ee

k 
in

 o
rd

er
 t

o
 f

o
rc

e 
th

e 
re

su
lt

in
g

 c
al

cu
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 e

q
u

al
 1

 F
TE

. 
Fo

r 
n

at
io

n
al

 c
o

m
p

ar
is

o
n

 p
u

rp
o

se
s,

 y
o

u
r

lib
ra

ry
 m

u
st

 r
ep

o
rt

 t
h

e 
to

ta
l h

ou
rs

 p
er

 w
ee

k 
b

as
ed

 o
n

 y
o

u
r 

lo
ca

l s
ta

n
d

ar
d

. 
Fo

r 
ex

am
p

le
, 

fo
r 

an
 I

lli
n

o
is

 li
b

ra
ry

 t
h

at
 c

o
n

si
d

er
s 

3
7

.5
 h

ou
rs

p
er

 w
ee

k 
as

 a
 f

u
ll-

ti
m

e 
w

or
k 

w
ee

k,
 t

h
e 

FT
E 

ca
lc

u
la

ti
o

n
 r

ep
o

rt
ed

 n
at

io
n

al
ly

 w
ill

 b
e 

.9
3

7
5

 o
r 

.9
4

 r
at

h
er

 t
h

an
 1

.0
0

.

G
ro

u
p

 A

Th
is

 c
at

eg
o

ry
 i

n
cl

u
d

es
 a

ll 
LI

B
R

A
R

IA
N

S
 w

it
h

 M
A

S
TE

R
'S

 D
EG

R
EE

S
 f

ro
m

 a
n

 A
m

er
ic

an
 L

ib
ra

ry
 A

ss
oc

ia
ti

on
 (

A
LA

) 
A

C
C

R
ED

IT
ED

 p
ro

g
ra

m
 o

f
Li

b
ra

ry
 a

n
d

 I
n

fo
rm

at
io

n
 S

tu
d

ie
s.

 A
n

ot
h

er
 r

o
w

 w
ill

 a
u

to
m

at
ic

al
ly

 a
p

p
ea

r 
o

n
ce

 d
at

a 
is

 e
n

te
re

d
 in

 t
h

e 
cu

rr
en

t 
ro

w
.

S
u

m
m

a
ry

2
1

2
1

7
4
.1

9
0
0
0
4
6
.6

3
0
0

3
7.

5
0
0
0
0
3
7.

5
0
0
0

1
3

.1
 P

os
it

io
n

 T
it

le
1

3
.2

 P
ri

m
ar

y 
W

o
rk

 A
re

a
1

3
.3

 H
o

u
rl

y 
R

at
e

1
3

.4
 T

o
ta

l H
o

u
rs

/
W

ee
k

Li
b

ra
ry

 D
ir

ec
to

r
Li

b
ra

ry
 D

ir
e
ct

o
r

$
7

4
.1

9
3

7
.5

0
A

ss
is

ta
n

t 
D

ir
ec

to
r

A
ss

is
ta

n
t 

L
ib

ra
ry

 D
ir
e
ct

o
r

$
4

6
.6

3
3

7
.5

0
H

ea
d

 o
f 

A
d

u
lt

 S
er

vi
ce

s
A
d
u
lt
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

$
4

8
.0

9
3

7
.5

0
R

ef
er

en
ce

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
Li

b
ra

ri
an

 I
I

A
d
u
lt
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

$
4

0
.6

5
3

7
.5

0
R

ef
er

en
ce

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
Li

b
ra

ri
an

 I
I

A
d
u
lt
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

$
4

0
.6

5
3

7
.5

0
R

ef
er

en
ce

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
Li

b
ra

ri
an

 I
I

A
d
u
lt
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

$
4

0
.6

5
3

7
.5

0
R

ef
er

en
ce

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
Li

b
ra

ri
an

 I
I

A
d
u
lt
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

$
3

0
.5

3
3

7
.5

0
R

ef
er

en
ce

 L
ib

ra
ri

an
A
d
u
lt
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

$
3

0
.2

4
3

7
.5

0
R

ef
er

en
ce

 L
ib

ra
ri

an
A
d
u
lt
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

$
2

8
.3

5
2

0
.0

0
R

ea
d

er
s 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
M

an
ag

er
A
d
u
lt
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

$
3

4
.7

2
3

7
.5

0
Te

en
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Li
b

ra
ri

an
Y
o
u
n
g
 A

d
u
lt
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

$
3

3
.0

7
3

7
.5

0
H

ea
d

 o
f 

P
at

ro
n

 A
cc

ou
n

ts
 S

er
vi

ce
s

C
ir
cu

la
ti
o
n

$
4

8
.0

9
3

7
.5

0
A

cq
u

is
it

io
n

s 
an

d
 C

at
al

og
in

g
 M

an
ag

er
C
o
lle

ct
io

n
 D

e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

A
cq

u
is

it
io

n
s

$
3

4
.5

2
3

7
.5

0
M

et
ad

at
a 

an
d

 C
at

al
og

in
g

 S
p

ec
ia

lis
t

C
a
ta

lo
g
in

g
$

3
6

.1
0

3
7

.5
0

H
ea

d
 o

f 
Y

ou
th

 S
er

vi
ce

s
C
h
ild

re
n
\'
s 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

$
3

3
.8

4
3

7
.5

0
S

ch
oo

l L
ia

is
on

 L
ib

ra
ri

an
C
h
ild

re
n
\'
s 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

$
3

1
.9

0
3

7
.5

0
S

ch
oo

l L
ia

is
on

 L
ib

ra
ri

an
C
h
ild

re
n
\'
s 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

$
3

7
.8

4
3

7
.5

0
Y

o
u

th
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

A
ss

is
ta

n
t 

M
an

ag
er

C
h
ild

re
n
\'
s 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

$
2

8
.8

0
3

7
.5

0
Y

o
u

th
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Li
b

ra
ri

an
C
h
ild

re
n
\'
s 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

$
2

6
.3

8
3

7
.5

0
Y

o
u

th
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Li
b

ra
ri

an
C
h
ild

re
n
\'
s 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

$
3

6
.1

0
2

0
.0

0
R

ef
er

en
ce

 L
ib

ra
ri

an
A
d
u
lt
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

$
3

6
.1

0
2

0
.0

0

G
ro

u
p

 A
 T

o
ta

l

1
3

.5
 T

ot
al

 G
ro

u
p

 A
: 

FT
E 

A
LA

-M
LS

 (
1

3
.4

 /
 4

0
) 

[P
LS

 2
5

0
]

1
8

.3
8

 

Da
ta

 In
pu

t
ile

:/
//

Y:
/B

oa
rd

%
20

Pa
ck

et
s/

20
25

/F
eb

ru
ar

y/
IP

LA
R%

20
20

25
.h

tm
l

14
 o

f 2
4

2 /
13

/2
02

5,
 4

:0
9 

PM

55



G
ro

u
p

 A
 h

id
d

en
 g

ro
u

p
 h

o
u

rs

G
ro

u
p

 B

Th
is

 c
at

eg
o

ry
 i

n
cl

u
d

es
 o

th
er

 li
b

ra
ri

an
s.

 I
n

cl
u

d
e 

em
p

lo
ye

es
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
TI

TL
E

 o
f 

LI
B

R
A

R
IA

N
 w

h
o

 e
it

h
er

 h
av

e 
o

th
er

 t
yp

es
 o

f 
li

b
ra

ry
ed

u
ca

ti
on

 (
n

on
-A

m
er

ic
an

 L
ib

ra
ry

 A
ss

oc
ia

ti
on

 (
A

LA
) 

ac
cr

ed
it

ed
 li

b
ra

ry
 d

eg
re

es
; 

u
n

d
er

g
ra

d
u

at
e 

li
b

ra
ry

 s
ci

en
ce

 m
aj

or
s 

o
r 

m
in

o
rs

) 
O

R
 d

o
p

ai
d

 w
o

rk
 t

h
at

 u
su

al
ly

 r
eq

u
ir

es
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

n
al

 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 s
ki

ll 
in

 t
h

e 
th

eo
re

ti
ca

l o
r 

sc
ie

n
ti

fi
c 

as
p

ec
ts

 o
f 

lib
ra

ry
 w

o
rk

, 
o

r 
b

ot
h

, 
as

 d
is

ti
n

ct
fr

o
m

 i
ts

 m
ec

h
an

ic
al

 o
r 

cl
er

ic
al

 a
sp

ec
ts

. 
A

n
o

th
er

 r
o

w
 w

ill
 a

u
to

m
at

ic
al

ly
 a

p
p

ea
r 

o
n

ce
 d

at
a 

is
 e

n
te

re
d

 i
n

 t
h

e 
cu

rr
en

t 
ro

w
.

S
u

m
m

a
ry

1
3

.6
 P

o
si

ti
o

n
 T

it
le

1
3

.7
 P

ri
m

ar
y 

W
o

rk
 A

re
a

1
3

.8
 E

d
u

ca
ti

on
 L

ev
el

1
3

.9
 H

o
u

rl
y 

R
at

e
1

3
.1

0
 T

ot
al

 H
o

u
rs

/
W

ee
k

G
ro

u
p

 B
 T

o
ta

l

1
3

.1
1

 T
ot

al
 G

ro
u

p
 B

: 
FT

E 
O

th
er

 L
ib

ra
ri

an
s 

(1
3

.1
0

/4
0

)
0

.0
0

 
1

3
.1

2
 T

ot
al

 F
TE

 L
ib

ra
ri

an
s 

(1
3

.5
 +

 1
3

.1
1

] 
[P

LS
 2

5
1

]
1

8
.3

8
 

G
ro

u
p

 C

Th
is

 c
at

eg
o

ry
 i

n
cl

u
d

es
 f

u
ll

-t
im

e 
an

d
 p

ar
t-

ti
m

e 
p

ro
fe

ss
io

n
al

 s
ta

ff
 w

it
h

o
u

t 
th

e 
ti

tl
e 

of
 l

ib
ra

ri
an

 a
n

d
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

su
p

p
o

rt
 s

p
ec

ia
lis

ts
(p

er
so

n
n

el
 d

ir
ec

to
r,

 b
u

si
n

es
s 

m
an

ag
er

, 
p

u
b

lic
 r

el
at

io
n

s,
 o

th
er

 n
o

n
-l

ib
ra

ry
 s

p
ec

ia
li

st
s)

, 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 t

ec
h

n
ol

o
g

y 
p

ro
fe

ss
io

n
al

s 
(I

T
d

ir
ec

to
r,

 w
eb

m
as

te
r)

 a
n

d
 o

th
er

 t
ec

h
n

ic
al

 a
n

d
 c

le
ri

ca
l e

m
p

lo
ye

es
.

1
3

.1
3

 T
ot

al
 h

ou
rs

 w
or

ke
d

 in
 a

 t
yp

ic
al

 w
ee

k 
b

y 
al

l G
ro

u
p

 C
 e

m
p

lo
ye

es
1

,3
3

3
.0

0
 

1
3

.1
4

 M
in

im
u

m
 h

o
u

rl
y 

ra
te

 a
ct

u
al

ly
 p

ai
d

$
1

5
.3

1
 

1
3

.1
5

 M
ax

im
u

m
 h

o
u

rl
y 

ra
te

 a
ct

u
al

ly
 p

ai
d

$
4

8
.0

9
 

1
3

.1
6

 T
ot

al
 F

TE
 G

ro
u

p
 C

 e
m

p
lo

ye
es

 (
1

3
.1

3
 /

 4
0

)
3

3
.3

3
 

G
ro

u
p

 D

Th
is

 c
at

eg
o

ry
 i

n
cl

u
d

es
 f

u
ll

-t
im

e 
an

d
 p

ar
t-

ti
m

e 
p

ag
es

 o
r 

sh
el

ve
rs

.

1
3

.1
7

 T
ot

al
 h

ou
rs

 w
or

ke
d

 in
 a

 t
yp

ic
al

 w
ee

k 
b

y 
al

l G
ro

u
p

 D
 e

m
p

lo
ye

es
2

0
0

.0
0

 
1

3
.1

8
 M

in
im

u
m

 h
o

u
rl

y 
ra

te
 a

ct
u

al
ly

 p
ai

d
$

1
4

.0
0

 
1

3
.1

9
 M

ax
im

u
m

 h
o

u
rl

y 
ra

te
 a

ct
u

al
ly

 p
ai

d
$

1
5

.0
0

 
1

3
.2

0
 T

ot
al

 F
TE

 G
ro

u
p

 D
 e

m
p

lo
ye

es
 (

1
3

.1
7

 /
 4

0
)

5
.0

0
 

G
ro

u
p

 E

Th
is

 c
at

eg
o

ry
 i

n
cl

u
d

es
 f

u
ll

-t
im

e 
an

d
 p

ar
t-

ti
m

e 
b

u
il

d
in

g
 m

ai
n

te
n

an
ce

, 
se

cu
ri

ty
 o

r 
p

la
n

t 
op

er
at

io
n

 e
m

p
lo

ye
es

.

1
3

.2
1

 T
ot

al
 h

ou
rs

 w
or

ke
d

 in
 a

 t
yp

ic
al

 w
ee

k 
b

y 
al

l G
ro

u
p

 E
 e

m
p

lo
ye

es
1

9
6

.0
0

 
1

3
.2

2
 M

in
im

u
m

 h
o

u
rl

y 
ra

te
 a

ct
u

al
ly

 p
ai

d
$

1
6

.1
6

 
1

3
.2

3
 M

ax
im

u
m

 h
o

u
rl

y 
ra

te
 a

ct
u

al
ly

 p
ai

d
$

4
0

.6
5

 
1

3
.2

4
 T

ot
al

 F
TE

 G
ro

u
p

 E
 e

m
p

lo
ye

es
 (

1
3

.2
1

 /
 4

0
)

4
.9

0
 

1
3

.2
5

 T
ot

al
 F

TE
 O

th
er

 P
ai

d
 E

m
p

lo
ye

es
 f

ro
m

 G
ro

u
p

s 
C

, 
D

, 
an

d
 E

 (
1

3
.1

6
 +

 1
3

.2
0

 +
 1

3
.2

4
) 

[P
LS

2
5

2
]

4
3

.2
3

 
1

3
.2

6
 T

ot
al

 F
TE

 P
ai

d
 E

m
p

lo
ye

es
 (

1
3

.1
2

 +
 1

3
.2

5
) 

[P
LS

 2
5

3
]

6
1

.6
0

 

Da
ta

 In
pu

t
ile

:/
//

Y:
/B

oa
rd

%
20

Pa
ck

et
s/

20
25

/F
eb

ru
ar

y/
IP

LA
R%

20
20

25
.h

tm
l

15
 o

f 2
4

2 /
13

/2
02

5,
 4

:0
9 

PM

56



Li
b

ra
ri

an
 V

ac
an

ci
es

In
cl

u
d

e 
on

ly
 t

h
o

se
 b

u
d

g
et

ed
 li

b
ra

ri
an

 p
o

si
ti

on
s 

va
ca

n
t 

on
 t

h
e 

la
st

 d
ay

 o
f 

th
is

 f
is

ca
l 

ye
ar

 f
o

r 
w

h
ic

h
 t

h
er

e 
w

as
 a

n
 a

ct
iv

e 
se

ar
ch

 w
h

ile
 t

h
e

p
o

si
ti

o
n

 r
em

ai
n

ed
 v

ac
an

t.
 A

n
o

th
er

 r
o

w
 w

ill
 a

u
to

m
at

ic
al

ly
 a

p
p

ea
r 

on
ce

 d
at

a 
is

 e
n

te
re

d
 in

 t
h

e 
cu

rr
en

t 
ro

w
.

S
u

m
m

a
ry

1
3

.2
7

 P
o

si
ti

on
Ti

tl
e

1
3

.2
8

 P
ri

m
ar

y 
W

or
k

A
re

a
1

3
.2

9
 E

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

 L
ev

el
1

3
.3

0
 T

ot
al

H
o

u
rs

/
W

ee
k

1
3

.3
1

 N
u

m
b

er
o

f 
W

ee
ks

V
ac

an
t 

d
u

ri
n

g
re

p
or

t 
p

er
io

d
.

1
3

.3
2

 A
n

n
u

al
S

al
ar

y 
R

an
g

e
M

in
im

u
m

1
3

.3
3

 A
n

n
u

al
S

al
ar

y 
R

an
g

e
M

ax
im

u
m

N
ew

ly
 C

re
at

ed
 L

ib
ra

ri
an

 P
o

si
ti

o
n

s

In
cl

u
d

e 
an

y 
n

ew
ly

 c
re

at
ed

 l
ib

ra
ri

an
 p

o
si

ti
o

n
s 

w
h

ic
h

 w
er

e 
cr

ea
te

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e 
fi

sc
al

 y
ea

r 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 p

er
io

d
. 

A
n

o
th

er
 r

o
w

 w
ill

 a
u

to
m

at
ic

al
ly

ap
p

ea
r 

o
n

ce
 d

at
a 

is
 e

n
te

re
d

 in
 t

h
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

ro
w

.

S
u

m
m

a
ry

1
3

.3
4

 P
o

si
ti

on
Ti

tl
e

1
3

.3
5

 P
ri

m
ar

y 
W

or
k

A
re

a
1

3
.3

6
 E

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

 L
ev

el
1

3
.3

7
 T

ot
al

H
ou

rs
/

W
ee

k
1

3
.3

8
 C

u
rr

en
t

S
ta

tu
s:

 F
ill

ed
 o

r
U

n
fi

lle
d

1
3

.3
9

 D
at

e 
Fi

lle
d

(m
m

/
ye

ar
, 

if
ap

p
lic

ab
le

)

El
im

in
at

ed
 L

ib
ra

ri
an

 P
o

si
ti

o
n

s

A
n

 e
lim

in
at

ed
 li

b
ra

ri
an

 p
o

si
ti

o
n

 i
s 

o
n

e 
th

at
 w

as
 b

u
d

g
et

ed
 f

o
r 

d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e 

p
re

vi
o

u
s 

fi
sc

al
 y

ea
r 

p
er

io
d

 b
u

t 
w

as
 n

o
t 

in
 t

h
e 

b
u

d
g

et
 f

o
r 

th
e

cu
rr

en
t 

re
p

or
t 

p
er

io
d

. 
A

n
ot

h
er

 r
ow

 w
ill

 a
u

to
m

at
ic

al
ly

 a
p

p
ea

r 
o

n
ce

 d
at

a 
is

 e
n

te
re

d
 in

 t
h

e 
cu

rr
en

t 
ro

w
.

S
u

m
m

a
ry

1
3

.4
0

 P
o

si
ti

on
Ti

tl
e

1
3

.4
1

 P
ri

m
ar

y 
W

o
rk

A
re

a
1

3
.4

2
 E

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

 L
ev

el
1

3
.4

3
 T

ot
al

H
o

u
rs

/
W

ee
k

1
3

.4
4

 D
at

e
El

im
in

at
ed

(m
m

/
ye

ar
)

1
3

.4
5

 L
as

t
A

n
n

u
al

S
al

ar
y 

P
ai

d
1

3
.4

6
 R

ea
so

n
El

im
in

at
ed

LI
B

R
A

R
Y

 V
IS

IT
S

 (
1

4
.1

 -
 1

4
.1

a)

Th
is

 s
ec

ti
o

n
 c

ol
le

ct
s 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 o
n

 t
h

e 
n

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

lib
ra

ry
 v

is
it

s.
 T

h
is

 i
s 

p
re

fi
lle

d
, 

b
as

ed
 o

n
 t

h
e 

an
sw

er
 f

ro
m

 S
ec

ti
o

n
 2

.1
4

.

1
4

.1
 T

ot
al

 a
n

n
u

al
 v

is
it

s/
at

te
n

d
an

ce
 in

 t
h

e 
lib

ra
ry

 [
P

LS
 5

0
1

]
3

2
3

6
4

,5
2

8
 

1
4

.1
a

 L
ib

ra
ry

 V
is

it
s 

R
ep

o
rt

in
g

 M
et

h
od

 [
P

LS
 5

0
1

a]
A
n
n
u
a
l 
C
o
u
n
t

Da
ta

 In
pu

t
ile

:/
//

Y:
/B

oa
rd

%
20

Pa
ck

et
s/

20
25

/F
eb

ru
ar

y/
IP

LA
R%

20
20

25
.h

tm
l

16
 o

f 2
4

2 /
13

/2
02

5,
 4

:0
9 

PM

57



P
R

O
G

R
A

M
S

, 
A

C
TI

V
IT

IE
S

 &
 A

TT
EN

D
A

N
C

E 
(1

5
.1

 -
 1

5
.3

8
)

S
yn

ch
ro

n
o

u
s 

P
ro

g
ra

m
s:

A
 p

ro
g

ra
m

 is
 a

n
y 

p
la

n
n

ed
 e

ve
n

t 
w

h
ic

h
 i

n
tr

o
d

u
ce

s 
th

e 
g

ro
u

p
 a

tt
en

d
in

g
 t

o
 a

n
y 

o
f 

th
e 

b
ro

ad
 r

an
g

e 
o

f 
lib

ra
ry

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
or

 a
ct

iv
it

ie
s 

o
r 

w
h

ic
h

d
ir

ec
tl

y 
p

ro
vi

d
es

 i
n

fo
rm

at
io

n
 t

o
 p

ar
ti

ci
p

an
ts

. 
P

ro
g

ra
m

s 
m

ay
 c

ov
er

 u
se

 o
f 

th
e 

lib
ra

ry
, 

lib
ra

ry
 s

er
vi

ce
s,

 o
r 

lib
ra

ry
 t

o
u

rs
. 

P
ro

g
ra

m
s 

m
ay

al
so

 p
ro

vi
d

e 
cu

lt
u

ra
l,

 r
ec

re
at

io
n

al
, 

o
r 

ed
u

ca
ti

o
n

al
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
, 

o
ft

en
 d

es
ig

n
ed

 t
o

 m
ee

t 
a 

sp
ec

if
ic

 s
o

ci
al

 n
ee

d
. 

Ex
am

p
le

s 
o

f 
th

es
e 

ty
p

es
 o

f
p

ro
g

ra
m

s 
in

cl
u

d
e 

fi
lm

 s
h

o
w

in
g

s;
 le

ct
u

re
s;

 s
to

ry
 h

ou
rs

; 
lit

er
ac

y,
 E

n
g

li
sh

 a
s 

a 
se

co
n

d
 la

n
g

u
ag

e,
 c

it
iz

en
sh

ip
 c

la
ss

es
; 

an
d

 b
oo

k 
d

is
cu

ss
io

n
s.

C
o

u
n

t 
al

l p
ro

g
ra

m
s,

 w
h

et
h

er
 h

el
d

 o
n

- 
o

r 
o

ff
-s

it
e,

 o
r 

h
el

d
 v

ir
tu

al
ly

 a
s 

a 
g

ro
u

p
 t

h
at

 a
re

 s
p

o
n

so
re

d
 o

r 
co

-s
p

o
n

so
re

d
 b

y 
th

e 
li

b
ra

ry
. 

E
xc

lu
d

e
p

ro
g

ra
m

s
sp

o
n

so
re

d
 b

y 
o

th
er

 g
ro

u
p

s 
th

at
 u

se
 li

b
ra

ry
 f

ac
il

it
ie

s.
 I

f 
p

ro
g

ra
m

s 
ar

e 
o

ff
er

ed
 a

s 
a 

se
ri

es
, 

co
u

n
t 

ea
ch

 p
ro

g
ra

m
 in

 t
h

e 
se

ri
es

. 
Fo

r 
ex

am
p

le
,

a 
fi

lm
 s

er
ie

s 
of

fe
re

d
 o

n
ce

 a
 w

ee
k 

fo
r 

ei
g

h
t 

w
ee

ks
 s

h
ou

ld
 b

e 
co

u
n

te
d

 a
s 

ei
g

h
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
s.

Ex
cl

u
d

e 
lib

ra
ry

 a
ct

iv
it

ie
s 

d
el

iv
er

ed
 o

n
 a

 o
n

e-
to

-o
n

e 
b

as
is

, 
ra

th
er

 t
h

an
 t

o 
a 

g
ro

u
p

, 
su

ch
 a

s 
on

e-
to

-o
n

e 
lit

er
ac

y
tu

to
ri

n
g

, 
se

rv
ic

es
 t

o
 h

o
m

eb
o

u
n

d
, 

re
su

m
e 

w
ri

ti
n

g
 a

ss
is

ta
n

ce
, 

h
o

m
ew

o
rk

 a
ss

is
ta

n
ce

, 
an

d
 m

en
to

ri
n

g
 a

ct
iv

it
ie

s.

N
ot

e:
 F

or
 m

or
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

, 
p

le
as

e 
re

fe
r 

to
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 O

p
in

io
n

s 
lo

g
in

 s
cr

ee
n

 f
o

r 
li

n
ks

 t
o

: 
“G

u
id

an
ce

 f
o

r 
P

ro
g

ra
m

s:
 L

iv
e 

V
ir

tu
al

 a
n

d
R

ec
o

rd
ed

”,
 “

H
o

w
 t

o 
C

o
u

n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
s 

an
d

 A
ct

iv
it

ie
s”

, 
an

d
 “

V
ir

tu
al

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

in
g

 G
u

id
el

in
es

”.

S
el

f-
D

ir
ec

te
d

 A
ct

iv
it

ie
s:

A
 s

el
f-

d
ir

ec
te

d
 a

ct
iv

it
y 

is
 a

n
y 

p
la

n
n

ed
 e

ve
n

t 
fo

r 
w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e 

p
at

ro
n

 c
an

 p
ar

ti
ci

p
at

e 
o

n
 t

h
ei

r 
o

w
n

 (
in

st
ea

d
 o

f 
at

 a
 d

es
ig

n
at

ed
 t

im
e 

w
it

h
 a

g
ro

u
p

).
 R

eg
is

tr
at

io
n

 is
 n

o
t 

re
q

u
ir

ed
. 

A
 s

ta
ff

 m
em

b
er

 m
ay

 m
o

n
it

o
r 

th
e 

ac
ti

vi
ty

, 
b

u
t 

m
ay

 o
r 

m
ay

 n
ot

 d
ir

ec
tl

y 
in

te
ra

ct
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
p

ar
ti

ci
p

an
ts

.
Ex

am
p

le
s 

o
f 

th
es

e 
ty

p
es

 o
f 

ev
en

ts
 in

cl
u

d
e 

d
ro

p
-i

n
 c

ra
ft

 s
es

si
o

n
s,

 t
ak

e 
an

d
 m

ak
e 

ki
ts

, 
lib

ra
ry

 s
ca

ve
n

g
er

 h
u

n
ts

 (
w

h
en

 n
o

t 
d

o
n

e 
as

 p
ar

t 
o

f
a 

g
ro

u
p

),
 e

tc
.

C
o

u
n

t 
al

l s
el

f-
d

ir
ec

te
d

 a
ct

iv
it

ie
s,

 w
h

et
h

er
 h

el
d

 o
n

- 
or

 o
ff

-s
it

e,
 t

h
at

 a
re

 s
p

o
n

so
re

d
 o

r 
co

-s
p

on
so

re
d

 b
y 

th
e 

lib
ra

ry
. 

Ex
cl

u
d

e 
ac

ti
vi

ti
es

sp
o

n
so

re
d

 b
y 

o
th

er
 g

ro
u

p
s 

th
at

 u
se

 li
b

ra
ry

 f
ac

il
it

ie
s.

 I
f 

ac
ti

vi
ti

es
 a

re
 o

ff
er

ed
 a

s 
a 

se
ri

es
, 

co
u

n
t 

ea
ch

 a
ct

iv
it

y 
in

 t
h

e 
se

ri
es

.

N
ot

e:
 F

or
 m

or
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

, 
p

le
as

e 
re

fe
r 

to
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 O

p
in

io
n

s 
lo

g
in

 s
cr

ee
n

 f
o

r 
li

n
ks

 t
o

: 
“G

u
id

an
ce

 f
o

r 
P

ro
g

ra
m

s:
 L

iv
e 

V
ir

tu
al

 a
n

d
R

ec
o

rd
ed

”,
 “

H
o

w
 t

o 
C

o
u

n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
s 

an
d

 A
ct

iv
it

ie
s”

, 
an

d
 “

V
ir

tu
al

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

in
g

 G
u

id
el

in
es

”.

1
5

.1
 S

yn
ch

ro
n

o
u

s 
P

ro
g

ra
m

s 
(A

ll 
G

ro
u

p
 P

ro
g

ra
m

s
b

y 
A

g
e)

1
5

.2
A

tt
en

d
an

ce
1

5
.3

 S
el

f 
D

ir
ec

te
d

A
ct

iv
it

ie
s

1
5

.4
 S

el
f 

D
ir

ec
te

d
 A

ct
iv

it
y

P
ar

ti
ci

p
an

ts
C

h
il
d

re
n

 (
0

-5
)

3
3
4

2
9

 
3

4
1

1
,7

3
6

 
3

5
5

1
 

3
6
6

,9
7

1
 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 (
6

-1
1

)
3

7
4

0
5

 
3

8
1

4
,9

9
6

 
3

9
7

1
 

4
0
9

,0
4

5
 

Y
o

u
n

g
 A

d
u

lt
s

(1
2
-1

8
)

1
1

2
 

1
,2

9
0

 
7

5
 

3
,6

5
6

 
A

d
u

lt
s

 (
1

9
 a

n
d

o
ld

e
r)

6
7

7
 

9
,2

6
8

 
4

1
1

3
4

 
4

2
2

1
,9

7
1

 
G

e
n

e
ra

l 
In

te
re

s
t

4
3
3

 
4

4
5

0
0

 
4

5
8

1
 

4
6
4

,9
3

9
 

T
o

ta
l

1
,6

2
6

 
3

7
,7

9
0

 
4

1
2

 
4

6
,5

8
2

 

O
n

si
te

, 
O

ff
si

te
 a

n
d

 V
ir

tu
al

 (
A

ll 
G

ro
u

p
 P

ro
g

ra
m

s 
b

y 
Ty

p
e)

1
5

.2
9

 P
ro

g
ra

m
 S

es
si

on
s

1
5

.3
0

 P
ro

g
ra

m
 A

tt
en

d
an

ce
S

y
n

c
h

ro
n

o
u

s
 I

n
-P

e
rs

o
n

 O
n

s
it

e
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 S
e

s
s

io
n

s
8

7
4

 
1

9
,8

1
9

 
S

y
n

c
h

ro
n

o
u

s
 I

n
-P

e
rs

o
n

 O
ff

s
it

e
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 S
e

s
s

io
n

s
4

7
7

0
4

 
4

8
1

7
,4

1
2

 
S

y
n

c
h

ro
n

o
u

s
 V

ir
tu

a
l 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 S

e
s

s
io

n
s

4
8

 
5

5
9

 
T
o

ta
l

1
,6

2
6

 
3

7
,7

9
0

 

H
is

to
ri

c 
- 

re
ti

re
d

 2
0

2
1

1
5

.1
 T

ot
al

 N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
C

h
ild

re
n

's
 P

ro
g

ra
m

s 
R

et
ir

ed
 2

0
2

1
1

5
.2

 C
h

ild
re

n
's

 P
ro

g
ra

m
 A

tt
en

d
an

ce
 R

et
ir

ed
 2

0
2

1
1

5
.3

 T
ot

al
 N

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 P
as

si
ve

 P
ro

g
ra

m
s 

R
et

ir
ed

 2
0

2
1

1
5

.4
 C

h
ild

re
n

's
 P

as
si

ve
 P

ro
g

ra
m

 A
tt

en
d

an
ce

 R
et

ir
ed

 2
0

2
1

Da
ta

 In
pu

t
ile

:/
//

Y:
/B

oa
rd

%
20

Pa
ck

et
s/

20
25

/F
eb

ru
ar

y/
IP

LA
R%

20
20

25
.h

tm
l

17
 o

f 2
4

2 /
13

/2
02

5,
 4

:0
9 

PM

58



A
sy

n
ch

ro
n

ou
s 

V
ir

tu
al

 P
re

se
n

ta
ti

on
s 

(S
u

b
se

t 
o

f 
S

el
f-

D
ir

ec
te

d
 A

ct
iv

it
ie

s)

1
5

.3
7

 T
ot

al
 N

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

A
sy

n
ch

ro
n

ou
s 

(V
ir

tu
al

) 
P

ro
g

ra
m

 P
re

se
n

ta
ti

on
s 

[P
LS

 6
2

0
]

6
 

1
5

.3
8

 T
ot

al
 V

ie
w

s 
of

 A
sy

n
ch

ro
n

ou
s 

(V
ir

tu
al

) 
P

ro
g

ra
m

 P
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

s 
[P

LS
 6

3
0

]
4

7
3

 

R
EG

IS
T

ER
ED

 U
S

ER
S

 (
1

6
.1

 -
 1

6
.4

)

Th
is

 s
ec

ti
o

n
 c

ol
le

ct
s 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 a
b

ou
t 

th
e 

n
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
re

si
d

en
t 

an
d

 n
o

n
-r

es
id

en
t 

lib
ra

ry
 u

se
rs

. 
A

 r
eg

is
te

re
d

 u
se

r 
is

 a
 li

b
ra

ry
 u

se
r 

w
h

o
h

as
 a

p
p

lie
d

 f
o

r 
an

d
 r

ec
ei

ve
d

 a
n

 id
en

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

 n
u

m
b

er
 o

r 
ca

rd
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e 
p

u
b

lic
 li

b
ra

ry
 t

h
at

 h
as

 e
st

ab
lis

h
ed

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

u
n

d
er

 w
h

ic
h

 t
h

e
u

se
r 

m
ay

 b
or

ro
w

 li
b

ra
ry

 m
at

er
ia

ls
 a

n
d

 g
ai

n
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 o
th

er
 l

ib
ra

ry
 r

es
ou

rc
es

.

N
ot

e:
 F

il
es

 s
h

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
b

ee
n

 p
u

rg
ed

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e 
p

as
t 

th
re

e 
(3

) 
ye

ar
s.

1
6

.1
 T

ot
al

 N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
U

n
ex

p
ir

ed
 R

es
id

en
t 

C
ar

d
s

2
0

,2
1

2
 

1
6

.2
a

 T
ot

al
 N

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

U
n

ex
p

ir
ed

 N
on

-r
es

id
en

t 
C

ar
d

s
8

4
 

1
6

.2
a 

(1
)

 O
f 

th
e 

to
ta

l i
n

 1
6

.2
a,

 h
ow

 m
an

y 
C

ar
d

s 
fo

r 
K

id
s 

A
ct

 c
ar

d
s 

w
er

e 
is

su
ed

?
4

2
 

1
6

.2
a 

(2
)

 O
f 

th
e 

to
ta

l i
n

 1
6

.2
a,

 h
ow

 m
an

y 
D

is
ab

le
d

 V
et

er
an

s 
ca

rd
s 

w
er

e 
is

su
ed

?
0

 
1

6
.2

b
 W

h
at

 w
as

 t
h

e 
to

ta
l a

m
ou

n
t 

of
 t

h
e 

fe
es

 c
ol

le
ct

ed
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e 
sa

le
 o

f 
n

on
-r

es
id

en
t 

ca
rd

s
d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e 
p

as
t 

fi
sc

al
 y

ea
r?

$
1

,6
3

3
.7

5
 

1
6

.3
 T

ot
al

 N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
R

eg
is

te
re

d
 U

se
rs

 (
1

6
.1

 +
 1

6
.2

a)
 [

P
LS

 5
0

3
]

2
0

,2
9

6
 

1
6

.4
 I

s 
yo

u
r 

lib
ra

ry
's

 r
eg

is
te

re
d

 u
se

r/
p

at
ro

n
 f

ile
 p

u
rg

ed
 a

 m
in

im
u

m
 o

f 
on

e 
ti

m
e 

ev
er

y 
th

re
e

ye
ar

s?
Y
e
s

1
6

.5
 D

oe
s 

th
e 

lib
ra

ry
 c

h
ar

g
e 

o
ve

rd
u

e 
fi

n
es

 t
o

 a
n

y 
u

se
rs

 w
h

en
 t

h
ey

 f
ai

l t
o 

re
tu

rn
 p

h
ys

ic
al

 p
ri

n
t

m
at

er
ia

ls
 b

y 
th

e 
d

at
e 

d
u

e?
 [

P
LS

 5
0

4
]

N
o

1
6

.6
 D

id
 y

o
u

r 
lib

ra
ry

 b
o

ar
d

 a
d

o
p

t 
a 

p
o

lic
y 

to
 w

ai
ve

 t
h

e 
n

o
n

-r
es

id
en

t 
fe

e 
fo

r 
p

er
so

n
s 

u
n

d
er

 t
h

e
ag

e 
o

f 
1

8
?

N
o

R
ES

O
U

R
C

ES
 O

W
N

ED
 (

1
7

.1
 -

 1
7

.2
5

)

Li
b

ra
ri

es
 a

re
 r

eq
u

ir
ed

 b
y 

st
at

u
te

 [
7

5
 I

LC
S

 5
/

4
-1

0
(3

),
 7

5
 I

LC
S

 1
6

/
3

0
-6

5
(a

)(
6

)]
 t

o 
p

ro
vi

d
e 

a 
st

at
em

en
t 

as
 t

o 
th

e 
n

u
m

b
er

 a
n

d
 c

h
ar

ac
te

r
of

 i
te

m
s 

in
 t

h
e 

lib
ra

ry
's

 c
ol

le
ct

io
n

 a
va

ila
b

le
 f

o
r 

u
se

 a
s 

o
f 

th
e 

la
st

 d
ay

 o
f 

th
e 

fi
sc

al
 y

ea
r 

re
p

o
rt

 p
er

io
d

.

Th
is

 s
ec

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e 
su

rv
ey

 c
o

lle
ct

s 
d

at
a 

o
n

 s
el

ec
te

d
 t

yp
es

 o
f 

m
at

er
ia

ls
. 

It
 d

o
es

 n
ot

 c
ov

er
 a

ll 
m

at
er

ia
ls

 (
i.

e.
, 

m
ic

ro
fo

rm
s,

 lo
o

se
 s

h
ee

t
m

u
si

c,
 m

ap
s,

 a
n

d
 p

ic
tu

re
s)

 f
or

 w
h

ic
h

 e
xp

en
d

it
u

re
s 

ar
e 

re
p

o
rt

ed
 u

n
d

er
 P

ri
n

t 
M

at
er

ia
ls

 E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
s,

 E
le

ct
ro

n
ic

 M
at

er
ia

ls
 E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

s,
an

d
 O

th
er

 M
at

er
ia

l E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
s.

 U
n

d
er

 t
h

is
 c

at
eg

o
ry

 r
ep

o
rt

 o
n

ly
 it

em
s 

th
e 

lib
ra

ry
 h

as
 a

cq
u

ir
ed

 a
s 

p
ar

t 
o

f 
th

e 
co

lle
ct

io
n

 a
n

d
 c

at
al

o
g

ed
,

w
h

et
h

er
 p

u
rc

h
as

ed
, 

le
as

e,
 li

ce
n

se
d

, 
o

r 
d

o
n

at
ed

 a
s 

g
if

ts
 t

h
at

 h
av

e 
b

ee
n

 p
u

rc
h

as
ed

, 
le

as
ed

 o
r 

lic
en

se
d

 b
y 

th
e 

lib
ra

ry
, 

a 
co

n
so

rt
iu

m
, 

th
e

st
at

e 
lib

ra
ry

, 
a 

d
o

n
o

r 
o

r 
o

th
er

 p
er

so
n

 o
r 

en
ti

ty
. 

In
cl

u
d

ed
 it

em
s 

m
u

st
 o

n
ly

 b
e 

ac
ce

ss
ib

le
 w

it
h

 a
 v

al
id

 li
b

ra
ry

 c
ar

d
 o

r 
at

 a
 p

h
ys

ic
al

 l
ib

ra
ry

lo
ca

ti
o

n
; 

in
cl

u
si

o
n

 i
n

 t
h

e 
ca

ta
lo

g
 i

s 
n

o
t 

re
q

u
ir

ed
. 

D
o

 n
o

t 
in

cl
u

d
e 

it
em

s 
fr

ee
ly

 a
va

ila
b

le
 w

it
h

ou
t 

m
on

et
ar

y 
ex

ch
an

g
e.

 D
o

 n
o

t 
in

cl
u

d
e 

it
em

s
th

at
 a

re
 p

er
m

an
en

tl
y 

re
ta

in
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

p
at

ro
n

; 
co

u
n

t 
o

n
ly

 it
em

s 
th

at
 h

av
e 

a 
se

t 
ci

rc
u

la
ti

o
n

 p
er

io
d

 w
h

er
e 

it
 is

 a
va

ila
b

le
 f

o
r 

th
ei

r 
u

se
.

1
7

.1
 P

ri
n

t 
M

at
er

ia
ls

 [
P

LS
 4

5
0

]
2

1
6

,2
6

9
 

1
7

.2
 C

u
rr

en
t 

P
ri

n
t 

S
er

ia
l S

u
b

sc
ri

p
ti

on
s

3
8

3
 

1
7

.3
 T

ot
al

 P
ri

n
t 

M
at

er
ia

ls
 (

1
7

.1
+

1
7

.2
)

2
1

6
,6

5
2

 
1

7
.4

 A
u

d
io

 R
ec

or
d

in
g

s:
 P

h
ys

ic
al

 U
n

it
s 

H
el

d
 a

t 
en

d
 o

f 
th

e 
fi

sc
al

 y
ea

r 
[P

LS
 4

5
2

]
2

3
,9

0
4

 
1

7
.5

 D
V

D
s/

V
id

eo
s:

 P
h

ys
ic

al
 U

n
it

s 
H

el
d

 a
t 

en
d

 o
f 

th
e 

fi
sc

al
 y

ea
r 

[P
LS

 4
5

4
]

4
1

,6
1

0
 

1
7

.6
 O

th
er

 C
ir

cu
la

ti
n

g
 P

h
ys

ic
al

 I
te

m
s 

[P
LS

 4
6

2
]

9
3

8
 

1
7

.7
 T

ot
al

 P
h

ys
ic

al
 I

te
m

s 
in

 C
ol

le
ct

io
n

 [
P

LS
 4

6
1

]
2

8
2

,7
2

1
 

El
ec

tr
o

n
ic

 M
at

er
ia

ls
 a

n
d

 C
o

lle
ct

io
n

s

Th
is

 s
ec

ti
o

n
 a

sk
s 

h
ow

 t
h

e 
lib

ra
ry

 o
b

ta
in

s 
el

ec
tr

o
n

ic
 m

at
er

ia
ls

, 
re

se
ar

ch
 d

at
ab

as
es

 a
n

d
 o

n
lin

e 
le

ar
n

in
g

 p
la

tf
o

rm
s.

 P
le

as
e 

an
sw

er
 y

es
 o

r
n

o
 t

o 
th

e 
fo

ll
ow

in
g

 q
u

es
ti

o
n

s.

1
7

.8
 D

id
 y

o
u

r 
lib

ra
ry

 p
ro

vi
d

e 
ac

ce
ss

 t
o 

e-
B

oo
ks

 p
u

rc
h

as
ed

 s
ol

el
y 

b
y 

th
e 

lib
ra

ry
? 

A
n

sw
er

 y
es

 o
r

n
o.

 [
P

LS
 5

2
5

]
Y
e
s

Da
ta

 In
pu

t
ile

:/
//

Y:
/B

oa
rd

%
20

Pa
ck

et
s/

20
25

/F
eb

ru
ar

y/
IP

LA
R%

20
20

25
.h

tm
l

18
 o

f 2
4

2 /
13

/2
02

5,
 4

:0
9 

PM

59



1
7

.9
 D

id
 y

ou
r 

lib
ra

ry
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

ac
ce

ss
 t

o 
e-

B
o

ok
s 

p
u

rc
h

as
ed

 v
ia

 a
 c

on
so

rt
iu

m
, 

co
op

er
at

iv
e,

 o
r

ot
h

er
 s

im
ila

r 
g

ro
u

p
 a

t 
th

e 
lo

ca
l,

 r
eg

io
n

al
, 

or
 s

ta
te

 le
ve

l?
 A

n
sw

er
 y

es
 o

r 
n

o.
 [

P
LS

 5
2

6
]

Y
e
s

1
7

.1
0

 D
id

 y
o

u
r 

lib
ra

ry
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

ac
ce

ss
 t

o
 e

-B
o

o
ks

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
S

ta
te

 L
ib

ra
ry

 a
t 

n
o

 o
r 

m
in

im
al

co
st

 t
o 

yo
u

r 
lib

ra
ry

? 
Th

is
 is

 p
re

fi
lle

d
. 

[P
LS

 5
2

7
]

N
o

1
7

.1
1

 D
id

 y
o

u
r 

lib
ra

ry
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

ac
ce

ss
 t

o
 e

-S
er

ia
ls

 p
u

rc
h

as
ed

 s
o

le
ly

 b
y 

th
e 

lib
ra

ry
? 

A
n

sw
er

 y
es

 o
r

n
o.

 [
P

LS
 5

2
8

]
Y
e
s

1
7

.1
2

 D
id

 y
o

u
r 

lib
ra

ry
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

ac
ce

ss
 t

o
 e

-S
er

ia
ls

 p
u

rc
h

as
ed

 v
ia

 a
 c

o
n

so
rt

iu
m

, 
co

op
er

at
iv

e,
 o

r
ot

h
er

 s
im

ila
r 

g
ro

u
p

 a
t 

th
e 

lo
ca

l,
 r

eg
io

n
al

, 
or

 s
ta

te
 le

ve
l?

 A
n

sw
er

 y
es

 o
r 

n
o.

 [
P

LS
 5

2
9

]
Y
e
s

1
7

.1
3

 D
id

 y
o

u
r 

lib
ra

ry
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

ac
ce

ss
 t

o 
e-

S
er

ia
ls

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
S

ta
te

 L
ib

ra
ry

 a
t 

n
o 

or
 m

in
im

al
co

st
 t

o 
yo

u
r 

lib
ra

ry
? 

Th
is

 is
 p

re
fi

lle
d

. 
[P

LS
 5

3
0

]
N

o

1
7

.1
4

 D
id

 y
o

u
r 

lib
ra

ry
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

ac
ce

ss
 t

o 
e-

A
u

d
io

 p
u

rc
h

as
ed

 s
ol

el
y 

b
y 

th
e 

lib
ra

ry
? 

A
n

sw
er

 y
es

 o
r

n
o.

 [
P

LS
 5

3
1

]
Y
e
s

1
7

.1
5

 D
id

 y
o

u
r 

lib
ra

ry
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

ac
ce

ss
 t

o
 e

-A
u

d
io

 p
u

rc
h

as
ed

 v
ia

 a
 c

on
so

rt
iu

m
, 

co
op

er
at

iv
e,

 o
r

ot
h

er
 s

im
ila

r 
g

ro
u

p
 a

t 
th

e 
lo

ca
l,

 r
eg

io
n

al
, 

or
 s

ta
te

 le
ve

l?
 A

n
sw

er
 y

es
 o

r 
n

o.
 [

P
LS

 5
3

2
]

Y
e
s

1
7

.1
6

 D
id

 y
o

u
r 

lib
ra

ry
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

ac
ce

ss
 t

o
 e

-A
u

d
io

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
S

ta
te

 L
ib

ra
ry

 a
t 

n
o

 o
r 

m
in

im
al

co
st

 t
o 

yo
u

r 
lib

ra
ry

? 
Th

is
 is

 p
re

fi
lle

d
. 

[P
LS

 5
3

3
]

N
o

1
7

.1
7

 D
id

 y
o

u
r 

lib
ra

ry
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

ac
ce

ss
 t

o
 e

-V
id

eo
 p

u
rc

h
as

ed
 s

o
le

ly
 b

y 
th

e 
lib

ra
ry

? 
A

n
sw

er
 y

es
 o

r
n

o.
 [

P
LS

 5
3

4
]

Y
e
s

1
7

.1
8

 D
id

 y
o

u
r 

lib
ra

ry
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

ac
ce

ss
 t

o
 e

-V
id

eo
 p

u
rc

h
as

ed
 v

ia
 a

 c
o

n
so

rt
iu

m
, 

co
o

p
er

at
iv

e,
 o

r
ot

h
er

 s
im

ila
r 

g
ro

u
p

 a
t 

th
e 

lo
ca

l,
 r

eg
io

n
al

, 
or

 s
ta

te
 le

ve
l?

 A
n

sw
er

 y
es

 o
r 

n
o.

 [
P

LS
 5

3
5

]
N

o

1
7

.1
9

 D
id

 y
o

u
r 

lib
ra

ry
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

ac
ce

ss
 t

o
 e

-V
id

eo
 p

ro
vi

d
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

S
ta

te
 L

ib
ra

ry
 a

t 
n

o 
or

 m
in

im
al

co
st

 t
o 

yo
u

r 
lib

ra
ry

? 
Th

is
 is

 p
re

fi
lle

d
. 

[P
LS

 5
3

6
]

N
o

1
7

.2
0

 D
id

 y
o

u
r 

lib
ra

ry
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

ac
ce

ss
 t

o
 r

es
ea

rc
h

 d
at

ab
as

es
 p

u
rc

h
as

ed
 s

o
le

ly
 b

y 
th

e 
lib

ra
ry

?
A

n
sw

er
 y

es
 o

r 
n

o.
 [

P
LS

 5
3

7
]

Y
e
s

1
7

.2
1

 D
id

 y
o

u
r 

lib
ra

ry
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

ac
ce

ss
 t

o
 r

es
ea

rc
h

 d
at

ab
as

es
 p

u
rc

h
as

ed
 v

ia
 a

 c
on

so
rt

iu
m

,
co

op
er

at
iv

e,
 o

r 
ot

h
er

 s
im

ila
r 

g
ro

u
p

 a
t 

th
e 

lo
ca

l,
 r

eg
io

n
al

, 
o

r 
st

at
e 

le
ve

l?
 A

n
sw

er
 y

es
 o

r 
n

o.
 [

P
LS

5
3

8
]

Y
e
s

1
7

.2
2

 D
id

 y
o

u
r 

lib
ra

ry
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

ac
ce

ss
 t

o 
re

se
ar

ch
 d

at
ab

as
es

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
S

ta
te

 L
ib

ra
ry

 a
t 

n
o

or
 m

in
im

al
 c

os
t 

to
 t

h
e 

ad
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

en
ti

ty
? 

Th
is

 is
 p

re
fi

lle
d

. 
[P

LS
 5

3
9

]
Y
e
s

1
7

.2
3

 D
id

 y
o

u
r 

lib
ra

ry
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

ac
ce

ss
 t

o
 o

n
lin

e 
le

ar
n

in
g

 p
la

tf
or

m
s 

p
u

rc
h

as
ed

 s
o

le
ly

 b
y 

th
e

lib
ra

ry
? 

A
n

sw
er

 y
es

 o
r 

n
o

. 
[P

LS
 5

4
0

]
Y
e
s

1
7

.2
4

 D
id

 y
ou

r 
lib

ra
ry

 p
ro

vi
d

e 
ac

ce
ss

 t
o 

on
lin

e 
le

ar
n

in
g

 p
la

tf
or

m
s 

p
u

rc
h

as
ed

 v
ia

 a
 c

on
so

rt
iu

m
,

co
op

er
at

iv
e,

 o
r 

ot
h

er
 s

im
ila

r 
g

ro
u

p
 a

t 
th

e 
lo

ca
l,

 r
eg

io
n

al
, 

o
r 

st
at

e 
le

ve
l?

 A
n

sw
er

 y
es

 o
r 

n
o.

 [
P

LS
5

4
1

]
N

o

1
7

.2
5

 D
id

 y
o

u
r 

lib
ra

ry
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

ac
ce

ss
 t

o 
on

lin
e 

le
ar

n
in

g
 p

la
tf

or
m

s 
p

ro
vi

d
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

S
ta

te
 L

ib
ra

ry
at

 n
o 

o
r 

m
in

im
al

 c
os

t 
to

 y
ou

r 
lib

ra
ry

? 
Th

is
 is

 p
re

fi
lle

d
. 

[P
LS

 5
4

2
]

Y
e
s

U
S

E 
O

F 
R

ES
O

U
R

C
ES

 (
1

8
.1

 -
 1

8
.1

9
)

Li
b

ra
ri

es
 a

re
 r

eq
u

ir
ed

 b
y 

st
at

u
te

 [
7

5
 I

LC
S

 5
/

4
-1

0
(3

),
 7

5
 I

LC
S

 1
6

/
3

0
-6

5
(a

)(
6

)]
 t

o 
p

ro
vi

d
e 

a 
st

at
em

en
t 

as
 t

o 
th

e 
n

u
m

b
er

 a
n

d
 c

h
ar

ac
te

r
of

 it
em

s 
ci

rc
u

la
te

d
 b

y 
th

e 
lib

ra
ry

. 
R

ep
o

rt
 f

or
 t

h
e 

lib
ra

ry
's

 e
n

ti
re

 f
is

ca
l y

ea
r.

1
8

.1
 C

ir
cu

la
ti

on
 o

f 
A

d
u

lt
 P

h
ys

ic
al

 M
at

er
ia

l
4

9
3

2
4

,8
0

2
 

1
8

.2
 C

ir
cu

la
ti

on
 o

f 
Y

ou
n

g
 A

d
u

lt
 P

h
ys

ic
al

 M
at

er
ia

l
5

0
1

9
,8

6
1

 
1

8
.3

 C
ir

cu
la

ti
on

 o
f 

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 P
h

ys
ic

al
 M

at
er

ia
l [

P
LS

 5
4

9
]

2
7

4
,4

8
8

 
1

8
.4

 T
ot

al
 n

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

p
h

ys
ic

al
 m

at
er

ia
ls

 lo
an

ed
 (

1
8

.1
 +

 1
8

.2
 +

 1
8

.3
)

6
1

9
,1

5
1

 

R
ep

or
t 

ci
rc

u
la

ti
on

, 
in

cl
u

d
in

g
 r

en
ew

al
s,

 b
y 

th
e 

m
at

er
ia

l t
yp

es
 b

el
o

w
.

1
8

.5
 B

oo
ks

- 
P

h
ys

ic
al

4
1

6
,1

1
1

 
1

8
.6

 V
id

eo
s/

D
V

D
s-

 P
h

ys
ic

al
5

1
1

1
6

,7
7

8
 

1
8

.7
 A

u
d

io
s 

(i
n

cl
u

d
e 

m
u

si
c)

- 
P

h
ys

ic
al

3
3

,7
2

7
 

1
8

.8
 M

ag
az

in
es

/P
er

io
d

ic
al

s-
 P

h
ys

ic
al

1
5

,2
1

5
 

1
8

.9
 O

th
er

 I
te

m
s-

 P
h

ys
ic

al
 [

P
LS

 5
6

1
]

3
7

,3
2

0
 

1
8

.1
0

 P
h

ys
ic

al
 I

te
m

 C
ir

cu
la

ti
on

 (
1

8
.5

-1
8

.9
) 

[P
LS

 5
5

3
]

6
1

9
,1

5
1

 
1

8
.1

1
 D

id
 y

o
u

r 
lib

ra
ry

 o
ff

er
 a

u
to

m
at

ic
 r

en
ew

al
 f

or
 a

n
y 

p
h

ys
ic

al
 m

at
er

ia
ls

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e 

re
p

or
ti

n
g

p
er

io
d

? 
[P

LS
 5

0
5

]
Y
e
s

1
8

.1
2

 e
-B

oo
k 

C
ir

cu
la

ti
o

n
 [

P
LS

 5
4

5
]

5
8

,3
9

1
 

1
8

.1
3

 e
-S

er
ia

l C
ir

cu
la

ti
on

 [
P

LS
 5

4
6

]
1

7
,7

9
8

 

Da
ta

 In
pu

t
ile

:/
//

Y:
/B

oa
rd

%
20

Pa
ck

et
s/

20
25

/F
eb

ru
ar

y/
IP

LA
R%

20
20

25
.h

tm
l

19
 o

f 2
4

2 /
13

/2
02

5,
 4

:0
9 

PM

60



1
8

.1
4

 e
-A

u
d

io
 C

ir
cu

la
ti

on
 [

P
LS

 5
4

7
]

1
0

7
,2

6
5

 
1

8
.1

5
 e

-V
id

eo
 C

ir
cu

la
ti

on
 [

P
LS

 5
4

8
]

2
0

,0
6

3
 

1
8

.1
6

 U
se

 o
f 

El
ec

tr
on

ic
 M

at
er

ia
ls

 [
P

LS
 5

5
2

]
2

0
3

,5
1

7
 

1
8

.1
7

 T
ot

al
 C

ir
cu

la
ti

on
 o

f 
M

at
er

ia
ls

 [
P

LS
 5

5
0

]
8

2
2

,6
6

8
 

1
8

.1
8

 I
n

te
rl

ib
ra

ry
 L

o
an

s 
P

ro
vi

d
ed

 T
O

 O
th

er
 L

ib
ra

ri
es

 [
P

LS
 5

7
5

]
5

6
,0

0
3

 
1

8
.1

9
 I

n
te

rl
ib

ra
ry

 L
o

an
s 

R
ec

ei
ve

d
 F

R
O

M
 O

th
er

 L
ib

ra
ri

es
 [

P
LS

 5
7

6
]

3
3

,3
1

5
 

P
A

TR
O

N
 S

E
R

V
IC

ES
 (

1
9

.1
-1

9
.2

)

Th
is

 s
ec

ti
o

n
 g

at
h

er
s 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 o
n

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
th

e 
lib

ra
ry

 p
ro

vi
d

es
 t

o
 it

s 
p

at
ro

n
s.

 P
le

as
e 

fi
ll

 in
 t

h
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 r
eq

u
es

te
d

.

R
ef

er
en

ce
 T

ra
n

sa
ct

io
n

s

R
ef

er
en

ce
 T

ra
n

sa
ct

io
n

s 
ar

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 c

o
n

su
lt

at
io

n
s 

in
 w

h
ic

h
 li

b
ra

ry
 s

ta
ff

 r
ec

om
m

en
d

, 
in

te
rp

re
t,

 e
va

lu
at

e,
 a

n
d

/
o

r 
u

se
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
re

so
u

rc
es

 t
o

 h
el

p
 o

th
er

s 
to

 m
ee

t 
p

ar
ti

cu
la

r 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 n

ee
d

s.

A
 r

ef
er

en
ce

 t
ra

n
sa

ct
io

n
 in

cl
u

d
es

 i
n

fo
rm

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 r
ef

er
ra

l s
er

vi
ce

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

u
n

sc
h

ed
u

le
d

 in
d

iv
id

u
al

 in
st

ru
ct

io
n

 a
n

d
 a

ss
is

ta
n

ce
 i

n
 u

si
n

g
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 s

o
u

rc
es

 (
in

cl
u

d
in

g
 w

eb
 s

it
es

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

p
u

te
r-

as
si

st
ed

 in
st

ru
ct

io
n

).
 C

o
u

n
t 

R
ea

d
er

s 
A

d
vi

so
ry

 q
u

es
ti

o
n

s 
as

 r
ef

er
en

ce
tr

an
sa

ct
io

n
s.

N
O

TE
: 

It
 i

s 
es

se
n

ti
al

 t
h

at
 li

b
ra

ri
es

 d
o 

n
ot

 in
cl

u
d

e 
d

ir
ec

ti
on

al
 t

ra
n

sa
ct

io
n

s 
in

 t
h

e 
re

p
o

rt
 o

f 
re

fe
re

n
ce

 t
ra

n
sa

ct
io

n
s.

 D
ir

ec
ti

o
n

al
tr

an
sa

ct
io

n
s 

in
cl

u
d

e 
g

iv
in

g
 i

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 f
o

r 
lo

ca
ti

n
g

 s
ta

ff
, 

lib
ra

ry
 u

se
rs

, 
o

r 
p

h
ys

ic
al

 f
ea

tu
re

s 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e 

li
b

ra
ry

. 
Ex

am
p

le
s 

of
 d

ir
ec

ti
o

n
al

tr
an

sa
ct

io
n

s 
in

cl
u

d
e,

 “
W

h
er

e 
is

 t
h

e 
re

fe
re

n
ce

 li
b

ra
ri

an
? 

W
h

er
e 

is
 S

u
sa

n
 S

m
it

h
? 

W
h

er
e 

is
 t

h
e 

re
st

 r
oo

m
? 

W
h

er
e 

ar
e 

th
e 

6
0

0
s?

 C
an

 y
ou

h
el

p
 m

e 
m

ak
e 

a 
p

h
o

to
co

p
y?

”

If
 a

n
 a

n
n

u
al

 c
o

u
n

t 
is

 n
o

t 
av

ai
la

b
le

, 
th

en
 s

el
ec

t 
a 

ty
p

ic
al

 w
ee

k 
an

d
 m

u
lt

ip
ly

 b
y 

5
2

 t
o 

es
ti

m
at

e 
th

e 
an

n
u

al
 c

o
u

n
t.

1
9

.1
 T

ot
al

 A
n

n
u

al
 R

ef
er

en
ce

 T
ra

n
sa

ct
io

n
s 

[P
LS

 5
0

2
]

1
3

0
,7

8
5

 
1

9
.1

a
 R

ef
er

en
ce

 T
ra

n
sa

ct
io

n
s 

R
ep

or
ti

n
g

 M
et

h
od

 [
P

LS
 5

0
2

a]
A
n
n
u
a
l 
C
o
u
n
t

O
n

e-
o

n
-O

n
e 

Tu
to

ri
al

s

O
n

e-
on

-o
n

e 
tu

to
ri

al
s 

ar
e 

w
h

en
 a

 s
ta

ff
 m

em
b

er
 s

p
en

d
s 

a 
co

n
si

d
er

ab
le

 a
m

o
u

n
t 

of
 t

im
e 

tu
to

ri
n

g
 o

r 
te

ac
h

in
g

 a
 p

at
ro

n
 o

n
 a

 s
p

ec
if

ic
 s

u
b

je
ct

.
N

ot
e 

th
at

 t
h

es
e 

ar
e 

d
if

fe
re

n
t 

fr
o

m
 p

ro
g

ra
m

s,
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 p

u
t 

o
n

 f
or

 a
 g

ro
u

p
, 

an
d

 r
ef

er
en

ce
 t

ra
n

sa
ct

io
n

s,
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 l

im
it

ed
 t

o
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
co

n
su

lt
at

io
n

s 
(s

ee
 d

ef
in

it
io

n
 a

b
o

ve
).

1
9

.2
 T

ot
al

 A
n

n
u

al
 O

n
e-

o
n

-O
n

e 
Tu

to
ri

al
s

1
3

5

A
U

TO
M

A
TI

O
N

 (
2

0
.1

 -
 2

0
.5

)

Th
is

 s
ec

ti
o

n
 is

 c
ol

le
ct

in
g

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 a
b

ou
t 

au
to

m
at

io
n

 t
ec

h
n

o
lo

g
y 

in
 y

o
u

r 
lib

ra
ry

. 
P

le
as

e 
p

ro
vi

d
e 

th
e 

re
q

u
es

te
d

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 b
el

o
w

.

2
0

.1
 T

ot
al

 n
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
A

LL
 c

om
p

u
te

rs
 in

 t
h

e 
lib

ra
ry

2
8

4
 

2
0

.2
 T

ot
al

 n
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
P

U
B

LI
C

 U
S

E 
(I

n
te

rn
et

 a
n

d
 n

on
-I

n
te

rn
et

 a
cc

es
si

b
le

) 
co

m
p

u
te

rs
 in

 t
h

e
lib

ra
ry

)
1

4
1

 
2

0
.3

 I
s 

yo
u

r 
lib

ra
ry

's
 c

at
al

o
g

 a
u

to
m

at
ed

?
Y
e
s

2
0

.4
 I

s 
yo

u
r 

lib
ra

ry
's

 c
at

al
og

 a
cc

es
si

b
le

 v
ia

 t
h

e 
w

eb
?

Y
e
s

2
0

.5
 D

oe
s 

yo
u

r 
lib

ra
ry

 h
av

e 
a 

te
le

co
m

m
u

n
ic

at
io

n
s 

m
es

sa
g

in
g

 d
ev

ic
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

h
ea

ri
n

g
 im

p
ai

re
d

?
N

o

Da
ta

 In
pu

t
ile

:/
//

Y:
/B

oa
rd

%
20

Pa
ck

et
s/

20
25

/F
eb

ru
ar

y/
IP

LA
R%

20
20

25
.h

tm
l

20
 o

f 2
4

2 /
13

/2
02

5,
 4

:0
9 

PM

61



IN
TE

R
N

ET
 (

2
1

.1
 -

 2
1

.9
)

Th
is

 s
ec

ti
o

n
 c

ol
le

ct
s 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 a
b

ou
t 

in
te

rn
et

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
in

 t
h

e 
lib

ra
ry

 f
ac

ili
ty

. 
P

le
as

e 
p

ro
vi

d
e 

th
e 

re
q

u
es

te
d

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 b
el

o
w

.

2
1

.1
 D

oe
s 

yo
u

r 
lib

ra
ry

 h
av

e 
In

te
rn

et
 a

cc
es

s?
Y
e
s

2
1

.2
a

 W
h

at
 is

 t
h

e 
m

ax
im

u
m

 s
p

ee
d

 o
f 

yo
u

r 
lib

ra
ry

's
 I

n
te

rn
et

 c
o

n
n

ec
ti

on
? 

(S
el

ec
t 

on
e)

O
th

e
r 

(s
p
e
ci

fy
)

2
1

.2
b

 I
f 

O
th

er
, 

p
le

as
e 

sp
ec

if
y

1
 G

p
b

s 
2

1
.3

 W
h

at
 is

 t
h

e 
m

on
th

ly
 c

os
t 

of
 t

h
e 

lib
ra

ry
's

 in
te

rn
et

 a
cc

es
s?

$
1

,1
0

0
 

2
1

.4
 N

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

In
te

rn
et

 C
o

m
p

u
te

rs
 A

va
ila

b
le

 f
or

 P
u

b
lic

 U
se

 [
P

LS
 6

5
0

]
1

4
1

 
2

1
.5

 N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
U

se
s 

(S
es

si
o

n
s)

 o
f 

P
u

b
lic

 I
n

te
rn

et
 C

om
p

u
te

rs
 P

er
 Y

ea
r 

[P
LS

 6
5

1
]

3
7

,3
4

7
 

2
1

.5
a

 R
ep

or
ti

n
g

 M
et

h
od

 f
or

 N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
U

se
s 

of
 P

u
b

lic
 I

n
te

rn
et

 C
om

p
u

te
rs

 P
er

 Y
ea

r 
[P

LS
 6

5
1

a]
A
n
n
u
a
l 
C
o
u
n
t

2
1

.6
 W

ir
el

es
s 

S
es

si
o

n
s 

P
er

 Y
ea

r 
[P

LS
 6

5
2

]
3

4
,5

2
9

 
2

1
.6

a
 R

ep
or

ti
n

g
 M

et
h

od
 f

or
 W

ir
el

es
s 

S
es

si
on

s 
[P

LS
 6

5
2

a]
A
n
n
u
a
l 
C
o
u
n
t

2
1

.7
 D

oe
s 

yo
u

r 
lib

ra
ry

 u
ti

liz
e 

In
te

rn
et

 f
ilt

er
s 

o
n

 s
om

e 
o

r 
al

l o
f 

th
e 

p
u

b
lic

 a
cc

es
s 

co
m

p
u

te
rs

?
Y
e
s

2
1

.8
 D

oe
s 

yo
u

r 
lib

ra
ry

 p
ro

vi
d

e 
in

st
ru

ct
io

n
 (

w
or

ks
h

o
p

s,
 c

la
ss

es
) 

to
 p

at
ro

n
s 

o
n

 t
h

e 
u

se
 o

f 
th

e
In

te
rn

et
?

Y
e
s

E
-R

A
TE

 (
2

2
.1

 -
 2

2
.3

)

E-
R

at
e 

is
 t

h
e 

co
m

m
on

ly
 u

se
d

 n
am

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
S

ch
o

o
ls

 a
n

d
 L

ib
ra

ri
es

 P
ro

g
ra

m
 o

f 
th

e 
U

n
iv

er
sa

l 
S

er
vi

ce
 F

u
n

d
, 

w
h

ic
h

 is
 a

d
m

in
is

te
re

d
 b

y 
th

e
U

n
iv

er
sa

l S
er

vi
ce

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
C

o
m

p
an

y 
(U

S
A

C
) 

u
n

d
er

 t
h

e 
d

ir
ec

ti
on

 o
f 

th
e 

Fe
d

er
al

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

s 
C

om
m

is
si

o
n

 (
FC

C
).

 T
h

e 
p

ro
g

ra
m

p
ro

vi
d

es
 d

is
co

u
n

ts
 t

o
 a

ss
is

t 
sc

h
o

o
ls

 a
n

d
 li

b
ra

ri
es

 in
 t

h
e 

U
n

it
ed

 S
ta

te
s 

to
 o

b
ta

in
 a

ff
o

rd
ab

le
 t

el
ec

o
m

m
u

n
ic

at
io

n
s 

an
d

 I
n

te
rn

et
 a

cc
es

s.

2
2

.1
 D

id
 y

o
u

r 
lib

ra
ry

 a
p

p
ly

 d
ir

ec
tl

y 
fo

r 
E-

ra
te

 d
is

co
u

n
ts

 f
o

r 
th

e 
fi

sc
al

 y
ea

r?
Y
e
s

2
2

.2
a

 I
f 

Y
ES

, 
d

id
 y

o
u

r 
lib

ra
ry

 a
p

p
ly

 f
or

 C
at

eg
or

y 
1

, 
C

at
eg

or
y 

2
 o

r 
b

ot
h

?
B
o
th

2
2

.2
b

 I
F 

Y
ES

, 
w

h
at

 is
 t

h
e 

d
ol

la
r 

am
ou

n
t 

th
at

 y
o

u
r 

lib
ra

ry
 w

as
 a

w
ar

d
ed

 f
or

 t
h

e 
fi

sc
al

 y
ea

r 
re

p
or

t
p

er
io

d
?

5
2

$
1

8
,0

3
3

 
2

2
.3

 I
f 

N
O

, 
w

h
y 

d
id

 y
ou

r 
lib

ra
ry

 N
O

T 
p

ar
ti

ci
p

at
e 

in
 t

h
e 

E-
ra

te
 p

ro
g

ra
m

?

S
TA

FF
 D

EV
E

LO
P

M
EN

T 
&

 T
R

A
IN

IN
G

 (
2

3
.1

 -
 2

3
.3

)

Th
is

 s
ec

ti
o

n
 f

oc
u

se
s 

o
n

 s
ta

ff
 d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
an

d
 t

ra
in

in
g

. 
P

le
as

e 
p

ro
vi

d
e 

th
e 

re
q

u
es

te
d

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 b
el

o
w

.

2
3

.1
 H

o
w

 m
u

ch
 m

o
n

ey
 d

id
 y

o
u

r 
lib

ra
ry

 s
p

en
d

 o
n

 s
ta

ff
 d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
an

d
 t

ra
in

in
g

 t
h

is
 f

is
ca

l y
ea

r?
(R

ou
n

d
 a

n
sw

er
 t

o 
th

e 
n

ea
re

st
 w

h
ol

e 
d

ol
la

r.
)

$
1

8
,9

9
1

 

2
3

.2
 D

oe
s 

th
e 

ab
ov

e 
am

ou
n

t 
in

cl
u

d
e 

tr
av

el
 e

xp
en

se
s?

Y
e
s

2
3

.3
 H

ow
 m

an
y 

h
o

u
rs

 o
f 

tr
ai

n
in

g
 d

id
 e

m
p

lo
ye

es
 r

ec
ei

ve
 t

h
is

 y
ea

r?
8

8
0

.0
0

 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

 A
N

D
 S

U
G

G
ES

TI
O

N
S

 (
2

4
.1

-2
4

.3
)

P
le

as
e 

u
se

 t
h

is
 s

ec
ti

o
n

 t
o

 p
ro

vi
d

e 
fu

rt
h

er
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 a

b
o

u
t 

yo
u

r 
li

b
ra

ry
 a

n
d

/
o

r 
co

m
m

en
ts

 o
r 

su
g

g
es

ti
o

n
s 

fo
r 

ch
an

g
es

 t
o

 t
h

e 
IP

LA
R

p
ro

ce
ss

. 
W

e 
w

ill
 u

se
 t

h
e 

co
m

m
en

ts
 y

ou
 s

u
p

p
ly

 t
o

 b
et

te
r 

re
p

re
se

n
t 

yo
u

r 
d

at
a 

to
 t

h
e 

P
u

b
lic

 L
ib

ra
ry

 S
u

rv
ey

 a
n

d
 t

o 
h

el
p

 i
m

p
ro

ve
 f

u
tu

re
ve

rs
io

n
s 

o
f 

th
e 

IP
LA

R
.

2
4

.1
 A

re
 t

h
er

e 
an

y 
ot

h
er

 f
ac

to
rs

 t
h

at
 m

ay
 h

av
e 

af
fe

ct
ed

 y
ou

r 
lib

ra
ry

's
 a

n
n

u
al

 r
ep

or
t 

d
at

a 
of

w
h

ic
h

 y
o

u
 w

ou
ld

 li
ke

 t
o 

m
ak

e 
u

s 
aw

ar
e?

2
4

.2
 A

re
 t

h
er

e 
an

y 
u

n
iq

u
e 

p
ro

g
ra

m
s 

or
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

yo
u

r 
lib

ra
ry

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e 
re

p
or

t 
p

er
io

d
 o

f
w

h
ic

h
 y

o
u

 w
ou

ld
 li

ke
 t

o 
m

ak
e 

u
s 

aw
ar

e?
2

4
.3

 P
le

as
e 

p
ro

vi
d

e 
an

y 
co

m
m

en
ts

, 
su

g
g

es
ti

on
s 

o
r 

co
n

ce
rn

s 
ab

ou
t 

th
e 

Il
lin

oi
s 

P
u

b
lic

 L
ib

ra
ry

A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
or

t 
(I

P
LA

R
).

Da
ta

 In
pu

t
ile

:/
//

Y:
/B

oa
rd

%
20

Pa
ck

et
s/

20
25

/F
eb

ru
ar

y/
IP

LA
R%

20
20

25
.h

tm
l

21
 o

f 2
4

2 /
13

/2
02

5,
 4

:0
9 

PM

62



P
U

B
LI

C
 L

IB
R

A
R

Y
 D

IS
TR

IC
T 

S
EC

R
ET

A
R

Y
'S

 A
U

D
IT

 (
2

5
.1

-2
5

.5
) 

D
IS

TR
IC

T
 L

IB
R

A
R

IE
S

 O
N

LY

P
u

b
lic

 L
ib

ra
ry

 D
is

tr
ic

ts
 a

re
 r

eq
u

ir
ed

 b
y 

st
at

u
te

 [
7

5
 I

LC
S

 1
6

/3
0

-6
5

(a
)(

1
),

(c
)(

d
)]

 t
o

 s
u

b
m

it
 t

h
e 

P
u

b
lic

 L
ib

ra
ry

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
S

ec
re

ta
ry

's
 A

u
d

it
.

N
O

TE
: 

If
 t

h
er

e 
A

R
E 

an
y 

er
ro

rs
 o

r 
d

is
cr

ep
an

ci
es

, 
p

le
as

e 
lis

t 
an

d
 e

xp
la

in
 f

u
lly

.
N

O
TE

: 
O

n
ly

 D
IS

TR
IC

T 
lib

ra
ri

es
 n

ee
d

 t
o

 c
o

m
pl

et
e 

th
is

 S
ec

ti
o

n
, 

al
l 

ot
h

er
 l

ib
ra

ri
es

 s
h

o
u

ld
 s

el
ec

t 
"N

o
t 

A
p

p
lic

ab
le

" 
fo

r 
al

l q
u

es
ti

on
s 

in
 t

h
is

se
ct

io
n

.

2
5

.1
 W

er
e 

th
e 

se
cr

et
ar

y’
s 

re
co

rd
s 

fo
u

n
d

 t
o

 b
e 

co
m

p
le

te
 a

n
d

 a
cc

u
ra

te
?

2
5

.2
 I

f 
N

O
, 

p
le

as
e 

lis
t 

an
d

 e
xp

la
in

 a
n

y 
er

ro
rs

 o
r 

d
is

cr
ep

an
ci

es
.

2
5

.3
 F

ir
st

 b
oa

rd
 m

em
b

er
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
n

g
 t

h
e 

au
d

it
2

5
.4

 S
ec

o
n

d
 b

o
ar

d
 m

em
b

er
 c

om
p

le
ti

n
g

 t
h

e 
au

d
it

2
5

.5
 D

at
e 

th
e 

S
ec

re
ta

ry
's

 A
u

d
it

 w
as

 c
om

p
le

te
d

IP
LA

R
 C

ER
TI

FI
C

A
T

IO
N

P
le

as
e 

h
av

e 
th

e 
lib

ra
ry

 d
ir

ec
to

r,
 b

oa
rd

 p
re

si
d

en
t 

an
d

 b
o

ar
d

 s
ec

re
ta

ry
 t

yp
e 

th
ei

r 
n

am
es

 in
 t

h
e 

b
ox

es
 p

ro
vi

d
ed

 t
o

 c
er

ti
fy

 t
h

at
 t

h
ey

 a
g

re
e

w
it

h
 t

h
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 s

ta
te

m
en

t:

Th
is

 I
lli

n
o

is
 P

u
b

lic
 L

ib
ra

ry
 A

n
n

u
al

 R
ep

or
t 

(I
P

LA
R

) 
is

 b
ei

n
g

 f
ile

d
 i

n
 a

cc
o

rd
an

ce
 w

it
h

 7
5

 I
LC

S
 5

/
4

-1
0

 (
m

u
n

ic
ip

al
 li

b
ra

ri
es

) 
or

 7
5

 I
LC

S
1

6
/

3
0

-6
5

 (
p

u
b

lic
 li

b
ra

ry
 d

is
tr

ic
ts

).
 T

h
e 

u
n

d
er

si
g

n
ed

 a
u

th
o

ri
ze

d
 a

g
en

ts
 f

o
r 

th
is

 p
u

b
lic

 li
b

ra
ry

: 
(1

) 
ac

ce
p

t 
an

d
 a

ck
n

ow
le

d
g

e 
th

at
 t

h
e

ap
p

en
d

ed
 I

P
LA

R
 i

s 
es

se
n

ti
al

ly
 a

cc
u

ra
te

 a
n

d
 c

or
re

ct
; 

(2
) 

tr
an

sm
it

 t
h

e 
ap

p
en

d
ed

 I
P

LA
R

 f
o

r 
re

vi
ew

 a
n

d
 a

n
y 

su
b

se
q

u
en

t 
re

so
lu

ti
on

; 
an

d
,

(3
) 

ag
re

e 
th

at
 t

h
e 

el
ec

tr
o

n
ic

 I
P

LA
R

 c
o

p
y 

su
b

m
it

te
d

 t
o

 t
h

e 
Il

lin
o

is
 S

ta
te

 L
ib

ra
ry

 s
h

al
l s

er
ve

 a
s 

th
e 

o
ff

ic
ia

l 
fi

le
 c

o
p

y.

El
ec

tr
on

ic
 S

ig
n

at
u

re
D

at
e

L
ib

ra
ry

 D
ir

e
c

to
r

P
re

s
id

e
n

t

S
e

c
re

ta
ry

IP
LA

R
 S

U
B

M
IS

S
IO

N
 R

EM
IN

D
ER

S

Fo
llo

w
 t

h
es

e 
st

ep
s 

fo
r 

IP
LA

R
 s

u
b

m
is

si
o

n
:

1
. 

S
el

ec
t 

th
e 

"V
er

if
y"

 b
u

tt
o

n
 lo

ca
te

d
 a

t 
th

e 
to

p
 o

f 
th

e 
sc

re
en

.
2

. 
R

ev
ie

w
 t

h
e 

fo
rm

 a
n

d
 r

es
o

lv
e 

an
y 

re
q

u
ir

ed
 f

ie
ld

s 
o

r 
ed

it
 c

h
ec

ks
 (

th
ey

 w
ill

 b
e 

h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 i

n
 r

ed
).

 I
n

 t
h

e 
ca

se
 o

f 
ed

it
 c

h
ec

ks
, 

ex
p

la
in

p
ra

g
m

at
ic

al
ly

 w
h

y 
th

is
 y

ea
r'

s 
an

sw
er

 is
 e

q
u

al
 t

o,
 le

ss
 t

h
an

, 
o

r 
m

or
e 

th
an

 t
h

e 
p

re
vi

ou
s 

ye
ar

's
 a

n
sw

er
.

3
. 

S
el

ec
t 

th
e 

"S
u

b
m

it
/

Lo
ck

" 
b

u
tt

o
n

 a
t 

th
e 

to
p

 o
f 

th
e 

p
ag

e.

N
O

TE
: 

A
ll 

re
q

u
ir

ed
 q

u
es

ti
o

n
s 

m
u

st
 b

e 
an

sw
er

ed
 a

n
d

 a
ll 

ed
it

 c
h

ec
ks

 m
u

st
 c

o
n

ta
in

 n
ar

ra
ti

ve
 n

ot
es

 i
n

 o
rd

er
 f

o
r 

th
e 

su
rv

ey
 t

o
 e

le
ct

ro
n

ic
al

ly
su

b
m

it
, 

o
th

er
w

is
e 

yo
u

 w
il

l b
e 

ta
ke

n
 t

o
 a

 r
ev

ie
w

 s
cr

ee
n

 l
is

ti
n

g
 t

h
e 

q
u

es
ti

on
s 

th
at

 r
eq

u
ir

e 
ad

d
it

io
n

al
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
. 

If
 y

o
u

 h
av

e 
tr

o
u

b
le

g
et

ti
n

g
 t

h
e 

fo
rm

 t
o

 s
u

b
m

it
/

lo
ck

, 
p

le
as

e 
co

n
ta

ct
 P

at
 B

u
rg

 (
2

1
7

-7
8

5
-1

1
6

8
, 

p
b

u
rg

@
ils

o
s.

g
o

v)
.

1 ,
 2

.1
4

 T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 s

yn
ch

ro
no

us
 p

ro
gr

am
s 

an
d 

se
lf-

di
re

ct
ed

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

in
 2

02
4.

 (
0-

20
25

-0
2-

11
)

2 ,
  

Th
e 

ne
w

 m
ak

er
sp

ac
e 

w
as

 n
ea

rl
y 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 in

 2
02

4.
 F

un
ds

 w
er

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
a 

do
no

r. 
(0

-2
02

5-
01

-2
3)

3 ,
  

O
ur

 C
ap

ita
l N

ee
ds

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

is
 b

ud
ge

te
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

20
25

 y
ea

r. 
O

nc
e 

co
m

pl
et

e 
w

e 
w

ill
 k

no
w

 w
ha

t 
w

or
k 

is
 n

ee
de

d.
 (

0-
20

25
-0

1-
28

)

4 ,
  

Th
e 

C
ity

 o
f 

D
es

 P
la

in
es

 o
w

ns
 t

he
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

an
d 

is
 r

es
po

ns
ib

le
 f

or
 t

he
 e

xt
er

io
r 

an
d 

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
co

st
s.

 (
0-

20
25

-0
1-

27
)

5 ,
  

O
ur

 C
ap

ita
l N

ee
ds

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

is
 b

ud
ge

te
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

20
25

 y
ea

r. 
O

nc
e 

co
m

pl
et

e 
w

e 
w

ill
 k

no
w

 w
ha

t 
w

or
k 

is
 n

ee
de

d.
 (

0-
20

25
-0

1-
28

)

6 ,
  

O
ur

 C
ap

ita
l N

ee
ds

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

is
 b

ud
ge

te
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

20
25

 y
ea

r. 
O

nc
e 

co
m

pl
et

e 
w

e 
w

ill
 k

no
w

 w
ha

t 
w

or
k 

is
 n

ee
de

d.
 (

0-
20

25
-0

1-
28

)

7 ,
  

O
ur

 C
ap

ita
l N

ee
ds

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

is
 b

ud
ge

te
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

20
25

 y
ea

r. 
O

nc
e 

co
m

pl
et

e 
w

e 
w

ill
 k

no
w

 w
ha

t 
w

or
k 

is
 n

ee
de

d.
 (

0-
20

25
-0

1-
28

)

Da
ta

 In
pu

t
ile

:/
//

Y:
/B

oa
rd

%
20

Pa
ck

et
s/

20
25

/F
eb

ru
ar

y/
IP

LA
R%

20
20

25
.h

tm
l

22
 o

f 2
4

2 /
13

/2
02

5,
 4

:0
9 

PM

63



8 ,
  

O
ur

 C
ap

ita
l N

ee
ds

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

is
 b

ud
ge

te
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

20
25

 y
ea

r. 
O

nc
e 

co
m

pl
et

e 
w

e 
w

ill
 k

no
w

 w
ha

t 
w

or
k 

is
 n

ee
de

d.
 (

0-
20

25
-0

1-
28

)

9 ,
  

O
ur

 C
ap

ita
l N

ee
ds

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

is
 b

ud
ge

te
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

20
25

 y
ea

r. 
O

nc
e 

co
m

pl
et

e 
w

e 
w

ill
 k

no
w

 w
ha

t 
w

or
k 

is
 n

ee
de

d.
 (

0-
20

25
-0

1-
28

)

10
, 

 N
ot

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
, 

B
ui

ld
in

g 
co

ns
tr

uc
te

d 
in

 2
00

0.
 (

0-
20

24
-1

2-
17

)

11
, 

 O
ur

 C
ap

ita
l N

ee
ds

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

is
 b

ud
ge

te
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

20
25

 y
ea

r. 
O

nc
e 

co
m

pl
et

e 
w

e 
w

ill
 k

no
w

 w
ha

t 
w

or
k 

is
 n

ee
de

d.
 (

0-
20

25
-0

1-
28

)

12
, 

 O
ur

 C
ap

ita
l N

ee
ds

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

is
 b

ud
ge

te
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

20
25

 y
ea

r. 
O

nc
e 

co
m

pl
et

e 
w

e 
w

ill
 k

no
w

 w
ha

t 
w

or
k 

is
 n

ee
de

d.
 (

0-
20

25
-0

1-
28

)

13
, 

 T
he

 C
ity

 o
f 

D
es

 P
la

in
es

 o
w

ns
 t

he
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

an
d 

is
 r

es
po

ns
ib

le
 f

or
 t

he
 e

xt
er

io
r 

an
d 

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
co

st
s.

 (
0-

20
25

-0
1-

28
)

14
, 

 O
ur

 C
ap

ita
l N

ee
ds

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

is
 b

ud
ge

te
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

20
25

 y
ea

r. 
O

nc
e 

co
m

pl
et

e 
w

e 
w

ill
 k

no
w

 w
ha

t 
w

or
k 

is
 n

ee
de

d.
 (

0-
20

25
-0

1-
28

)

15
, 

 O
ur

 C
ap

ita
l N

ee
ds

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

is
 b

ud
ge

te
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

20
25

 y
ea

r. 
O

nc
e 

co
m

pl
et

e 
w

e 
w

ill
 k

no
w

 w
ha

t 
w

or
k 

is
 n

ee
de

d.
 (

0-
20

25
-0

1-
28

)

16
, 

 N
A
 (

0-
20

25
-0

1-
28

)

17
, 

 N
A
 (

0-
20

25
-0

1-
28

)

18
, 

 T
he

 n
ew

 m
ak

er
sp

ac
e 

w
as

 n
ea

rl
y 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 in

 2
02

4.
 F

un
ds

 w
er

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
a 

do
no

r. 
(0

-2
02

5-
01

-2
1)

19
, 

 T
he

 C
ity

 o
f 

D
es

 P
la

in
es

 o
w

ns
 t

he
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

an
d 

is
 r

es
po

ns
ib

le
 f

or
 t

he
 e

xt
er

io
r 

an
d 

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
co

st
s.

 (
0-

20
24

-1
2-

17
)

20
, 

 N
ot

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
, 

B
ui

ld
in

g 
co

ns
tr

uc
te

d 
in

 2
00

0.
 (

0-
20

25
-0

1-
23

)

21
, 

 T
he

 C
ity

 o
f 

D
es

 P
la

in
es

 o
w

ns
 t

he
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

an
d 

is
 r

es
po

ns
ib

le
 f

or
 t

he
 e

xt
er

io
r 

an
d 

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
co

st
s.

 (
0-

20
25

-0
1-

28
)

22
, 

 N
A
 (

0-
20

25
-0

1-
28

)

23
, 

 N
A
 (

0-
20

25
-0

1-
28

)

24
, 

7.
1

 T
he

 C
ity

 o
f 

D
es

 P
la

in
es

 h
as

 c
on

tr
ac

te
d 

as
se

t 
va

lu
at

io
ns

 t
o 

be
 c

on
du

ct
ed

 e
ve

ry
 t

hr
ee

 y
ea

rs
 f

or
 in

su
ra

nc
e 

re
ne

w
al

 p
ur

po
se

s.
 T

hi
s 

is
 t

he
 c

ur
re

nt
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
re

la
te

d 
to

 t
he

 L
ib

ra
ry

 r
ea

l e
st

at
e 

ev
al

ua
tio

n.
 (

0-
20

25
-0

1-
08

)

25
, 

8.
1

 2
02

4 
va

lu
e 

re
fle

ct
ed

 m
or

e 
ta

x 
re

ve
nu

e 
du

e 
to

 p
re

vi
ou

s 
ye

ar
's

 d
el

ay
 in

 C
oo

k 
C
ou

nt
y'

s 
pr

op
er

ty
 t

ax
 c

ol
le

ct
io

n.
 T

he
re

 w
er

e 
no

 d
el

ay
s 

to
 r

ep
or

t 
la

st
ye

ar
. 

(0
-2

02
5-

01
-2

2)

26
, 

8.
4

 I
n 

20
24

, 
th

e 
C
ity

 a
nd

 L
ib

ra
ry

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
ca

lc
ul

at
io

n 
us

ed
 f
or

 P
PR

T 
w

as
 in

co
rr

ec
t.

 W
he

n 
ad

ju
st

ed
, 

ba
ck

 P
PR

T 
w

as
 o

w
ed

 t
he

 L
ib

ra
ry

. 
Th

is
re

fle
ct

s 
ba

ck
 p

ay
m

en
ts

 f
ro

m
 t

he
 C

ity
 f
or

 P
PR

T.
 (

0-
20

25
-0

1-
22

)

27
, 

8.
5

 R
A
IL

S
 L

LS
A
P 

S
up

po
rt

 G
ra

nt
 (

0-
20

25
-0

2-
12

)

28
, 

8.
9

 R
ep

re
se

nt
s 

C
AT

 1
 a

nd
 C

AT
 2

 f
un

di
ng

 f
or

 c
on

ne
ct

iv
ity

 a
nd

 s
er

vi
ce

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 o
f 

el
ig

ib
le

 it
em

s.
 (

0-
20

25
-0

1-
22

)

29
, 

8.
14

 I
nc

re
as

e 
fr

om
 2

02
3 

to
 2

02
4 

is
 d

ue
 t

o 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 in
cr

ea
se

 in
 g

ai
ns

 o
n 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

, 
an

d 
in

te
re

st
 in

co
m

e.
 (

0-
20

25
-0

2-
11

)

30
, 

10
.1

 W
e 

or
de

re
d 

m
or

e 
ite

m
s 

fr
om

 A
m

az
on

 t
hi

s 
ye

ar
 d

ue
 t

o 
de

liv
er

y 
is

su
es

 w
ith

 o
ur

 u
su

al
 v

en
do

r. 
Th

is
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

ou
r 

co
st

s.
 (

0-
20

25
-0

2-
12

)

31
, 

12
.7

 T
hi

s 
am

ou
nt

 in
cl

ud
es

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
of

 o
ur

 m
ak

er
sp

ac
e,

 m
ak

er
sp

ac
e 

eq
ui

pm
en

t,
 f
ur

ni
tu

re
, 

co
m

pu
te

r 
ha

rd
w

ar
e,

 c
om

pu
te

r 
so

ft
w

ar
e,

 a
nd

 g
en

er
al

eq
ui

pm
en

t.
 (

0-
20

25
-0

1-
21

)

32
, 

14
.1

 T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 s

yn
ch

ro
no

us
 p

ro
gr

am
s 

an
d 

se
lf-

di
re

ct
ed

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

in
 2

02
4.

 (
0-

20
25

-0
2-

11
)

Da
ta

 In
pu

t
ile

:/
//

Y:
/B

oa
rd

%
20

Pa
ck

et
s/

20
25

/F
eb

ru
ar

y/
IP

LA
R%

20
20

25
.h

tm
l

23
 o

f 2
4

2 /
13

/2
02

5,
 4

:0
9 

PM

64



33
, 

 I
n 

la
te

 2
02

3,
 a

 p
ar

t-
tim

e 
lib

ra
ri
an

 p
os

iti
on

 w
as

 e
lim

in
at

ed
. 

Th
is

 li
br

ar
ia

n 
de

di
ca

te
d 

ha
lf 

he
r 

tim
e 

to
 e

ar
ly

 le
ar

ni
ng

 o
ut

re
ac

h.
 (

0-
20

25
-0

2-
11

)

34
, 

 I
n 

la
te

 2
02

3,
 a

 p
ar

t-
tim

e 
lib

ra
ri
an

 p
os

iti
on

 w
as

 e
lim

in
at

ed
. 

Th
is

 li
br

ar
ia

n 
de

di
ca

te
d 

ha
lf 

he
r 

tim
e 

to
 e

ar
ly

 le
ar

ni
ng

 o
ut

re
ac

h.
 (

0-
20

25
-0

2-
11

)

35
, 

 W
e 

ha
ve

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
se

lf-
di

re
ct

ed
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
sc

av
en

ge
r 

hu
nt

s,
 q

ui
ck

 c
ra

ft
s 

an
d 

gu
es

si
ng

 j
ar

s.
 (

0-
20

25
-0

2-
11

)

36
, 

 W
e 

ha
ve

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
se

lf-
di

re
ct

ed
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
sc

av
en

ge
r 

hu
nt

s,
 q

ui
ck

 c
ra

ft
s 

an
d 

gu
es

si
ng

 j
ar

s.
 (

0-
20

25
-0

2-
11

)

37
, 

[P
LS

 6
02

]
 I

nt
er

es
t 

an
d 

pa
rt

ic
ip

at
io

n 
fr

om
 t

hi
s 

ag
e 

gr
ou

p 
ha

s 
in

cr
ea

se
d.

 (
0-

20
25

-0
2-

11
)

38
, 

[P
LS

 6
12

]
 I

nt
er

es
t 

an
d 

pa
rt

ic
ip

at
io

n 
fr

om
 t

hi
s 

ag
e 

gr
ou

p 
ha

s 
in

cr
ea

se
d.

 (
0-

20
25

-0
2-

11
)

39
, 

 W
e 

ha
ve

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
se

lf-
di

re
ct

ed
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
sc

av
en

ge
r 

hu
nt

s,
 q

ui
ck

 c
ra

ft
s 

an
d 

gu
es

si
ng

 j
ar

s.
 (

0-
20

25
-0

2-
11

)

40
, 

 W
e 

ha
ve

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
se

lf-
di

re
ct

ed
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
sc

av
en

ge
r 

hu
nt

s,
 q

ui
ck

 c
ra

ft
s 

an
d 

gu
es

si
ng

 j
ar

s.
 (

0-
20

25
-0

2-
11

)

41
, 

 P
at

ro
n 

A
cc

ou
nt

s 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
st

ar
te

d 
of

fe
ri
ng

 p
ro

gr
am

m
in

g.
 (

0-
20

25
-0

2-
11

)

42
, 

 W
e 

ho
st

ed
 E

ar
ly

 V
ot

in
g 

in
 2

02
4 

an
d 

th
is

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
ou

r 
nu

m
be

rs
. 

(0
-2

02
5-

02
-0

3)

43
, 

15
.9

 T
he

 L
ib

ra
ry

 h
os

te
d 

th
e 

A
lg

on
qu

in
 M

id
dl

e 
S
ch

oo
l O

rc
he

st
ra

, 
th

e 
D

62
 A

rt
 S

ho
w

 R
ec

ep
tio

n,
 a

nd
 a

 N
at

io
na

l L
ib

ra
ry

 W
ee

k 
ce

le
br

at
io

n.
 (

0-
20

25
-0

2-
11

)

44
, 

15
.1

0
 T

he
 L

ib
ra

ry
 h

os
te

d 
th

e 
A
lg

on
qu

in
 M

id
dl

e 
S
ch

oo
l O

rc
he

st
ra

, 
th

e 
D

62
 A

rt
 S

ho
w

 R
ec

ep
tio

n,
 a

nd
 a

 N
at

io
na

l L
ib

ra
ry

 W
ee

k 
ce

le
br

at
io

n.
 (

0-
20

25
-0

2-
11

)

45
, 

15
.1

1
 P

at
ro

n 
A
cc

ou
nt

s 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
st

ar
te

d 
of

fe
ri
ng

 p
ro

gr
am

m
in

g.
 (

0-
20

25
-0

1-
29

)

46
, 

15
.1

2
 P

at
ro

n 
A
cc

ou
nt

s 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
st

ar
te

d 
of

fe
ri
ng

 p
ro

gr
am

m
in

g.
 (

0-
20

25
-0

2-
11

)

47
, 

[P
LS

 6
07

]
 I

n 
la

te
 2

02
3,

 a
 p

ar
t-

tim
e 

lib
ra

ri
an

 p
os

iti
on

 w
as

 e
lim

in
at

ed
. 

Th
is

 li
br

ar
ia

n 
de

di
ca

te
d 

ha
lf 

he
r 

tim
e 

to
 e

ar
ly

 le
ar

ni
ng

 o
ut

re
ac

h.
 (

0-
20

25
-0

2-
12

)

48
, 

[P
LS

 6
17

]
 I

n 
la

te
 2

02
3,

 a
 p

ar
t-

tim
e 

lib
ra

ri
an

 p
os

iti
on

 w
as

 e
lim

in
at

ed
. 

Th
is

 li
br

ar
ia

n 
de

di
ca

te
d 

ha
lf 

he
r 

tim
e 

to
 e

ar
ly

 le
ar

ni
ng

 o
ut

re
ac

h.
 (

0-
20

25
-0

2-
12

)

49
, 

18
.1

 L
as

t 
ye

ar
 w

e 
ad

de
d 

ad
ul

t 
e-

ci
rc

 t
o 

th
is

 n
um

be
r 

in
 e

rr
or

. 
Th

e 
20

24
 I

PL
A
R
 a

du
lt 

ph
ys

ic
al

 c
ir
c 

=
 3

29
,7

36
 (

0-
20

25
-0

2-
11

)

50
, 

18
.2

 P
hy

si
ca

l v
id

eo
ga

m
e 

ci
rc

ul
at

io
n 

ha
s 

go
ne

 d
ow

n.
 (

0-
20

25
-0

2-
11

)

51
, 

18
.6

 C
ir
cu

la
tio

n 
nu

m
be

rs
 d

ec
re

as
ed

 b
ec

au
se

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

m
et

ho
ds

 o
f 

en
te

rt
ai

nm
en

t,
 s

uc
h 

as
 s

tr
ea

m
in

g.
 (

0-
20

25
-0

2-
11

)

52
, 

22
.2

b
 R

ep
re

se
nt

s 
C
AT

 1
 a

nd
 C

AT
 2

 f
un

di
ng

 f
or

 c
on

ne
ct

iv
ity

 a
nd

 s
er

vi
ce

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 o
f 
el

ig
ib

le
 it

em
s.

 (
0-

20
25

-0
2-

11
)

Da
ta

 In
pu

t
ile

:/
//

Y:
/B

oa
rd

%
20

Pa
ck

et
s/

20
25

/F
eb

ru
ar

y/
IP

LA
R%

20
20

25
.h

tm
l

24
 o

f 2
4

2 /
13

/2
02

5,
 4

:0
9 

PM

65



C-12

1 

DES PLAINES PUBLIC LIBRARY 
MAKERSPACE/MEDIA LAB USE POLICY- DRAFT 

The Des Plaines Public Library makerspace (The Canvas) and Media Lab is 
intended to provide a dedicated space to facilitate independent innovation, 
education, and invention.  The library will provide equal access to materials and 
resources in a welcoming environment, for patrons to create hands-on, do-it-
yourself projects. 

Users of the space must be Des Plaines Public Library cardholders, and follow all 
Des Plaines Public Library policies, including the Library’s Rules of Conduct.  

General Rules of Use 

1. Patrons must be at least 12 years of age to use library equipment in this space.
2. Patrons under 15 years of age must be under the direct supervision of an adult,

with specific equipment (indicated by signage) requiring staff approval.
3. Exceptions to age policy may be made for library-led programs.
4. Patrons must attend a makerspace orientation and sign a Makerspace Waiver

Form (C-12a) before using any library equipment. For children under the age of
18, a parent or guardian must sign the Waiver Form.

5. The makerspace and media lab are available to patrons during posted
makerspace hours, which are subject to change. The hours will be posted on
the website and signage.

6. Patrons must be engaged in a do-it-yourself project in order to use the space.
7. Patrons may not use the equipment for mass production.
8. Approved equipment materials will be available for purchase. Costs are posted

on the website and in the makerspace.
9. Staff must approve outside materials for use with library equipment. Staff may

decline to allow the use of unapproved materials.
10. Projects must be completed, or reach a natural stopping point, 30 minutes

before the posted makerspace closing time, to allow time for clean-up.
11. Makers may reserve equipment and project tables up to 2 days in advance, for

up to 3 hours at a time.  If equipment is not reserved, it is available on a first-
come, first-served basis.

12. Library-sponsored activities, classes, and programs have priority use of the
makerspace/media lab.

13. Library staff may deny use of library equipment and tools to individuals who do
not take proper care of, recklessly use, or do not complete required training for
their use.

14. Equipment damage as a result of intentional misuse, or negligence, may result
in charges to the user.

15. Disruptive behavior may hinder the use of equipment, or result in a loss of
makerspace privileges.

66

https://www.dppl.org/assets/doc_uploads/C-7_Rules_Of_Conduct_FINAL_2017.pdf


C-12

2 

Safety Rules 

1. Complete all required training, and follow specific equipment instructions.
2. Let staff know if equipment is damaged, or not working.
3. Wear appropriate protective gear for the equipment being used.
4. Don’t modify, disassemble, or alter the equipment.
5. Never leave machines running unattended.

Liability and Restrictions 

1. The library is not responsible for project failures, personal injuries, personal
equipment or property damage, or losses.

2. Equipment may not be used to produce the following:

• Content or objects prohibited by federal, state, or local law.

• Weapons, weapon parts, or look-alike weapons.

• Objects that would be considered obscene or pornographic.

• Content that intentionally distributes malware or similar malicious
software or hardware to library computers or networks.

3. Computers and the library network may not be used to illegally upload,
download, or copy copyrighted materials, including software, music, videos,
and graphics. This includes the use of online services that facilitate the
unlicensed sharing of media files. Duplication of commercial CDs, or DVDs is
not permitted unless allowed by law.

4. The copyright law of the United State (Title 17, U.S. Code) governs all
reproductions of copyrighted material. Users are responsible for any related
infringement. By submitting content or objects, the user agrees to assume all
responsibility for, and shall hold the library harmless in, all matters related to
patented, trademarked, or copyrighted materials. The library is not responsible
for any damage, loss, or security of data arising from the use of its computers or
network, nor the functionality or quality of content produced in the
makerspace. Any violation of Intellectual Property Rights (patented,
trademarked, or copyrighted materials) is the sole responsibility of the patron.

5. The library is not responsible for the content created by individuals using the
makerspace.

Approved xx/xx/xx 

67



Des Plaines Public Library Makerspace Waiver Form - DRAFT 

The Des Plaines Public Library (DPPL) values independent innovation, education, and 

invention.  In order to support this effort, DPPL offers access to makerspace equipment 

for use by adults (18 years or older) and minors over the age of 10 (with consent of a 

parent or guardian). 

Acknowledgment of Use: 

I, _______________________________________________ (Printed Name), am at least 18 

years of age, and confirm that I have read and understand the Library’s 

Makerspace/Media Lab Use Policy. I agree to follow the rules outlined in the policy while 

using the makerspace. 

If you are a parent or guardian signing for a minor, please fill in the name of the minor 

here: ____________________________________________ 

By signing this waiver, I am fully aware that participation in the makerspace may result in 

the risk of personal injury or harm to myself. I hereby FULLY RELEASE, FOREVER 

DISCHARGE, INDEMNIFY, DEFEND, AND HOLD HARMLESS the Des Plaines Public 

Library and its officers, directors, employees, volunteers, and agents from and against any 

and all liability, loss, damages, claims, and causes of action (including attorney’s fees, and 

court costs), whether known or unknown, foreseen or unforeseen, actual or potential, 

arising from use of the makerspace equipment.   

I understand and ACCEPT FULL FINANCIAL RESPONSIBILITY for any equipment loss or 

damage resulting from misuse or negligence. I agree to bear the costs of any injury or 

damage while using the makerspace equipment and while participating in makerspace 

activities on property owned by DPPL. Should DPPL incur attorney’s fees or costs to 

enforce this agreement, I agree to indemnify and reimburse DPPL for such costs. 

I have had sufficient opportunity to read this entire document. I have read it, understand 

it, and agree to be bound by its terms.  

Signature: ________________________________________________________________ 

Date: ________________________________________________________________________ 

Library Card Number: __________________________________________________________ 

Approved xx/xx/xxxx 

68



JOB TITLE: Acquisitions and Cataloging Manager 

DEPARTMENT: Patron Accounts and Materials Services 

REPORTS TO: Assistant Director 

CLASSIFICATION:   Group 8 

  STATUS:  Non-ExemptExempt 

OBJECTIVE:  

Oversees all aspects of the Acquisitions and Cataloging Group including operations, 
personnel, materials, and budget. Serves on the Library’s management team and 
participates in strategic planning and policy development. Implements the Library’s 
strategic plan, ensuring that the Acquisitions and Cataloging Group upholds the 
Library’s mission, vision, and values. 

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 

1. Understands and carries out the Library’s policies and procedures.
2. Plans, coordinates, and evaluates all aspects of the operation of the

Acquisition and Cataloging Group.
3. Interview, hires, trains, supervises, disciplines, and evaluates up to

eight staff members.
4. Plans, organizes, and schedules the daily workflow of Acquisitions and

Cataloging staff.
5. Oversees purchasing, receiving, processing and classification of Library

materials.
6. Participates in planning the Group budget, and under the supervision of

the Library Director and Assistant Director, oversees the Group’s
expenditures.

7. Prepares and maintains the funding reports for specific material types.
8. Coordinates and participates as Library representative at the Combined

Computer Services consortium, and government organizations for all
acquisition and cataloging issues.

9. Attends professional meetings, and maintains memberships in professional
associations and participates in their activities.

10. Works at the Adult Services Reference desk as assigned.
11. Oversees the work of volunteers.
12. Represents the Library at community organizations and events.
13. Participates in continuing education.
14. Acts as Librarian in Charge as assigned.
15. Performs other duties as assigned.

69



Acquisitions and Cataloging Manager 2 

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS: 

1. Master’s Degree in Library Science or Information Science from an ALA
accredited program.

2. Five years library experience.
3. Two years technical services experience.
4. One year supervisory experience.

KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, AND ABILITIES: 

1. Considerable ability to establish and maintain effective working
relationships with staff and patrons.

2. Ability to perform excellent customer service and to communicate library
policies and procedures to the staff and the general public.

3. Ability to lead and work as a member of a team.
4. Considerable ability to work independently.
5. Considerable working ability to handle multiple and simultaneous tasks.
6. Ability to remain calm in difficult situations.
7. Ability to instruct library staff in library methods and procedures.
8. Considerable skill in written and spoken communications.
9. Considerable knowledge and skill in the use of appropriate technology.
10. Knowledge of the professional practices, procedures and techniques of

library science.
11. Knowledge of current library classification and cataloging practice and

principles.
12. Willingness to learn new skills.

TOOLS/EQUIPMENT USED: 

A variety of office machines, computers and library equipment. 

 PHYSICAL DEMANDS/WORK ENVIRONMENT: 

The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met 
by an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. 
Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities 
to perform the essential functions. 

While performing the duties of this job, the employee is frequently required to sit 
and talk or hear. The employee is occasionally required to walk; use hands to 
finger, handle, or feel objects, tools, or controls; and reach with hands and arms. 

The employee must occasionally lift up to 25 pounds. The employee must 
transport/move up to 100 pounds of library materials from one library location to 

70



Acquisitions and Cataloging Manager 3  

another. Specific vision abilities required by this job include close vision and the 
ability to adjust focus. 

 

This job description should not be interpreted as all-inclusive or as an employment 
agreement between the employer and employee. It is intended to identify the 
essential functions and requirements of this job and is subject to change as the 
needs of the employer and requirements of the job change. Incumbents may be 
required to perform job-related responsibilities and tasks other than those stated 
in this specification. Any essential functions of this position will be evaluated as 
necessary should an incumbent/applicant be unable to perform the function or 
requirement due to a disability as defined by the Americans with Disabilities Act 
(ADA). Reasonable accommodation for the specific disability will be made for the 
incumbent/applicant when possible. 

 
 
 

Approved 10/19/2017 
Revised and Approved 09/27/18 
Revised and Approved 06/17/21 

Revised and Approved 04/21/2022 
Revised and Approved 10/17/2024 

 

71



JOB TITLE:    Building & Security Services Manager 

DEPARTMENT:   Building & Security Services 

REPORTS TO:  Library Director 

CLASSIFICATION:   Group 8 

STATUS:  Non-ExemptExempt  

 

OBJECTIVE: 

Oversees all aspects of the Building & Security Services Department including operations, 

personnel, materials, and budget.  Serves on the Library’s management team and 

participates in strategic planning and policy development.   Implements the Library’s 

strategic plan, ensuring that the Building & Security Services Department upholds the 

Library’s mission, vision, and values.  

 

DUTIES: 

1. Understands and carries out the Library’s policies and procedures. 
2. Plans, directs, coordinates, and reviews work of the Building & Security 

Services Department, which includes maintenance and security staff.  

Maintains written procedures and suggests improvements. 

3. Interviews, hires, trains, supervises, disciplines and evaluates up to ten staff 

members. 

4. Prepares the annual Department budget, and under the supervision of the 

Library Director, oversees all Department expenditures and contracts. 

5. Prepares and assists with the competitive bid process for Department 

equipment and materials. 

6. Manages, evaluates, and maintains Library facilities, including HVAC, 

electrical, plumbing, elevators, life safety, library vehicles, and housekeeping 

services.  Schedules preventative maintenance visits, service repairs, and safety 

inspections. Ensures OSHA compliance.  Liaises with the City of Des Plaines to 

safely maintain the parts of the facilities under the City’s control, such as the 

building exterior, Library Plaza and the adjacent parking garage. 

7. Uses and develops life cycle plans for essential equipment.  

8. Creates and executes a comprehensive maintenance program, including up-to-

date records of repairs and replacements. 

9. Identifies and responds to urgent Library facilities problems. Arranges or 

personally takes immediate corrective action 24/7.  Serves as first person in 

Department for emergency notification calls. 

72



10. Performs first level mechanical repair and preventive maintenance as needed. 

11. Manages all security, emergency, and non-emergency issues involving patrons 

and library staff. 

12. Trains all Building & Security Services staff on proper security procedure.  

Creates security procedures and security records system. 

13. Serves as security monitor as needed. 

14. As a member of the Management Team, participates in overall planning of 

Library strategic goals, policy and safety manuals. 

15. Pursues professional development opportunities including attendance at 

workshops, webinars and professional meetings. 

16. Serves on library and community committees. 

17. Compiles statistical data and creates reports. 

18. Creates and maintains a welcoming environment for patrons and staff. 

19. Performs other duties as assigned. 

 

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS:  
  

1. Two years college.  
2. Five years experience in facilities management.  
3. Two years experience in security services.  
4. Three years supervisory experience.   
5. Valid Illinois driver’s license.   
6. Available to work nights and weekends.  
7. Available to respond to emergency calls after hours.   

  
KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, AND ABILITIES:  
  

1. Considerable ability to perform excellent customer service and to communicate 
general library policies and procedures to the public.  

2. Considerable ability to establish and maintain effective work relationships with 
staff and patrons.  

3. Ability to lead a team and work as a member of a team.  
4. Considerable ability to set priorities, make independent decisions, and exercise 

discretion with patrons and staff.  
5. Considerable knowledge of the methods, materials and equipment used in 

custodial and building maintenance work.  
6. Considerable knowledge of HVAC, electrical, plumbing, and fire protection 

systems.  
7. Knowledge of current safety and security practices.  
8. Knowledge of pertinent tools, equipment and supplies used in building 

maintenance.   

73



9. Considerable ability to handle multiple and simultaneous tasks.  
10. Considerable ability to remain calm in difficult situations.  
11. Considerable knowledge and skill in the use of appropriate technology. 
12. Skill in written and spoken communication.  
13. Willingness to learn new skills.  

  
  
TOOLS/EQUIPMENT USED:  
  
Computer-based interfaces to HVAC controls, lighting, DVR, building access, 
maintenance ticketing, and other critical systems. A variety of hand and power shop 
tools, including, but not limited to, snow blower, power washer, carpet extractor, vacuum 
cleaner, mops, and brooms.  
  
PHYSICAL DEMANDS/WORK ENVIRONMENT:  
  
The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an 
employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job.  Reasonable 
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the 
essential functions.  
  
Must be able to climb ladders and stairs, balance, stoop, bend, lift and operate all 
equipment necessary to complete custodian assignments.  
  
While performing the duties of this job, the employee is frequently required to sit and 
talk or hear. The employee is required to walk; use hands to finger; handle, or feel objects, 
tools, or controls; and reach with hands and arms.  
  
The employee must occasionally lift up to 50 pounds. The employee must transport/move 
up to 150 pounds of library materials from one library location to another. The employee 
will be required to lift, set up, and take down meeting room tables and chairs.  
  
Specific vision abilities required by this job include close vision and the ability to adjust 
focus.  
  
The noise level in the work areas varies. Sometimes exposed to heights, wet or humid 
conditions, fumes, airborne particles and toxic cleaning chemicals.  
  
This job description should not be interpreted as all-inclusive or as an employment 
agreement between the employer and employee.  It is intended to identify the essential 
functions and requirements of this job and is subject to change as the needs of the 
employer and requirements of the job change.  Incumbents may be required to perform 
job-related responsibilities and tasks other than those stated in this specification.  Any 
essential functions of this position will be evaluated as necessary should an 

74



incumbent/applicant be unable to perform the function or requirement due to a disability 
as defined by the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA).  Reasonable accommodation for 
the specific disability will be made for the incumbent/applicant when possible.   
  

Revised and Approved 11/21/06  
Revised and Approved 08/21/07  
Revised and Approved 08/18/09  

Revised and Approved 12/17/15  
Revised and Approved 09/27/18  

Revised and Approved 01/21/2021 
Revised and Approved 04/21/2022 
Revised and Approved 10/17/2024 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

75



JOB TITLE:   Business Manager  

DEPARTMENT:  Administration  

REPORTS TO: Director 

CLASSIFICATION:  Group 8 

STATUS:  N0n-ExemptExempt 

 

GENERAL STATEMENT:  

Manages all aspects of the Library’s business accounts and acts as the Library’s Office 

Manager. Works closely with the Director and the Human Resources Manager, 

participates as a member of the Library’s Management Team, and develops strategic 

planning and policy. Understands and implements the Library’s mission, vision, and 

values. 

 

 ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:  

1. Understands and implements the Library’s policies and procedures.  

2.    Maintains and safeguards all confidential and restricted information.  

3. Maintains, organizes, and processes all invoices and debits, including utility bills and 

credit card charges. 

4. In coordination with the Director, conducts banking.  

5. Maintains and organizes the Library’s donation accounts and files. 

6. Serves as purchasing agent for the library, exercising a wide scope of discretion in 

purchasing supplies, materials, and services.  

7. In coordination with the Human Resources Manager, prepares and reviews bi-weekly 

payroll processing. 

8. Prepares for and responds to audit requests. 

9. Responds to Freedom of Information requests. 

10. Acts as primary liaison with outside accounting firm. 

11. Implements record control and retention. 

12. Maintains office equipment and orders supplies. 

13. Prepares correspondence, reports, and Board of Trustees documents. 

14. May supervise up to two staff or volunteers. 

15. May act as Office Receptionist. 

16. Performs other duties as assigned.  

 

76



MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS:  

1. College degree in accounting or business. 

2. At least three years office experience.  

3. Available to work evenings and weekends.  

 

KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, AND ABILITIES:  

1. Considerable ability to establish and maintain effective working relationships with staff 

and patrons.  

2. Considerable ability to perform excellent customer service and to communicate Library 

policies and procedures to the staff and the general public.  

3. Considerable ability to work as a member of a team.  

4. Considerable ability to set priorities and work independently.  

5. Considerable ability to safeguard confidential and restricted information.  

6. Considerable technology and computer skills, including knowledge of Microsoft Office 

Products and fund accounting software. 

7. Ability to remain calm in difficult situations.  

8. Ability to handle multiple and simultaneous tasks.  

9. Ability to follow through tasks to completion.  

10. Considerable skill in written and spoken communication.  

11. Willingness to learn new skills.  

 

TOOLS/EQUIPMENT USED: A variety of office machines, computers, Library equipment.  

 

PHYSICAL DEMANDS/WORK ENVIRONMENT: The physical demands described here 

are representative of those that must be met by an employee to successfully perform the 

essential functions of the job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable 

individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. While performing the 

duties of this job, the employee is frequently required to sit and talk and hear. The 

employee is occasionally required to walk; use hands to finger, handle, or feel objects, 

tools, or controls; and reach with hands and arms. The employee must occasionally lift up 

to 25 pounds. The employee must transport/move up to 50 pounds of Library materials 

77



from one Library location to another. Specific vision abilities required by this job include 

close vision and the ability to adjust focus. This job description should not be interpreted 

as all-inclusive or as an employment agreement between the employer and employee. It is 

intended to identify the essential functions and requirements of this job and is subject to 

change as the needs of the employer and requirements of the job change. Incumbents 

may be required to perform job-related responsibilities and tasks other than those stated 

in this specification. Any essential functions of this position will be evaluated as necessary 

should an incumbent/applicant be unable to perform the function or requirement due to 

a disability as defined by the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). Reasonable 

accommodation for the specific disability will be made for the incumbent/applicant when 

possible.  

 

Approved 10/17/2024 

78



JOB TITLE:   Materials Services Manager  
 
DEPARTMENT:  Patron Accounts and Materials Services 
 
REPORTS TO:  Assistant Director 
 
CLASSIFICATION:  Group 8 
 
STATUS:   Non-ExemptExempt 
 
OBJECTIVE:    
 
To manage the Material Services Group. This position serves on the Management 
Team and participates in strategic planning and policy development, and 
implements the Library’s strategic plan to uphold its mission, vision, and values. 
 
DUTIES 
 

1. Understands and carries out the Library’s policies and procedures. 
2. Plans and coordinates all aspects of the operation of the Materials Services 

Group, including extensive coordination with Patron Account Services and 
Acquisitions and Cataloging Services. 

3. Hires, trains, supervises, disciplines, and evaluates up to 35 staff members. 
4. Directly supervises the Page Supervisor and the Materials Services Clerks.   
5. Participates in planning the department’s budget, and oversees the 

Materials Services Group’s expenditures. 
6. Manages the daily workflow of van delivery, picklist, switchboard, 

automatic materials handler, and other Materials Services Clerk duties. 
7. Works closely with Department Heads and Managers to coordinate 

collection shelving projects and resolve problems. 
8. Participates in continuing education and library-related working groups. 
9. May represent the library at community organizations and events. 
10. Compiles statistical data and creates reports. 
11. Oversees the work of volunteers. 
12. Performs other duties as assigned. 

 
MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS: 
 

1. Bachelor’s degree. 
2. Two years of retail or public library supervisory experience. 
3. One year of public library experience. 
4. Available to work evenings and weekends. 
5. Valid Illinois driver’s license. 
 

79



Materials Services Manager 2 

KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, AND ABILITIES: 
 

1. Considerable ability to establish and maintain effective work relationships 
with staff and patrons. 

2. Considerable ability to perform excellent customer service and to 
communicate general library policies and procedures to the public. 

3. Considerable ability to lead and work as a member of a team. 
4. Considerable ability to work independently. 
5. Considerable ability to solve problems. 
6. Considerable skill in spoken and written communications. 
7. Considerable knowledge and skill in the use of appropriate technology 

including Microsoft Office 3650. 
8. Ability to handle detailed, multiple, simultaneous, and varied tasks.  
9. Ability to set priorities, make independent decisions and exercise discretion 

with patrons and staff. 
10. Ability to remain calm in difficult situations. 
11. Ability to train staff in library methods and procedures. 
12. Knowledge of circulation practices, procedures and automated circulation 

systems or other applicable inventory control system. 
13. Willingness to learn new skills. 

 
TOOLS/EQUIPMENT USED: 
 
A variety of office machines, computers and library equipment. 
 
PHYSICAL DEMANDS/WORK ENVIRONMENT: 
 
The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met 
by an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. 
Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities 
to perform the essential functions. 
 
While performing the duties of this job, the employee is frequently required to sit, 
and talk or hear.  The employee is occasionally required to walk; and use hands to 
finger; handle or feel objects, tools, or controls; and reach with hands and arms.  
 
The employee must occasionally lift 25 pounds and transport or move up to 100 
pounds of library materials from one location to another. Specific vision abilities 
required by the job include close vision and the ability to adjust focus.  

 
This job description should not be interpreted as all-inclusive or as an employment 
agreement between the employer and employee. It is intended to identify the 
essential functions and requirements of this job and is subject to change as the 
needs of the employer and requirements of the job change. Incumbents may be 

80



Materials Services Manager 3 

required to perform job-related responsibilities and tasks other than those stated 
in this specification. Any essential functions of this position will be evaluated as 
necessary should an incumbent/applicant be unable to perform the function or 
requirement due to a disability as defined by the Americans with Disabilities Act 
(ADA). Reasonable accommodation for the specific disability will be made for the 
incumbent/applicant when possible.  
 
 
 

Approved 10/19/2017 
Revised and Approved 09/27/18 
Revised and Approved 01/21/21 

Revised and Approved 10/17/2024 
 
 
 

81



 
JOB TITLE: Metadata and Cataloging Specialist     
 
DEPARTMENT: Patron Accounts and Materials Services  
 
REPORTS TO: Acquisitions and Cataloging Manager 
 
CLASSIFICATION: Group 7 
 
STATUS:                    Non-ExemptExempt  
 
OBJECTIVE: To oversee the use and distribution of metadata. To manage 

the integrity of the Library’s materials and patron records 
within the integrated library system (ILS). To perform original 
cataloging and authority control. 

 
DUTIES: 
 

1. Understands and carries out the Library’s policies and procedures.  
2. Compiles and analyzes data related to the Library's collections, programs, 

and patron services. 
3. Performs original cataloging and classification of library materials and 

provides authority control for bibliographic data. 
4. Assists with budget recommendations and the competitive bid process for 

equipment and materials related to the integrated library system (ILS) and 

automatic materials handler (AMH). 

5. Organizes data produced by Library staff for optimal use by all staff. 
6. Collects and presents data on a regular basis to the Administrative Team to 

support Library decision making. 
7. Sets up data collection and reporting routines to assist Library staff. 
8. Provides specialized training to staff in use of the public catalog and of the 

bibliographic database.  
9. Trains Acquisitions and Cataloging staff in cataloging practices and 

resources.  
10. Coordinates training on the use of upgrades and new releases of the 

integrated library system (ILS). 
11. Collaborates in the creation and management of material collections and 

lending rules. 
12. Manages and updates the Library’s integrated library system (ILS) lending 

and staff permissions policies, while safeguarding confidential and 
restricted information. 

13. Programs the automatic materials handler (AMH). 
14. Acts as liaison to select library consortium technical groups. 
15. Keeps informed of current trends and developments affecting libraries. 

82



 

 
 
Metadata and Cataloging Specialist       
    

 
 
2 

16. Attends professional meetings, maintains memberships in professional 
library associations, and participates in their activities. 

17. Maintains neatness of shared work areas. 
18. Scheduled to work the Public Services Desks, as needed. 
19. May act as migration coordinator during a change of the ILS. 
20. May serve as representative to a library consortium advisory group. 
21. May oversee the work of volunteers. 
22. Performs other duties as assigned. 

 
MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS: 
 

1. Master’s Degree in Library Science from an ALA accredited program, with 
emphasis in cataloging. 

2. Two years database analysis experience. 
3. Two years original cataloging experience. 
4. One year authority control experience. 
5. Available to work evenings and weekends. 
6. Valid driver’s license. 

 
KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, AND ABILITIES: 
 

1. Considerable ability to establish and maintain effective working 
relationships with staff. 

2. Considerable ability to work independently. 
3. Considerable working ability to handle multiple and simultaneous tasks. 
4. Considerable skill in written and spoken communications. 
5. Considerable knowledge and skill in the use of appropriate technology 

including Microsoft Office 365.  
6. Considerable knowledge of current library classification and cataloging 

practice and principles. 
7. Considerable knowledge of bibliographic and patron databases. 
8. Considerable knowledge of Microsoft Excel and Access. 
9. Ability to perform excellent customer service and to communicate Library 

policies and procedures to the staff. 
10. Ability to work, and lead when necessary, as a member of a team. 
11. Ability to remain calm in difficult situations. 
12. Ability to instruct Library staff in library methods and procedures. 
13. Knowledge of database management and construction. 
14. Knowledge of web programming and markup languages. 
15. Knowledge of the professional practices, procedures and techniques of 

library science. 
16. Willingness to learn new skills. 
 

83



 

 
 
Metadata and Cataloging Specialist       
    

 
 
3 

TOOLS/EQUIPMENT USED: 
 

A variety of office machines, computers and Library equipment. 
 

PHYSICAL DEMANDS/WORK ENVIRONMENT:  
 

The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met 
by an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. 
Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities 
to perform the essential functions. 
 
While performing the duties of this job, the employee is frequently required to sit 
and talk or hear. The employee is occasionally required to walk; use hands to 
finger, handle, or feel objects, tools, or controls; and reach with hands and arms. 
 
The employee must occasionally lift up to 25 pounds. The employee must 
transport/move up to 100 pounds of library materials from one library location to 
another. Specific vision abilities required by this job include close vision and the 
ability to adjust focus. 

 
This job description should not be interpreted as all-inclusive or as an employment 
agreement between the employer and employee. It is intended to identify the 
essential functions and requirements of this job and is subject to change as the 
needs of the employer and requirements of the job change. Incumbents may be 
required to perform job-related responsibilities and tasks other than those stated 
in this specification.  Any essential functions of this position will be evaluated as 
necessary should an incumbent/applicant be unable to perform the function or 
requirement due to a disability as defined by the Americans with Disabilities Act 
(ADA).  Reasonable accommodation for the specific disability will be made for the 
incumbent/applicant when possible.  
 
 
Revised/Reviewed dates: 
 

Revised and Approved 08/21/07 
Revised and Approved 08/18/09 
Revised and Approved 04/15/14 
Revised and Approved 12/17/15 

Revised and Approved 06/17/21 
Revised and Approved 04/21/2022 
Revised and Approved 10/17/2024 

 

 

84



   

JOB TITLE:   Readers’ Services Manager 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Adult Services 
 
REPORTS TO:  Head of Adult Services 
 
CLASSIFICATION:  Group 8  
 
STATUS:   Non-ExemptExempt 
 
 
OBJECTIVE 
 
To supervise the Readers’ Services staff and assist the Head of Adult Services in the 
management of the Adult Services Department. This position serves on the 
Management team and participates in strategic planning and policy development, 
and implements the Library’s strategic plan to uphold its mission, vision, and 
values. 
 
 
DUTIES: 
 

1. Understands and carries out the Library’s policies and procedures.  
2. Hires, trains, supervises, disciplines, and evaluates up to nine staff 

members. 
3. Develops long term strategic goals for the Readers’ Services department. 
4. Participates in planning the department budget. 
5. Oversees selection and organization of the popular materials collections. 
6. Participates in review and revision of the collection development policy. 
7. Performs readers’ advisory and answers reference questions.  
8. Oversees programming offered by the department, including teen 

programming. 
9. Oversees the operations of the Readers’ Services information desk including 

staffing and schedule changes. 
10. Participates in managers’ meetings. 
11. Facilitates the Readers’ Services department meetings.  
12. Performs the duties of a Readers’ Services Assistant as scheduled. 
13. Promotes and markets the Library’s collections. 
14. Attends professional meetings, maintains memberships in professional 

associations, and participates in their activities.  
15. Attends appropriate meetings, workshops, and conferences.  
16. Represents the Library at community organizations and events. 
17. Compiles statistical data and creates reports. 
18. May oversee the work of volunteers. 

85



 

 
Readers’ Services Manager 

  

2 

19. Prepares weekly desk schedules as assigned. 
20. Keeps informed of current trends and developments affecting libraries.  
21. Performs other duties as assigned. 

 
 
MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS: 
 

1. Master’s Degree in Library Science or Information Science from an ALA 
accredited program. 

2. Three years of public library experience. 
3. Three years readers’ advisory experience. 
4. One year supervisory experience. 
5. Valid Illinois driver’s license. 
6. Available to work evenings and weekends. 

 
 
KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, AND ABILITIES: 
 

1. Considerable ability to establish and maintain effective work relationships 
with staff and patrons. 

2. Considerable ability to perform excellent customer service and to 
communicate general Library policies and procedures to the public. 

3. Considerable ability to lead and work as a member of a team. 
4. Considerable ability to work independently. 
5. Considerable ability to handle multiple and simultaneous tasks. 
6. Ability to remain calm in difficult situations. 
7. Ability to instruct Library staff in library methods and procedures.  
8. Considerable skill in written and spoken communication. 
9. Considerable knowledge and skill in the use of appropriate technology. 
10. Extensive knowledge of popular fiction, literature, movies, and music in a 

variety of formats.  
11. Knowledge of nonfiction, magazines, video games, and other Library 

collections.  
12. Ability to conduct a patron interview and to provide an accurate response 

in a timely manner. 
13. Ability to use print, online, and electronic resources. 
14. Knowledge of the professional practices, procedures, and techniques of 

library science.  
15. Willingness to learn new skills. 

 
 

 

86



 

 
Readers’ Services Manager 

  

3 

TOOLS/EQUIPMENT USED: 
 
A variety of office machines, computers, and Library equipment. 
 
PHYSICAL DEMANDS/WORK ENVIRONMENT: 
 
The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met 
by an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job.  
Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities 
to perform the essential functions. 
 
While performing the duties of this job, the employee is frequently required to sit 
and talk or hear.  The employee is occasionally required to walk; use hands to 
finger; handle, or feel objects, tools, or controls; and reach with hands and arms. 
 
The employee must occasionally lift up to 25 pounds.  The employee must 
transport/move up to 100 pounds of Library materials from one Library location to 
another.  Specific vision abilities required by this job include close vision and the 
ability to adjust focus. 
 

 
This job description should not be interpreted as all-inclusive or as an employment 
agreement between the employer and employee. It is intended to identify the 
essential functions and requirements of this job and is subject to change as the 
needs of the employer and requirements of the job change. Incumbents may be 
required to perform job-related responsibilities and tasks other than those stated 
in this specification. Any essential functions of this position will be evaluated as 
necessary should an incumbent/applicant be unable to perform the function or 
requirement due to a disability as defined by the Americans with Disabilities Act 
(ADA). Reasonable accommodation for the specific disability will be made for the 
incumbent/applicant when possible.  
 

Approved 12/18/07 
Revised and Approved 08/18/09 

Revised and Approved 07/19/11 
Revised and Approved 12/17/2015 
Revised and Approved 09/27/18 
Revised and Approved 04/15/21 
Revised and Approved 04/21/2022 
Revised and Approved 10/17/2024 

 
 

87



JOB TITLE:   Reference Services Librarian II     
 
DEPARTMENT:  Adult Services 
 
REPORTS TO:  Head of Adult Services 
 
CLASSIFICATION:  Group 8 
 
STATUS:   Non-Exempt Exempt 
 
OBJECTIVE 
 
To perform high level professional library work such as developing and 
implementing projects that increase access and quality of information, advising 
and training professional staff, managing budgets and collections, negotiating 
contracts with vendors, and extensive outreach with community organizations. 
The work also involves selecting materials and maintaining the collection, 
providing reference and readers’ advisory services, and one-on-one and classroom 
instruction to patrons.   
 
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 
 

1. Understands and carries out the Library’s policies, procedures, values, and 
strategic planning goals.  

2. Answers reference questions in person, by telephone, via email, and online. 
3. Instructs patrons in the use of electronic and print resources including 

creating and leading classes for the public. 
4. Provides readers' advisory services. 
5. Selects material for the collection and participates in collection evaluation 

and maintenance. 
6. Promotes and markets the library’s adult collections including writing 

promotional material and creating physical and digital displays. 
7. Arranges or creates and presents library programs and classes both in house 

and in the community. 
8. Maintains memberships in professional associations and participates in 

their activities. 
9. Continues librarianship education by attending appropriate meetings, 

workshops, and conferences. 
10. Serves as Librarian in Charge as assigned. 
11. Participates in community partnerships. 
12. Prepares weekly desk schedules as assigned. 
13. Writes and manages grants. 
14. Writes reports and compiles statistics. 

88



 

 
Reference Services Librarian II       
   

2 

15. Oversees the work of the pages, technology pages, and volunteers. 
16. Keeps informed of current trends and developments affecting libraries. 
17. May assist in the collection budget process. 
18. May be responsible for establishing new and maintaining current online 

resources. 
19. May be responsible for training staff in the use of online resources. 
20. May develop special services and programs for the business community. 
21. May coordinate programs and maintain the yearly program calendar for 

Adult Services. 
22. May negotiate with vendors for contracts for library services and programs. 
23. May maintain the Library’s digital collections. 
24. May assist at other public service desks. 
25. Performs other duties as assigned. 

 
MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS: 
 

1. Master’s Degree in Library Science or Information Science from an ALA 
accredited program. 

2. Minimum three years professional library experience. 
3. Customer service work experience preferred. 
4. Available to work evenings and weekends. 

 
KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS AND ABILITIES 
 

1. Ability to perform excellent customer service and to communicate general 
library policies and procedures to staff and the general public. 

2. Considerable ability to establish and maintain effective working 
relationships with staff and patrons. 

3. Considerable ability to work independently.  
4. Considerable ability to conduct a patron interview and to provide an 

accurate response in a timely manner. 
5. Considerable working ability to handle multiple and simultaneous tasks. 
6. Considerable skill in written and spoken communication. 
7. Considerable knowledge and skill in the use of online and electronic 

resources. 
8. Considerable knowledge and skill in the use of appropriate technology 

including Microsoft Office 3650. 
9. Ability to lead and work as a member of a team. 
10. Ability to remain calm in difficult situations. 
11. Knowledge of literature, popular materials, nonfiction, and reference 

materials in a variety of formats. 
12. Knowledge of the professional practices, procedures, and techniques of 

89



 

 
Reference Services Librarian II       
   

3 

library science. 
13. Willingness to learn new skills. 

 
TOOLS/EQUIPMENT USED: 
 
A variety of office machines, computers and Library equipment. 
 
PHYSICAL DEMANDS/WORK ENVIRONMENT: 
 
The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met 
by an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job.  
Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities 
to perform the essential functions. 
 
While performing the duties of this job, the employee is frequently required to sit 
and talk or hear. The employee is occasionally required to walk; use hands to 
finger; handle, or feel objects, tools, or controls; and reach with hands and arms. 
 
The employee must occasionally lift up to 25 pounds. The employee must 
transport/move up to 100 pounds of Library materials from one Library location to 
another.  Specific vision abilities required by this job include close vision and the 
ability to adjust focus. 
 
 

This job description should not be interpreted as all-inclusive or as an employment 
agreement between the employer and employee.  It is intended to identify the 
essential functions and requirements of this job and is subject to change as the 
needs of the employer and requirements of the job change. Incumbents may be 
required to perform job-related responsibilities and tasks other than those stated 
in this specification. Any essential functions of this position will be evaluated as 
necessary should an incumbent/applicant be unable to perform the function or 
requirement due to a disability as defined by the Americans with Disabilities Act 
(ADA).  Reasonable accommodation for the specific disability will be made for the 
incumbent/applicant when possible.  
 

Revised and Approved 11/21/06 
Revised and Approved 08/21/07 

Reviewed and Approved 08/18/09 
Revised and Approved 12/18/12 
Revised and Approved 12/17/15 

Revised and Approved 09/27/18 
Revised and Approved 11/21/19 

90



 

 
Reference Services Librarian II       
   

4 

Revised and Approved 11/18/21 
Revised and Approved 04/21/2022 
Revised and Approved 10/17/2024 

 
 

91



 

 

JOB TITLE:   Reference Services Librarian 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Adult Services 
 
REPORTS TO:  Head of Adult Services 
 
CLASSIFICATION:  Group 7 
 
STATUS:   Non-ExemptExempt 
 
OBJECTIVE 
 
To perform professional library work including planning and implementing library 
programs, selecting materials and maintaining the collection, providing reference 
and readers’ advisory, and one-on-one and classroom instruction to patrons.  
 
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 
 

1. Understands and carries out the Library’s policies, procedures, values, and 
strategic planning goals. 

2. Answers reference questions in person, by telephone, via email, and online. 
3. Instructs patrons in the use of electronic and print resources including 

creating and leading classes for the public. 
4. Provides readers' advisory services. 
5. Selects material for the collection and participates in collection evaluation 

and maintenance. 
6. Promotes and markets the library’s adult collections including writing 

promotional material and creating physical and digital displays. 
7. Creates and presents library programs. 
8. Maintains memberships in professional associations and participates in 

their activities. 
9. Continues librarianship education by attending appropriate meetings, 

workshops, and conferences. 
10. Serves as Librarian in Charge as assigned. 
11. Participates in community partnerships. 
12. Prepares weekly desk schedules as assigned. 
13. Writes and manages grants. 
14. May oversee the work of the pages, technology pages, and volunteers. 
15. May write reports and compile statistics.  
16. May assist at other public services desks. 
17. Performs other duties as assigned. 

 
 

92



 

Reference Services Librarian 2 

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS 
 

1. Master’s Degree in Library Science or Information Science from an ALA 
accredited program.  

2. One year library work experience. 
3.   Available to work evenings and weekends. 

 
KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, AND ABILITIES 
 

1. Ability to perform excellent customer service and to communicate general 
Library policies and procedures to staff and the general public. 

2. Considerable ability to establish and maintain effective working 
relationships with staff and patrons. 

3. Considerable ability to work independently.  
4. Considerable ability to conduct a patron interview and to provide an 

accurate response in a timely manner. 
5. Considerable ability to handle multiple and simultaneous tasks. 
6. Considerable skill in written and spoken communication. 
7. Considerable knowledge and skill in the use of online and electronic 

resources. 
8. Considerable knowledge and skill in the use of appropriate technology 

including Microsoft Office 3650. 
9. Ability to lead and work as a member of a team. 
10. Ability to remain calm in difficult situations. 
11. Knowledge of literature, popular materials, nonfiction, and reference 

materials in a variety of formats. 
12. Knowledge of the professional practices, procedures, and techniques of 

library science. 
13. Willingness to learn new skills. 

 
TOOLS/EQUIPMENT USED: 
 
A variety of office machines, computers and Library equipment. 
 
PHYSICAL DEMANDS/WORK ENVIRONMENT: 
 
The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met 
by an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. 
Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities 
to perform the essential functions. 
 
While performing the duties of this job, the employee is frequently required to sit 
and talk or hear. The employee is occasionally required to walk; use hands to 
finger; handle, or feel objects, tools, or controls; and reach with hands and arms. 

93



 

Reference Services Librarian 3 

 
The employee must occasionally lift up to 25 pounds. The employee must 
transport/move up to 100 pounds of Library materials from one Library location to 
another. Specific vision abilities required by this job include close vision and the 
ability to adjust focus. 

 
 
This job description should not be interpreted as all-inclusive or as an employment 
agreement between the employer and employee. It is intended to identify the 
essential functions and requirements of this job and is subject to change as the 
needs of the employer and requirements of the job change. Incumbents may be 
required to perform job-related responsibilities and tasks other than those stated 
in this specification. Any essential functions of this position will be evaluated as 
necessary should an incumbent/applicant be unable to perform the function or 
requirement due to a disability as defined by the Americans with Disabilities Act 
(ADA). Reasonable accommodation for the specific disability will be made for the 
incumbent/applicant when possible.  
 

Revised and Approved 11/20/06 
Revised and Approved 08/21/07 

Reviewed and Approved 08/18/09 
Revised and Approved 12/18/12 
Revised and Approved 12/17/15 
Revised and Approved 10/19/17 

Revised and Approved 09/27/18 
Revised and Approved 11/21/19 

Revised and Approved 11/18/2021 
Revised and Approved 04/21/2022 
Revised and Approved 10/17/2024 

 
 

 
 

94



JOB TITLE:   School Liaison Librarian 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Youth Services 
 
REPORTS TO:  Head of Youth Services 
 
CLASSIFICATION:  Group 8 
 
STATUS:   Non-ExemptExempt 
 
OBJECTIVE: 
 
To plan and implement an extensive program of outreach to schools and other 
organizations serving children and their families, teachers, and caregivers. To 
participate in the development of the Youth Services collection and offer reference 
and readers’ advisory services, programming, and instruction to the public. 
 
DUTIES: 
 

1. Understands and carries out the Library’s policies, procedures, values, and 
strategic planning goals.  

2. Represents the library through regular visits to local schools and other 
community organizations serving children and families. Maintains excellent 
working relationships with their administrators and faculty. 

3. May manage Seasonal Preschool Outreach Internship program by hiring, 
training, disciplining, and evaluating seasonal staff. 

4. Assists in oversight of the Youth Services collection of materials. 
5. Anticipates and provides materials for curriculum support, preschool 

through eighth grade. 
6. Performs Readers’ Advisory. 
7. Answers readers’ services and basic reference questions. 
8. Instructs patrons in the use of the library’s eCollections and associated 

technology. 
9. Plans, prepare, conducts, and evaluates programs. 
10. Assists and instructs patrons in the use of office machines, computers, and 

Library equipment. 
11. Promotes and markets the Library’s Youth Services collections, including 

writing promotional material and creating physical and digital displays. 
12. Stays current with trends in youth literature and library services. 
13. Maintains memberships in professional associations and participates in 

their activities. 
14. Attends appropriate meetings, workshops, and conferences. 
15. Writes reports and compiles statistics.  
16. Writes and administers grants. 

95



School Liaison Librarian 2 

17. Oversees the work of volunteers. 
18. Performs other duties as assigned. 

 
 
MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS: 
 

1. Master’s Degree in Library Science or Information Science from an ALA 
accredited program. 

2. Three years professional library work experience with children. 
3. Available to work evenings and weekends. 
4. Valid Illinois driver’s license. 

 
KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, AND ABILITIES: 
 

1. Ability to establish and maintain effective work relationships with staff, 
patrons, and community partners. 

2. Ability to perform excellent customer service and to communicate general 
library policies and procedures to the public. 

3. Ability to conduct a patron interview and to provide an accurate response 
in a timely manner. 

4. Ability to remain calm in difficult situations. 
5. Ability to handle multiple and simultaneous tasks. 
6. Ability to work as a member of a team. 
7. Ability to work independently. 
8. Ability to use print and electronic resources. 
9. Extensive knowledge of materials for children and their caregivers in a 

variety of formats. 
10. Skill in written and spoken communication. 
11. Extensive knowledge and skill in the use of appropriate technology.  
12. Knowledge of the professional practices, procedures, and techniques of 

library science. 
13. Willingness to learn new skills. 

 
TOOLS/EQUIPMENT USED: 
 
A variety of office machines, computers and Library equipment. 
 
PHYSICAL DEMANDS/WORK ENVIRONMENT: 
 
The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met 
by an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. 
Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities 
to perform the essential functions. 
 

96



School Liaison Librarian 3 

While performing the duties of this job, the employee is frequently required to sit 
and talk or hear. The employee is occasionally required to walk; use hands to 
finger, handle, or feel objects, tools, or controls; and reach with hands and arms. 
 
The employee must occasionally lift up to 25 pounds. The employee must 
transport/move up to 100 pounds of Library materials from one Library location to 
another. Specific vision abilities required by this job include close vision and the 
ability to adjust focus. 

 
 
This job description should not be interpreted as all-inclusive or as an employment 
agreement between the employer and employee. It is intended to identify the 
essential functions and requirements of this job and is subject to change as the 
needs of the employer and requirements of the job change. Incumbents may be 
required to perform job-related responsibilities and tasks other than those stated 
in this specification. Any essential functions of this position will be evaluated as 
necessary should an incumbent/applicant be unable to perform the function or 
requirement due to a disability as defined by the Americans with Disabilities Act 
(ADA). Reasonable accommodation for the specific disability will be made for the 
incumbent/applicant when possible.  
 

Revised and Approved 11/21/06 
Revised and Approved 08/21/07 

Reviewed and Approved 08/18/09 
Revised and Approved 04/15/14 
Revised and Approved 12/17/15 

Revised and Approved 09/27/18 
Revised and Approved 11/21/19 

Revised and Approved 05/20/21 
Revised and Approved 04/21/2022 
Revised and Approved 10/17/2024 

 
 
 

97



 
1 

Teen Services Librarian 

JOB TITLE: Teen Services Librarian 
 
DEPARTMENT: Adult Services 
 
REPORTS TO:  Readers’ Services Manager 
 
CLASSIFICATION: Group 8 
 
STATUS: Non-ExemptExempt 
 
 
OBJECTIVE: 
 
To develop and market the Library's collections, services, and programs for older teens. 
This person performs professional library work such as managing budgets and collections, 
extensive outreach to community organizations, and reference and readers' advisory 
services. 
 
 
 
DUTIES: 
  

1. Understands and carries out the Library’s policies, procedures, values, and 
strategic planning goals.  

2. Creates and presents Library programs and conducts Library tours. 
3. Coordinates the activities of the Teen Advisory Board and oversees the work of 

teen volunteers. 
4. Writes content for teens for the Library web site and other material for the public.  
5. Keeps informed of trends in teen services. 
6. May oversee the workflow of select Readers Services staff. 
7. Represents the Library through regular visits to local high schools and other 

community organizations serving teens. Maintains excellent working relationships 
with their administrators and faculty.  

8. Promotes programs, events, and services to local high schools including in person 
visits. 

9. Attends professional meetings, maintains memberships in professional 
associations, and participates in their activities.  

10. Selects material for the collection and participates in collection evaluation and 
maintenance. 

11. Performs readers’ advisory and answers reference questions.  
12. Promotes and markets the Library’s collections. 
13. Instructs patrons in the use of the Library’s digital collections and associated 

technology.  

98



 
2 

Teen Services Librarian 

14. Prepares weekly desk schedules as assigned. 
15. May write reports, grants, and compile statistics as assigned. 
16. May represent the Library at community organizations and events. 
17. May be responsible for developing new popular materials collections and services. 
18. Performs other duties as assigned. 

 
 
MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS: 
 

1. Master’s Degree in Library Science or Information Science from an ALA accredited 
program. 

2. Three years professional library experience working with teens.  
3. Valid Illinois driver’s license. 
4. Available to work evenings and weekends. 

 
 
KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, AND ABILITIES: 
 

1. Ability to perform excellent customer service and to communicate general Library 
policies and procedures to the public. 

2. Ability to establish and maintain effective work relationships with staff and 
patrons. 

3.  Extensive knowledge of young adult literature, popular materials, and Library 
resources in a variety of formats. 

4. Considerable ability to establish rapport with teens. 
5. Knowledge of theories of child development. 
6. Considerable ability to work as a member of a team and independently. 
5. Ability to conduct a patron interview and to provide an accurate response in a 

timely manner. 
7. Ability to remain calm in difficult situations. 
8. Ability to handle multiple and simultaneous tasks. 
9. Ability to use print, online, and electronic resources. 
10. Considerable skill in spoken and written communication. 
11. Considerable knowledge and skill in the use of appropriate technology. 
12. Willingness to learn new skills. 

 
TOOLS/EQUIPMENT USED: 
 
A variety of Library and office machines, computers and Library equipment.  
 
PHYSICAL DEMANDS/WORK ENVIRONMENT: 
 

99



 
3 

Teen Services Librarian 

The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an 
employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable 
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the 
essential functions. 
 
While performing the duties of this job, the employee is frequently required to sit and 
talk or hear. The employee is occasionally required to walk; use hands to finger; handle, 
or feel objects, tools, or controls; and reach with hands and arms. 
 
The employee must occasionally lift up to 25 pounds. The employee must transport/move 
up to 100 pounds of library materials from one library location to another. Specific vision 
abilities required by this job include close vision and the ability to adjust focus. 
 

 
This job description should not be interpreted as all-inclusive or as an employment 
agreement between the employer and employee. It is intended to identify the essential 
functions and requirements of this job and is subject to change as the needs of the 
employer and requirements of the job change. Incumbents may be required to perform 
job-related responsibilities and tasks other than those stated in this specification. Any 
essential functions of this position will be evaluated as necessary should an 
incumbent/applicant be unable to perform the function or requirement due to a disability 
as defined by the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). Reasonable accommodation for 
the specific disability will be made for the incumbent/applicant when possible. 
 

Approved 08/18/09 
Revised and Approved 12/17/15 

Revised and Approved 09/27/18 
Revised and Approved 11/21/19 

Revised and Approved 04/15/21 
Revised and Approved 04/21/2022 

Revised and Approved 10/17/2024 
 

100



   

JOB TITLE:   Youth Services Assistant Manager 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Youth Services 
 
REPORTS TO:  Head of Youth Services 
 
CLASSIFICATION:  Group 8  
 
STATUS:   Non-ExemptExempt 
 
OBJECTIVE: 
 
To supervise select Youth Services staff and assist the Head of Youth Services in the 
management of the Youth Services Department. This position serves on the Management 
team and participates in strategic planning and policy development, and implements the 
Library’s strategic plan to uphold its mission, vision, and values. 
 
DUTIES: 
 

1. Understands and carries out the Library’s policies, procedures, values, and 
strategic planning goals.  

2. Hires, trains, supervises, disciplines, and evaluates part-time staff. 
3. Assists in developing long-term strategic goals for the Youth Services 

department. 
4. Participates in planning the department budget. 
5. Oversees selection and organization of the non-fiction collection. 
6. Participates in review and revision of the collection development policy. 
7. Selects material for the collection and participates in collection evaluation and 

maintenance.  
8. Oversees the operations of the Youth Services information desk including 

staffing and scheduling. 
9. Performs Readers’ Advisory. 
10. Answers readers’ services and basic reference questions. 
11. Oversees the management of the Youth Services department Summer Reading 

Challenge. 
12. Represents the Library through partnerships with community organizations. 
13. Participates in managers’ meetings. 
14. Attends professional meetings, maintains memberships in profession 

associations, and participates in their activities. 
15. Stays current with trends in youth literature and library services. 
16. Writes reports, grants and compiles statistics as assigned. 
17. Performs other duties as assigned. 
 

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS: 

101



 

 
Youth Services Assistant Manager 
  

2 

 
1. Master’s Degree in Library Science or Information Science from an ALA accredited 

program. 
2. Three years professional library work experience with children. 
3. One year supervisory experience. 
4. Valid Illinois driver’s license. 
5. Available to work evenings and weekends. 

 
KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, AND ABILITIES: 
 

1. Ability to establish and maintain effective work relationships with staff, patrons, 
and community partners. 

2. Ability to perform excellent customer service and to communicate general Library 
policies and procedures to the public. 

3. Ability to lead and work as a member of a team. 
4. Ability to establish rapport with children and caregivers. Ability to work 

independently. 
5. Ability to work independently.  
6. Ability to remain calm in difficult situations. 
7. Ability to handle multiple and simultaneous tasks. 
8. Ability to instruct Library staff in Library methods and procedures. 
9. Skill in written and spoken communication. 
10. Extensive knowledge and skill in the use of appropriate technology. 
11. Extensive knowledge of materials for children and their caregivers in a variety of 

formats. 
12. Ability to conduct a patron interview and to provide an accurate response in a 

timely manner. 
13. Ability to use print and electronic resources. 
14. Knowledge of the professional practices, procedures, and techniques of library 

science. 
15. Willingness to learn new skills. 

 
 

TOOLS/EQUIPMENT USED: 
 
A variety of office machines, computers, and Library equipment. 
 
PHYSICAL DEMANDS/WORK ENVIRONMENT: 
 
The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an 
employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job.  Reasonable 
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the 

102



 

 
Youth Services Assistant Manager 
  

3 

essential functions. 
 
While performing the duties of this job, the employee is frequently required to sit and 
talk or hear.  The employee is occasionally required to walk; use hands to finger; handle, 
or feel objects, tools, or controls; and reach with hands and arms. 
 
The employee must occasionally lift up to 25 pounds.  The employee must 
transport/move up to 100 pounds of Library materials from one Library location to 
another.  Specific vision abilities required by this job include close vision and the ability 
to adjust focus. 
 

 
This job description should not be interpreted as all-inclusive or as an employment 
agreement between the employer and employee.  It is intended to identify the essential 
functions and requirements of this job and is subject to change as the needs of the 
employer and requirements of the job change.  Incumbents may be required to perform 
job-related responsibilities and tasks other than those stated in this specification.  Any 
essential functions of this position will be evaluated as necessary should an 
incumbent/applicant be unable to perform the function or requirement due to a disability 
as defined by the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA).  Reasonable accommodation for 
the specific disability will be made for the incumbent/applicant when possible.  
 

Approved 11/21/19 
Revised and Approved 05/20/21 
Revised and Approved 04/21/2022 
Revised and Approved 10/17/2024 

 
 

103



JOB TITLE:   Youth Services Librarian 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Youth Services 
 
REPORTS TO:  Head of Youth Services 
 
CLASSIFICATION:  Group 7 
 
STATUS:   Non-ExemptExempt 
 
OBJECTIVE: 
 
To participate in the development of the Youth Services collection, provide 
outreach to community groups, and offer reference and readers’ advisory services, 
programming, and instruction to the public. 
 
DUTIES: 
 

1. Understands and carries out the Library’s policies, procedures, values, and 
strategic planning goals.  

2. Assists in oversight of the Youth Services collection of materials. 
3. Represents the library through partnerships with community organizations. 
4. Performs Readers’ Advisory. 
5. Answers readers’ services and basic reference questions. 
6. Instructs patrons in the use of the Library’s eCollections and associated 

technology. 
7. Plans, prepares, conducts, and evaluates programs. 
8. Assists and instructs patrons in the use of office machines, computers, and 

Library equipment. 
9. Promotes and markets the Library’s youth services collections, including 

writing promotional material and creating physical and digital displays. 
10. Stays current with trends in youth literature and Library services. 
11. Maintains memberships in professional associations and participates in 

their activities. 
12. Attends appropriate meetings, workshops, and conferences.  
13. Writes reports and compiles statistics. 
14. Writes and manages grants. 
15. Oversees the work of volunteers. 
16. May coordinate with Teen Services for programming, collections, and 

outreach. 
17. Performs other duties as assigned. 

 
 
MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS 

104



Youth Services Librarian 2 

 
1. Master’s Degree in Library Science or Information Science from an ALA 

accredited program. 
2. One year library work experience with children. 
3. Available to work evenings and weekends. 
4. Valid Illinois driver’s license. 

 
KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS AND ABILITIES 
 

1. Ability to establish and maintain effective work relationships with staff, 
patrons, and community partners. 

2. Ability to perform excellent customer service and to communicate general 
library policies and procedures to the public. 

3. Ability to conduct a patron interview and to provide an accurate response 
in a timely manner. 

4. Ability to remain calm in difficult situations. 
5. Ability to handle multiple and simultaneous tasks. 
6. Ability to work as a member of a team. 
7. Ability to work independently. 
8. Ability to use print and electronic resources. 
9. Extensive knowledge of materials for children and their caregivers in a 

variety of formats. 
10. Skill in written and spoken communication. 
11. Extensive knowledge and skill in the use of appropriate technology.  
12. Knowledge of the professional practices, procedures, and techniques of 

library science. 
13. Willingness to learn new skills. 

 
 
TOOLS/EQUIPMENT USED: 
 
A variety of office machines, computers, and Library equipment. 
 
PHYSICAL DEMANDS/WORK ENVIRONMENT: 
 
The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met 
by an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job.  
Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities 
to perform the essential functions. 
 
While performing the duties of this job, the employee is frequently required to sit 
and talk or hear. The employee is occasionally required to walk; use hands to 
finger, handle, or feel objects, tools, or controls; and reach with hands and arms. 
 

105



Youth Services Librarian 3 

The employee must occasionally lift up to 25 pounds. The employee must 
transport/move up to 100 pounds of Library materials from one Library location to 
another. Specific vision abilities required by this job include close vision and the 
ability to adjust focus. 
 
 
This job description should not be interpreted as all-inclusive or as an employment 
agreement between the employer and employee. It is intended to identify the 
essential functions and requirements of this job and is subject to change as the 
needs of the employer and requirements of the job change. Incumbents may be 
required to perform job-related responsibilities and tasks other than those stated 
in this specification. Any essential functions of this position will be evaluated as 
necessary should an incumbent/applicant be unable to perform the function or 
requirement due to a disability as defined by the Americans with Disabilities Act 
(ADA). Reasonable accommodation for the specific disability will be made for the 
incumbent/applicant when possible.  
 

Revised and Approved 11/21/06 
Revised and Approved 08/21/07 

Reviewed and Approved 08/18/09 
Revised and Approved 04/15/14 
Revised and Approved 12/17/15 

Revised and Approved 09/27/18 
Revised and Approved 05/20/21 
Revised and Approved 04/21/2022 
Revised and Approved 10/17/2024 

 
 

106



OFFICE OF THE MAYOR 

CITY OF 

DES PLAINES, ILLINOIS 

WHEREAS, we are here today to express special recognition lo Jo Bone/I and to honor 
her for her remarkable sixteen-year career with the Des Plaines Public 
Library; and 

WHEREAS, her counrless years devoted to the Des Plaines community, Jo leave.)· behind 
a legacy of inspiring leadership and meaningful contributions to the 
libra,y's progress and advancement; and 

WHEREAS, Jo has been instrumental in the growth and advancement of the Des Plaine 
Public Librmy, beginning as the Readers ' Supervisor and Head of Adult 
Seroices before being appointed Executive Director. Her leadership has 
been vital in overcoming challenges and reaching key milestones; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Des Plaines extends its hearifelt gratitude to Jo for her 
unwavering dedication and exceptional pe,formance throughout her 
seroice; and 

WHEREAS, this Proclamation is presented to Jo as a lasting reminder that, although she 
is retiring, she will forever be remembered as a cherished Executive 
Director who was deeply committed to both her role and our community. 

Now, therefore, I, ANDREW GOCZKOWSKJ, MAYOR OF THE CITY OF DES PLAINES, 
do hereby present this Proclamation to 

Jo Bone/I 

as a testimonial to the faithful and dedicated services which she has performed in Des 
Plaines, with our best wishes for continued success and happiness in the future. 

Dated this 2F1 day o.f January 2025. 

Andrew Goczkowski, Alayor 

107



From: Laurie Papadourakis

To: Gregory Sarlo; Kristen Graack; Lisa DuBrock; Denise Hudec; Rachel Rice; Robert Flinn; Christine Halblander;
Nicholas Harkovich; Michelle Shimon

Cc: Heather Imhoff

Subject: February DP Chamber Food Fight - Honoring Jo

Date: Monday, February 3, 2025 7:22:45 PM

Hi folks!

Jo’s retirement happens to coincide with the Library’s annual February participation in
the DP Chamber’s Food Fight, ending February 28, 2025.
To honor her amazing commitment and service to the Library, and to the DP community,
we are dedicating this year’s donation collection to our wonderful Director, Jo Bonell.

If you would like to donate to the Library’s efforts, or encourage others to do so, there are
two ways:

1. The 1st Floor Customer Service Desk is accepting monetary donations in the form
of credit card, cash, or check (made out to the Des Plaines Self-Help Closet and
Pantry). $1 = 1 lb. of food.

2. Drop off items in the red bins in the 1st Floor atrium.  Here is the request list from
The Pantry:

Cooking oil (maximum size 48 oz.)
Sugar (maximum size 4 lbs.)
Pasta sauce (plastic jars preferred over glass)
Flour (maximum size 5 lbs.)
Laundry detergent
Glucerna/Ensure
Canned meals such as beef ravioli or beef stew - 15 oz.
Canned fruit - 15 oz.
Jelly/jam (plastic jars preferred over glass)

We’re hoping to make this year the Library’s best Food Fight showing ever!

As always, thank you for your support!

Laurie

LAURIE PAPADOURAKIS
Acting Interim Director/Assistant Director
Des Plaines Public Library | dppl.org
lpapadourakis@dppl.org | 847-376-2776

108

mailto:LPapadourakis@dppl.org
mailto:GSarlo@dppl.org
mailto:KGraack@dppl.org
mailto:LDuBrock@dppl.org
mailto:DHudec@dppl.org
mailto:RRice@dppl.org
mailto:RFlinn@dppl.org
mailto:CHalblander@dppl.org
mailto:NHarkovich@dppl.org
mailto:MShimon@dppl.org
mailto:HImhoff@dppl.org
mailto:lpapadourakis@dppl.org

	BOARD AGENDA 2-20-25
	This meeting will be video recorded, and available on the Library’s website.

	BOARD MINUTES 1-16-25
	The meeting concluded at 7:23 p.m.

	SEARCH COMMITTEE  MINUTES 1- 27-25
	SEARCH COMMITTEE MINUTES 1-13-25
	The meeting adjourned at 4:33 p.m.

	2025.01 DPPL Financials
	Footer
	Fund - 01
	Header
	Main

	2024 Year End Cash Flow
	january-2025_1739549825 stats p 1
	january-2025_1739549825 stats p 2
	2025 Statistics Tally Pages and YTD NOV
	Don't Touch-Monthly
	2025

	January 25  Cover
	December Programs
	IPLAR REPORT
	C-12 The Makerspace Media Lab Use DRAFT 5
	C-12a Canvas Waiver Form DRAFT 2
	Acquisitions Cataloging Manager Draft February 2025
	BSS Manager Draft February 2025
	Business Manager Draft February 2025
	Materials Services Manager  Draft February 2025
	Metadata and Cataloging Specialist Draft February 2025
	Readers' Services Manager Draft February 2025
	Reference Librarian II  Draft February 2025
	Reference Services Librarian Draft February 2025
	School Liaison Librarian Draft February 2025
	Teen Services Librarian Draft February 2025
	Youth Services Assistant Manager Draft February 2025
	Youth Services Librarian Draft February 2025
	February 10 2025 Jo Bonell Retirement Proclamation
	February DP Chamber Food Fight - Honoring Jo



